
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting, Tuesday, 21st May, 2019
   at 2.30 pm (Council Chamber)

Site Visits

2018/0227 – Hayeswater Drive, Dalton-in-Furness
2018/0375 – London Road, Lindal-in-Furness

Depart Town Hall Courtyard at 1.15p.m.

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).



Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 16th April, 2019.

5 - 26

7.  Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)  27 - 48

FOR DECISION 

(D) 8.  Planning Application Book 1 
 

49 - 124

(D) 9.  Planning Application Book 2 
 

125 - 178

(D) 10.  Planning Application Book 3 
 

179 - 240

(D) 11.  Appointments to Outside Bodies, Panels, Working Groups etc 
 

241 - 242

(D) 12.  Receipt of Appeal Decision: Marsh Grange Barn, Dunnerholme 
 

243 - 244

(D) 13.  Appeal Decision: 24 Fell Croft, Dalton-in-Furness 
 

245 - 248

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30p.m.)

Membership of Committee

To be determined at Annual Council on 20th May, 2019.



For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:
Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday, 13th May, 2019



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 16th April, 2019
at 2.30 p.m. (Drawing Room)

PRESENT:- Councillors M. A. Thomson (Chair), Thomson (Vice-Chair), Hamilton, 
Husband, R. McClure, McEwan, Murray, Seward and Thurlow.

Officers Present:- Charles Wilton (Principal Planning Officer), Maureen Smith 
(Principal Planning Officer), Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer - Member 
Support) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer).

330 – Declarations of Interest

Councillor Hamilton declared an interest in any matter relating to Cumbria County 
Council as he was a Member of that Council.

Councillor McEwan declared an interest in any matter relating to Cumbria County 
Council as he was a Member of that Council. He also declared an interest in 
Planning Application 2019/0012 – Part of former County Coach, Bank Lane, Barrow-
in-Furness as he lived on the Estate.

Councillor M. A. Thomson declared an other interest in Planning Application 
2019/0009 – 79 Romney Park, Dalton-in-Furness as she was very close to the next 
door neighbour and had provided advice to them.  She left the meeting during 
consideration of the application.

331 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Blezard, Gawne, 
McLeavy and Murphy.

Councillors Hamilton and R. McClure had attended as substitutes for Councillors 
Blezard and McLeavy respectively for this meeting only.

332 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 12th March, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

333 – Unauthorised Advertisements within the Borough

The Development Services Manager (Planning) submitted a report regarding 
unauthorised advertisements within the Borough.

Last year, Members had agreed to Officers undertaking action to seek removal of 
various unauthorised advertisements along the A590, with specific reference to 
trailer advertisements.  Due to resource implications, very limited success had been 
achieved. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



It had been noted that following a noticeable increase in roadside advertising, to the 
detriment of highway safety and visual amenity, Borough Officers had engaged with 
County Highway Officers to enter into a Partnership seeking a joint initial programme 
to ensure the clearance of illegal signage along the Borough’s roads.  The first phase 
would target the section of the A590 under the control of the County Council.

The vast majority of the adverts were either signage attached to highway furniture or 
trailers parked on County Council controlled land.  The Partnership would allow for 
the Highway Act legislation to be used in such cases, although the Control of 
Advertisements Regulations could be used for adverts on private land.

Officers had identified a basic working framework which would be employed to 
secure the removal, storage, and potential disposal of unauthorised adverts; should 
voluntary action not be secured.  There was a number of legal and other procedural 
issues to be established at this early stage.

The purpose the report was to make Members aware of the initiative, and to seek 
continued support.  The main purpose was to ensure that the Borough’s roads do not 
remain cluttered with unauthorised adverts which create a poor initial image for 
visitors, as well as a potential highway safety issue for road users. 

RESOLVED:- To note the update on unauthorised advertisements within the 
Borough.

334 – Receipt of Local Plan Inspector’s Report

The Development Services Manager (Policy Regeneration and Information) 
submitted a report regarding the receipt of the Local Plan Inspector’s Report.

It was noted that in February 2018, the Council had submitted the Barrow Borough 
Local Plan 2016-2031 to the Planning Inspectorate for Examination.  The 
Examination Hearing Sessions had taken place in June 2018 where the soundness 
and legal compliance of the Plan had been considered.

Following the completion of the Examination Hearing Sessions, a series of main 
modifications to the Local Plan had been subjected to a six week consultation during 
September/October 2018.  The Inspector considered that the changes had been 
necessary in order for the Local Plan to be found ‘sound’.  

During the consultation the Council received 16 representations from 16 
representors. Six had been in support of the main modifications, five stated they had 
no further comments, two had been objections to the removal of the two housing 
allocations and three had related to further amendments to the main modifications.  
These representations had then been sent to the Planning Inspector for 
consideration.

The Council received the final report from the Planning Inspector on the 20th March 
and the Local Plan would be amended in line with the main modifications and taken 
to Full Council for adoption on the 4th June, 2019.  Overall the Inspector had 
concluded that the new Plan provided an appropriate basis for the planning of the 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



Borough, provided that the main modifications proposed by the Council, and 
contained within the Appendix to the Report, were made to it.  The Inspector’s 
Report also confirmed that the new Plan met all the legal requirements including 
public consultation requirements and the Duty to Co-operate.

In the interim period prior to adoption, decision makers would need to take into 
account the policies in the new Local Plan when determining planning applications.  
Although there was not a precise methodology for attributing weight to emerging 
policies, the policies of the Submission Draft amended in accordance with the main 
modifications would form the adopted version of the Local Plan and should 
accordingly be given substantial weight until adoption, when they would have full 
weight.

Next Steps

The Council was now in a position to adopt the Barrow Borough Local Plan.  The 
Local Plan would be amended in line with the main modifications and would then be 
taken to Full Council on the 4th June 2019 for formal adoption.

All consultees would then be informed of the adoption of the Local Plan and it would 
be published on the Council website and at deposit locations.

Following adoption, the new Local Plan’s policies would be monitored annually.  The 
Government also advised that a review of any Local Plan was required in whole or in 
part at least every five years.

RESOLVED:- To note the report.

Town and Country Planning Acts

335 – Delegated Applications

The Assistant Director (Regeneration and Built Environment) submitted for 
information details of planning applications in this report which he had determined 
under delegated authority (Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 
2002, confirmed by Council 24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for 
your information.  The plans recommended for approval under the Town and Country 
Planning Acts will be subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 
(April 1971) of the Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough 
Council, in addition to any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) 
beside the applicant’s name denotes those applications that were reported to the 
Planning Panel.

RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:-

2019/0190 Application for a non-material amendment following grant of planning 
permission 2018/0639 (Rear living room extension to replace existing 
conservatory) to amend roof design of rear extension from hipped roof 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



to a fibre glass warm flat roof with a raised glass lantern at 39 Dundee 
Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0228 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 10 
(boundary hedgerow protection measures) of planning permission 
2018/0598 (Erection of 7 dwellings) at Phase 4, Housing 
Development Site, Meadowlands, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0111 Single storey rear extension to form a kitchen at 20 Skelgate, Dalton-
in-Furness.

2019/0005 Single storey side extension forming extended kitchen, dining room 
and bathroom and new boundary wall at 44 Black Butts Lane, Barrow-
in-Furness.

2019/0129 Double storey side extension to provide ground floor kitchen, utility 
and shower room with first floor en-suite bedroom at 15 Myrtle 
Terrace, Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0066 Application for a certificate of lawfulness of proposed use or 
development for disposal of condensate by HGV tankers and 
provision of pipework, modification of pumps and provision of 
associated equipment at North Morecambe Terminal (NMT), 
Rampside Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0077 Rear extension to provide kitchen, living area, utility room and wc at 
62 Dane Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0148 Extension to existing ground floor bedroom to accommodate improved 
bathroom and changing facilities at 12 Middle Hill, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0102 Single storey rear extension with flat roof forming a new female toilet 
block at King Alfred Hotel, Ocean Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0103 Advertisement consent to display non illuminated acrylic sign to the 
front elevation to cover 1 redundant ATM at 111-115 Dalton Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0091 Single storey side extension forming a garage with utility room at 
ground floor, wrapped around at rear/side to attach onto a rear single 
storey extension forming extended kitchen, dining room. Front garage 
converted into sitting room and internal alterations (re-submission 
2018/0152) at 7 Windermere Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0040 Listed Building Consent to replace existing modern staircase in the 
barn with one of a shallower gradient at 49 Moor Road, Marton.

2019/0055 Demolition of existing conservatory and construction of new single 
storey rear extension to form enlarged kitchen at 21 Hadleigh Drive, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



2019/0132 Removal of Condition No. 2 (Use of Garage) for planning permission 
2002/0878 Erection of 32 dwellings and associated infrastructure to 
allow for the use of the garage as a bedroom/playroom at 4 Chapel 
Field, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0052 Rear single storey extension forming a sunroom. Removal of existing 
garage and creation of a side store room at 96 Glenridding Drive, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0059 Advertisement consent to display 2 internally illuminated fascia signs, 
3 internal poster signs and one internal vinyl graphic sign at Former 
Frankie and Benny’s, Hindpool Retail Park, Hindepool Road, Barrow-
in-Furness (eastern half of building).

2019/0070 Single storey rear extension to kitchen and re-modelling of existing 
conservatory to form garden room open to kitchen. Addition of an 
open porch to front elevation (re-submission of 2018/0788) at 22 Teal 
Close, Askam-in-Furness.

2019/0079 Erection of a two storey rear extension forming extended kitchen, 
utility room and wc at ground floor with extended 3rd bedroom, en-
suite and bathroom at first floor at 37A Ulverston Road, Dalton-in-
Furness.

2019/0117 Extension to form kitchen/living area, demolition of detached garage 
and rebuilding at Rose Cottage, Newton Cross Road, Newton-in-
Furness.

2019/0033 Rear living area and kitchen extension at 4 Grantley Road, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2019/0036 Application for works to trees subject to Tree Preservation Order 2009 
No. 9 – T1, T2, T3, T4 and T6 (as shown on the plan). To crown lift 
over canopy, remove stub cuts, clear around BT lines and reduce 
back from building to give 1-2m clearance. T5 (as shown on plan) 
crown reduce away from the building at Sacred Heart Church, Lumley 
Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0100 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 
Development (CLOPUD) to remove existing rear conservatory and 
replace with an Orangery at 20 Teal Close, Askam-in-Furness.

2019/0119 Erection of a side extension to provide utility room and wet room at 6 
Lamb Croft, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0068 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 3 
(carriageway details), No. 4 (surface water drainage details), No. 8 
(measures to prevent surface water discharging onto highway) and 
No. 9 (verification report regarding roads and footways and phasing) 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



of planning permission 2018/0598 (Erection of 7 dwellings) at Phase 4 
Housing Development Site, Meadowlands Avenue, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2019/0071 Application for removal or variation of Condition No. 3 following grant 
of planning permission 2001/1060 to convert the garage to form a new 
entrance hallway and ground floor wc as existing front door opens 
directly into living room at 22 Teal Close, Askam-in-Furness.

2018/0848 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 
Development (CLOPUD) for a dormer loft conversion at 2 Myrtle 
Terrace, Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0086 Application for works to trees subject of Tree Preservation Order 1998 
No. 4 – Crown thin tree by 20%, removal of crossing rubbing 
branches and thinning the tree further by 20% to achieve a lighter 
canopy at the old reduction points and remove minor growth 
extending close to the existing houses at 4 Monks Croft Avenue, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0089 Conversion and extension of rear kitchen into living area and shower 
room, re-positioning of kitchen in existing living room at 15 Melampus 
Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0092 Two storey side extension forming garage, utility and wc at ground 
floor level with first floor en-suite bedroom above at 22 Stackwood 
Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2018/0798 Section 73 application for the removal of Condition No. 9 (means of 
access) of approved planning permission 2015/0707 (Outline planning 
application for approximately 142 dwellings with associated open 
space and landscaping, with all matters reserved) to provide 
alternative access by the means of a right hand turn ghost island 
arrangement into the site from Dalton Lane at Proposed Housing 
Development at Dalton Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0007 Notice of intention to (works to trees within conservation area) Ash 
Tree (T1 as shown on the plan) crown reduce the spread away from 
neighbouring properties, remove 6ft from crown height and prune any 
deadwood. Walnut tree (T2 as shown on the plan) crown lift lower 
limbs at Garth House, Saves Lane, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness.

2019/0046 Two storey side extension to form dining area and enlarged bedroom 
at 5 Armon Close, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0108 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 3 (part 
window details), No. 6 (Preliminary site investigation), No. 7 (Field 
investigation and risk assessment), No. 8 (Remediation Scheme) and 
No. 11 (Soil testing methodology) of planning permission 2018/0240 
(Change of use and conversion of public house (Class A4) to form 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



three dwelling houses (Class C3) including demolition of existing 
structures and erection of new side extensions and detached 
garages) at Eastchurch Villas, Littlestone Close, Barrow-in-Furness.

2018/0819 Dormer loft conversion to the front and rear elevations to form 
bedroom at 87 King Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0183 Application for a non-material amendment following grant of planning 
permission 2016/0698 (Erection of a two storey extension with attic 
room and detached garage) to allow: Removal of first floor slot 
window; Addition of single pane window in en-suite; and Replacement 
of twin pane bedroom window with larger three pane unit at 7 Gilpin 
Walk, Barrow-in-Furness.

The following application had been partially approved:-

2019/0037 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 11 
(Construction Method Statement), No. 14 (Details of finish to solar 
panels), No. 17 (Details of control room), No. 18 (Details of access 
track) and No. 20 (Details of boundary fencing) for planning 
permission 2015/0614 (Proposed installation of a 4.17 MW solar farm 
and associated development) at Sowerby Lodge (Land north of) Bank 
Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

The following application had been refused:-

2019/0105 Rear ground extension and new dormer at first floor level 
(Resubmission of 2018/0344) at Corandirk, Saves Lane, Ireleth, 
Askam-in-Furness.

(ii) To note the decisions made under the Building Act 1984/The Building 
Regulations 2010 as submitted by the Principal Building Control Surveyor.

Town and Country Planning Acts

The Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) reported on the 
following planning applications:-

336 – Town Hall, Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr B. Vickers in respect of Listed Building Consent for internal alterations to 
existing ground floor office area and reception at Town Hall, Duke Street, Barrow-in-
Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0149.

The application had been reported to Members as the application related to a 
Council owned property.  No representations had been received but the results of 
consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that Listed Building Consent be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following condition:-

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



1. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 6.3.2019 and the 
hereby approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by conditions attached to this consent:

Existing Floor Plan Drawing No. 532/01
Proposed Floor Plan Drawing No. 532/02

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority in the interests of the 
special character and architectural appearance of the Grade II* listed 
building.

337 – Land at North Scale, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr D. Barlow, North Scale Residents Association in respect of the change of 
use of waste land to public amenity space including the installation of a sandstone 
block and metal Viking longboat structure on land at North Scale, Barrow-in-Furness 
as shown on plan number 2019/0069.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

Compliance with Approved Plans

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 1.2.2019 and the 
hereby approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by a condition attached to this consent:

Plan 1-Proposed Layout Ref NS/DB/003
Proposed Paving Details Ref NS/DB/005 and 006
Proposed Fencing Rope Ref NS/DB/007
Proposed Fencing Post Ref NS/DB/008
Sample plaque Ref NS/DB/009
Proposed sandstone plinth Ref NS/DB/010, 011 and 012
Proposed longboat sculpture feature Ref NS/DB/014

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority in the interests of the 
appearance of the development and the character of North Scale 
Conservation Area.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



Before Occupation

2. Prior to the beneficial use of the site a bird box shall be erected on the 
site. The bird box should be erected out of reach of predators, at a 
height above ground level of between 1.5 to 5 metres and directed to 
avoid direct sunlight, heavy rain and prevailing winds. The platform and 
box shall be installed and maintained in perpetuity.

Reason

In the interests of bio-diversity enhancement as required by Chapter 15 
of the NPPF.

338 – Hayeswater Drive, Dalton-in-Furness

Mr J. Wood in respect of a minor material amendment to allow a revised house type 
on Plot 12 via a variation of Condition No. 2 (approved plans) for planning 
permission 2016/0126 (Erection of 13 dwellings) at Hayeswater Drive, Dalton-in-
Furness as shown on plan number 2018/0817.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

The Committee had undertaken a site visit prior to the meeting.

An objector attended the meeting and made representations to the Committee.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

1. Not re-imposed

Reason

The application is an amendment to a scheme already commenced.

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the application 
dated 27th January 2016 as amended (reduced to 13 dwellings) and the 
hereby approved plans Site layout Plan Ref 3296-P102 Rev G, Plans 
and Elevations P103A, 104A, 105A, 106A & 111A, Proposed Road 
layout Ref 16165/01.1E, Proposed Road levels 01.2B, Carriageway 
Longitudinal Section 01.3A, Construction details 1 of 2 04.1C, 
Construction details 2 of 2 04.2 Road Improvements 01.5B, Drainage 
Layout 02.1M, Percolation Test Locations 02.2A, Highway Soakaway 
Detail 02.4F, Exceedance Route 02.5E, Surface Water Drainage 
Strategy Rev C dated 27/04/2017, except where amended by any of the 
conditions below.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

3. The site shall be remediated in accordance with:

Remediation Method Statement ref BEK-15140-4, bEk Enviro Ltd July 
2017.
Asbestos Management Plan ref BEK -15140-3, bEk Enviro Ltd June 
2017.

Reason

To protect the environment and the health of the public from potential 
hazards that may arise as a direct result if the redevelopment of the 
land.

4. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
Construction Method Statement ref AM1.

Reason

To ensure that the construction phase is carried out having full regard to 
amenity, safety and environmental considerations.

5. Tree protection fencing which defines the root protection areas shall be 
maintained in the positions shown on 'Site Set Up Plan' ref P102 HS1 
and of the type specified by the Arboriculturalists Report dated 
14/04/2016 which accompanied the original application. No excavations, 
site works, trenches, channels, pipes, services, temporary buildings 
used in connection with the development or areas for the deposit of soil 
or waste or for storage of construction materials, equipment or fuel shall 
be sited within the fenced areas / root protection area of any tree.

Reason

In order to ensure that damage does not occur to the trees during 
building or engineering operations. The issue has to be addressed pre-
commencement as it relates to measures to protect trees during the 
construction phase.

6. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a 
Verification Report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a scheme of phase submitted to be 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority.

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To protect the environment and the health of the public from potential 
hazards that may arise as a direct result if the redevelopment of the 
land.

7. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 
the approved development, that was not previously identified, it must be 
reported immediately to the Planning Authority. Development on the part 
of the site affected must be halted and Field Investigations shall be 
carried out. Where required by the Planning Authority, remediation and 
verification schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. These shall be implemented prior to 
occupation of the development.

Reason

To protect the environment and the health of the public from potential 
hazards that may arise as a direct result if the redevelopment of the 
land.

8. Only soil tested as defined by the Remediation Statement ref BEK-
15140-4 bEk, Enviro Ltd dated July 2017 shall be imported to the site for 
the purposes of landscaping.

Reason

To protect the environment and the health of the public from potential 
hazards that may arise as a direct result if the redevelopment of the 
land.

9. No dwellings shall be occupied (unless in accordance with a scheme of 
phasing previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority) until the estate road, including footways, has been constructed 
in all respects to base course level, and street lighting has been provided 
and brought into full operational use in accordance with details approved 
under condition 11 below, including any scheme of phasing.

Reason

To ensure a suitable standard of provision for pedestrians and vehicles 
associated with the development.

10. Prior to the beneficial occupation of plot 12 the bathroom window in the 
southwest facing side elevation must be permanently fitted with 
manufacturers obscure glazing of an obscurity rating of no less than 
level 4 from the Pilkington glass range (or an equivalent range and rating 
subject to prior agreement with the Planning Authority) and thereafter 
retained unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any 
variation.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Reason

In order to protect the residential amenities of neighbouring properties 
from overlooking or perceived overlooking.

11. The carriageway, footways and footpaths shall be designed, 
constructed, drained and lit to an adoptable standard, including the 
widening of the existing section of Hayeswater Drive, in accordance with 
the following approved plans:

Proposed road layout 16165/01.1 rev J
Proposed carriageway levels 18165/01.2 Rev C
Carriageway Longitudinal Section 16165/01.3 Rev A
Typical Construction Details sheet 1 of 2 ref 16165/01.4.1 rev E
Typical Construction Details (Sheet 2 of 2) 16165/01.4.2 Rev A
Road Improvements 16165/01.5 rev F
Adoption Plan 16165/01.6 rev G
Percolation Test Locations 16165/02.2 Rev A
Typical Roof and Driveway Drainage Layout 16165/02.3
Highway Soakaway Detail 16165/02.4 Rev F

Reason

To ensure a suitable standard of provision for pedestrians and vehicles 
associated with the development.

12. Prior to the occupation of the 8th dwelling a programme for the 
completion of the estate roads including footways and the widening of 
the existing section of Hayeswater Drive where shown on the Site layout 
Plan ref 3296-P102G shall have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority and the estate roads shall then be 
completed in accordance with the approved programme and the details 
approved under Condition 10 above.

Reason

To ensure a suitable standard of provision for pedestrians and vehicles 
associated with the development.

13. The landscaping scheme for the site shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details referenced below, and all planting 
and subsequent maintenance shall be to current British Standards.

Landscape proposals c-1563-01 Rev B
Fence detail (1) P109 rev A
Fence detail (2) ref P110.

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



Reason

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area.

14. The exceedance route measures and installation shall be carried out in 
accordance with plan ref: 'Exceedance Route 16165/02.5 rev E'.

Reason

To address any risk of flood in excess of a 1 in 100 year storm event.

15. Foul and surface water drainage shall be constructed in accordance with 
approved Surface Water Drainage Strategy CN 16165Rev C dated 
27/04/2017 and the following plans:

Percolation Test Locations 16165/02.2 Rev A
Typical Roof and Driveway Drainage Layout 16165/02.3
Highway Soakaway Detail 16165/02.4 Rev F
Drainage layout ref 16165/02.1 rev M
SW Manhole details (3) 16165/02.6.3
SW Manhole Details (2) 16165/02.6.2
SW Manhole Details (1) 16165/02.6.1 Rev A 25/06/17
Foul Drainage Manhole Details 16165/02.7 Rev D.

Reason

To ensure the site is adequately drained.

16. A footpath link shall be provided to link the approved estate road with 
Hollygate Road as shown on ‘Site Layout Plan ref 3296-P102G’ and in 
accordance with further details of surfacing, lighting, levels, fencing, 
drainage and a programme for its delivery and which shall have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority prior to 
the occupation of the 8th dwelling and including for this purpose any 
dwelling on plots 11 and 12.

Reason

To accord with saved policy E17 which seeks to ensure where feasible 
that development schemes contribute to an improvement in conditions 
for pedestrians and policy DS2 of emerging plan.

339 – Salthouse Mills Industrial Estate, Salthouse Mills, Barrow-in-Furness

From Hiltongrove Ltd in respect of the erection of enclosure fence to boundary with 
vehicular and pedestrian access gates. Fence to be 2.4 metres high v-mesh type 
powder coated finished in green with gates to match at Salthouse Mills Industrial 
Estate, Salthouse Mills, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0150.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

Compliance with Approved Plans

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 19.2.2019 and the 
hereby approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by a condition attached to this consent:

Proposed Enclosure/Security Fence Drawing No 6229/02 Revision C 
(amended plan received on 11.3.2019).

Construction Environment Management Plan dated February 2019.

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

Operational Conditions

2. 100mm high gaps shall be provided under the bottom of the fence, at 
intervals of 100m and shall thereafter be so maintained.

Reason

To provide safe routes of access for smaller mammals in the interests of 
bio-diversity.

340 – Low Peasholmes Farm, Peasholmes Lane, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr M. Rawlinson, M & E Rawlinson in respect of the erection of livestock 
building at Low Peasholmes Farm, Peasholmes Lane, Barrow-in-Furness as shown 
on plan number 2019/0011.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated as valid on 7.1.2019 and the 
hereby approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, 
except where varied by a condition attached to this consent:

Plan and Elevations Drawing No. P6215-01
Site Plan.

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

Operational Conditions

3. Where the use of the building for the purposes of agriculture within the 
unit permanently ceases within 10 years of the date of the building being 
substantially completed and planning permission has not been granted 
for an alternative use then the building shall be removed from the site 
and the land reinstated to its former condition, within 6 months from the 
date the agricultural use permanently ceased, the reinstatement being in 
accordance with written details that have been subject to prior 
agreement with the Authority.

Reason

To ensure that the building is removed if it is no longer required for the 
purposes of agriculture on the holding.

4. The developer shall notify the Planning Authority in writing of the date 
which the building is substantially completed within a period of 28 days 
of the date that completion occurs.

Reason

In order to give effect to Condition 3 above.

341 – Proposed House, New Road, Askam-in-Furness

From Mr S. Norman in respect of the erection of a two bedroom bungalow (corrected 
description) at New Road, Askam-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0034.

The results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Approved Plans

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 11/01/19 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this consent:

18382_PL01_ 02, 03 rev B, 04 rev A, 05, 06 & 07.
Preliminary Ecological Assessment Ref BEK-18483-1 November 2018.

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

Pre-commencement Conditions

3. No development shall take place until a Preliminary Investigation (desk 
study, site reconnaissance and preliminary risk assessment), to 
investigate and assess the risk of potential contamination, is submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This 
investigation must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated 
land practitioner, in accordance with established procedures (BS10175 
(2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated 
Sites and Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination 
(CLR11)).

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006.

4. If the Preliminary Investigation identifies potential unacceptable risks, a 
Field Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with 
established procedures (BS10175 (2011) Code of Practice for the 
Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures 
for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR11)), shall be 
undertaken to determine the presence and degree of contamination and 
must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land 
practitioner. The results of the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
before any development begins.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved Policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006.

5. Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme must include an appraisal of remedial options 
and proposal of the preferred option(s), all works to be undertaken, 
proposed remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification 
plan. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as 
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 
1990 in relation to the intended use.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved Policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006.

During Building Works

6. Notwithstanding the plans hereby approved or the provisions of the 
Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) 
Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 
without modification) details of all fences, hedges, wall or other means of 
enclosure around the curtilage of the application site must be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority prior to installation. 
The means of enclosure must incorporate specific measures to assist 
the local migration of wildlife between the side and rear garden 
boundaries of dwellings. The enclosure approved must be completed 
prior to the beneficial occupation of the development or, in the case of 
hedges, in the first planting season following the commencement of the 
beneficial use of the development.

Reason

In the interests of the visual and ecological amenities of the area due to 
the rural location.

7. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 
the approved development, that was not previously identified, it must be 
reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on 
the part of the site affected must be halted and Field Investigations shall 
be carried out. Where required by the Local Planning Authority, 
remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These shall be 
implemented prior to occupation of the development.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved Policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006.

8. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 
contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed 
development. A suitable methodology for testing this material should be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the 
sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the 
analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk 
assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then be 
carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its 
completion submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved Policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006.

9. Works consisting of the clearance of scrub and work to any hedgerows 
or trees must only be carried out outside of the bird nesting season 
(March to September). If work is to be carried out within this period a 
breeding bird survey must be carried out and submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval prior to those works commencing.

Reason

In the interests of nature conservation so as to safeguard recognised 
protected species of wildlife.

Before Occupation

10. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until 
surface water drainage works have been implemented in accordance 
with details that have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. Before these details are submitted an assessment 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



shall be carried out of the potential for disposing of surface water by 
means of a sustainable drainage system and the results of the 
assessment provided to the Planning Authority. Where a sustainable 
drainage scheme is to be provided, the submitted details shall:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the 
method employed to delay and control the surface water 
discharged from the site and the measures taken to prevent 
pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and
iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the 

development which shall include the arrangements for adoption by 
any public authority or statutory undertaker and any other 
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its 
lifetime.

Reason

In order to ensure that the site is adequately drained in accordance with 
the sustainable principles found in the NPPF.

11. Unless the Planning Authority gives written agreement that it is 
impractical to do so, all hard surfaced areas associated with vehicle use 
shall be of permeable construction, and detailed drawings (including 
cross sections of sub surface and surface materials) shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The scheme shall 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to 
beneficial occupation of any part of the development, or in accordance 
with a phasing scheme agreed in writing with the Planning Authority.

Reason

In order to ensure that the site is adequately drained in accordance with 
the sustainable principles found in the NPPF.

12. The development shall not be brought into use until visibility splays 
providing clear visibility of 60 metres x 2.4 metres measured down the 
centre of the access road and the nearside channel line of the major 
road have been provided at the junction of the access road with the 
County Highway. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or 
any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification) relating to permitted development, no structure, vehicle or 
object of any kind shall be erected, parked or placed and no trees, 
bushes, or other plants shall be planted or be permitted to grow within 
the identified visibility splays.

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To ensure that in the interests of the safety of highway users a suitable 
standard of access for the development exists at all times and in order to 
minimise potential hazards.

13. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a 
Verification Report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, prior to occupation of the development.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with 
Saved Policy D56 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006.

342 – Part of former County Coach, Bank Lane, Barrow-in-Furness

From Ms K. Austin-Walsh c/o Steven Abbott Associates LLP in respect of the 
change of use to dog day care business and associated works at Part of former 
County Coach, Bank Lane, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0012.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 21/12/18 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this consent:

3039-001, 3039-101, 3039-100.

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

Operational Conditions

3. Within 21 days of a written notification by the Local Planning Authority 
that a substantive complaint has been made to it by other occupants of 
the building about unacceptable noise disturbance from the approved 
use, the dog day care operator shall appoint an independent consultant 
to assess the operation and advise suitable mitigation measures to 
prevent subsequent disturbance. The operator shall then implement 
those measures and continue to operate in accordance with them.

Reason

In order to minimise the potential for noise pollution, thereby conform to 
Saved policy D58 of the Barrow Local Plan Review 1996-2006.

4. No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless 
it is in accordance with details that have previously been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Such details shall 
include location, height, type and direction of light sources and intensity 
of illumination. Any such lighting shall at all times be directed and 
shielded so as to minimise light spillage outside of the application site, 
and shall not thereafter be altered, other than for routine maintenance 
which does not change its details, without the prior consent in writing of 
the Planning Authority.

Reason

To minimise light pollution in accordance with Saved policy D63 of the 
Barrow Local Plan Review 1996-2006, and in order to protect the 
residential amenities of the area.

5. The day care use approved must only take place within the hours of 
07:00 and 19:00, Mondays to Saturdays and it must not take place at all 
on Sundays or Public Holidays. No overnight boarding of animals is 
permitted.

Reason

In order to protect the residential amenities of the area.

343 – 79 Romney Park, Dalton-in-Furness

From Mr J. Durkin in respect of the erection of a two storey side extension to provide 
a larger kitchen, utility and cloak room to ground floor along with an en-suite 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



bedroom to first floor at 79 Romney Park, Dalton-in-Furness as shown on plan 
number 2019/0009.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported

The Agent attended the meeting and made representations to the Committee.

RESOLVED:- It was agreed that planning permission be refused for the following 
reasons:-

1. The development proposed is considered to result in the creation of an 
overbearing impact and unacceptable level of enclosure to a habitable 
room serving the neighbouring property (no.81). The proposal is 
therefore contrary to Emerging Policy H16 of the Local Plan (submission 
draft) and NPPF paragraph 127.

2. The submitted Daylight Assessment does not appear to be in 
accordance with BRE guidance contained within the document 'Site 
Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight: A guide to good practice'. 
This does not therefore provide sufficient evidence that the effect on 
daylight reception to the neighbouring property, specifically the side 
bedroom window of No. 81, is within the acceptable levels detailed in the 
BRE guidance; it is therefore considered contrary to Emerging Policy 
H16 of the Local Plan (submission draft) and NPPF paragraph 127.

The meeting closed at 3.23 p.m.

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions made between 
 
 

 
and 

 
 
 
 
 

For Information 
 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 
Town and County Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 
 
The Planning applications in this report have been determined by the Development 
Services Manager (Planning) under delegated authority (Minute No. 107, Executive 
Committee, 7th February 2018, confirmed by Council 1st March 2018 (Minute No. 63). 
The decisions are reported for your information. 
 

 

 

 

Assistant Director of Regeneration and Built Environment 

21/05/2019

02/04/2019

01/05/2019

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/0170

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
03/04/2019

Location:
Vicarage Mount Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for works subject of Tree Preservation
Order 1972 no2:
T1243-Sycamore-Prune from street light to give
1m clearance
T1244-Not Known-Remove faulty brown stem
T1248-Elm-Fell to ground level
T1249_Stump-Grind out stump
T1251 and T1252-Sycamore-Prune branches back
to wall so they no longer overhang clothes drying
area
T1272- Sycamore - Remove epicormic growth
from base of the tree
T1272-Sycamore-Crown lift over highway to give
5.2m clearance
T1253-Sycamore-Prune branchesback to wall so
they no longer overhanging clothes drying area to
give 3m clearance
T1283 - Sycamore - Remove Epicormic grown
from base of treea

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B18/2019/0186

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/04/2019

Location:
Elliscales Farm Askam Road Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria

Proposal:
Schooling Arena to be used exclusively for the
exercising of horses owned by the applicant (Re-
submission of 2018/0609)

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B18/2019/0191

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/04/2019

Location:
15 Lichfield Close Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5LX

Proposal:
Application for variation of condition no. 2 of
planning permission 2008/1031 (Erection of a two
storey side extension forming ground floor garage
with 3rd and 4th bedroom over) to convert garage
into a kitchen.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 28

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0127

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
04/04/2019

Location:
28 Barnard Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria
LA13 9TD

Proposal:
Single store flat roofed rear extension forming
additional living room, bedroom, utility and store
(creating new access onto the backstreet)

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0211

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
26/04/2019

Location:
4 Summit Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9JB

Proposal:
Rear kitchen and living area extension

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2019/0210

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
26/04/2019

Location:
18 Elterwater Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4PH

Proposal:
Proposed single storey rear extension

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B28/2019/0196

Decision:
PARTIAL

Decision Date:
03/04/2019

Location:
BAE Building B64, Buccleuch Dock Road Barrow-
in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 2 (Surface Water Drainage Details)
of planning permission 2018/0568 (A new purpose
built onsite 'Building B64'. The building will be a
single story prefabricated, modular (floor space
approx 615m2)

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B21/2019/0223

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
26/04/2019

Location:
6 Himalaya Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3HE

Proposal:
Erection of a rear extension (retrospective)

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 30

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B26/2019/0243

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
17/04/2019

Location:
41 Bowfell Crescent Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4PT

Proposal:
Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of
Proposed Use or Development (CLOPUD) single
storey flat roof extension forming open-plan
kitchen/living/dining room; associated internal
bedroom and bathroom layout alterations.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0140

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
11/04/2019

Location:
7 Muncaster Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3RU

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension to form family room

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0141

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
03/04/2019

Location:
112 Duddon Road Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7FB

Proposal:
Internal alterations and rear single storey
extension

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B18/2019/0168

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/04/2019

Location:
Yarlside Academy, Redoak Avenue, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria, LA13 0LH

Proposal:
Construction of new modular nursery building to
replace previously demolished nursery.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B07/2018/0817

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/04/2019

Location:
Hayeswater Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Minor material amendment to allow a revised
house type on plot 12 via a variation of condition
no. 2 (approved plans) for planning permission
B07/2016/0126 (Erection of 13 dwellings)

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B20/2019/0221

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
17/04/2019

Location:
17 Hartington Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 5SL

Proposal:
Change of use of a building from office use (class
B1(a) to a dwelling house (Class C3))

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2019/0169

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/04/2019

Location:
2 Flass Lane, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13
0AB

Proposal:
Erection of rear single storey extension forming
kitchen.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2019/0192

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/04/2019

Location:
237 Ireleth Road Ireleth Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7DL

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension forming extending
kitchen, dining and living room and associated
alterations

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 32

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0175

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
12/04/2019

Location:
49 Victoria Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 5JZ

Proposal:
Demolish existing side garage and construct a two
storey side extension for use as a garage/store
with bedroom over.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2019/0133

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
03/04/2019

Location:
Former Cemetery Cottages Housing Site
Schneider Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Conditions No. 4 (Phase 1/desk top study re
potential for ground contamination) and  No. 17
(construction method statement) of planning
permission 2017/0499 (Construction of 12 houses
including landscaping and access road).

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0134

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
05/04/2019

Location:
5 Featherstone Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0GX

Proposal:
Erection of a detached pitched roof garage to the
rear of the property.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2019/0245

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
17/04/2019

Location:
Devonshire Dock Hall (D58) North Road Barrow-
in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 13 (Piling details) of planning
permission 2015/0179 (Extension to Devonshire
Dock Hall, to comprise two new buildings, link
corridor, new gate house, security gate, alterations
to site access, cycle shelters, security fencing and
associated hard landscaping, infrastructure and
related works)

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B18/2019/0215

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
26/04/2019

Location:
Barn @ Park Farm Park Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8JZ

Proposal:
Minor Material Amendment in relation to conditions
no.2 (Approved plans), no. 3 (drainage details) and
condition no.7 (Exterior walls) following grant of
2017/0704 Prior Approval of Proposed Change of
Use of Agricultural Buildings to a Dwelling houses
(use class C3) , and for associated operational
development - for conversion of agricultural
buildings into two dwellings.) to allow for a wet
dash render finish to all external walls

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0203

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
18/04/2019

Location:
3 Vicarage Field Church Hill Lindal-in-Furness
Cumbria LA12 0LT

Proposal:
Proposed single storey rear extension forming
enlarged living/kitchen/dining area; provision of
external canopy to side elevation.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Lindal and
Marton Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B22/2019/0115

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
02/04/2019

Location:
Alfred Barrow Health Centre Duke Street Barrow-
in-Furness Cumbria LA14 2LB

Proposal:
Advertisement consent to display 2 internally
illuminated signs, non illuminated lettering and an
internal vinyl sign to the  front elevation

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0125

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
05/04/2019

Location:
13 Quarry Brow Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
4HY

Proposal:
Demolition of existing kitchen, porch, WC and
store; construction of new single storey extension
containing enlarged kitchen, utility room, shower
room and stores.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0112

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/04/2019

Location:
20 Holbeck Park Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0RE

Proposal:
Erection of first floor bedroom extension over
existing garage

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B20/2019/0202

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
30/04/2019

Location:
19 Crooklands Brow Ulverston Road Dalton-in-
Furness Cumbria LA15 8HB

Proposal:
Change of use to a Bed and Breakfast Guest
House (Use Class C1) (Retrospective)

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B26/2019/0224

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
16/04/2019

Location:
7 Skiddaw Gardens Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4LZ

Proposal:
Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of
Proposed Use or Development (CLOPUD) to
enlarge existing dormer to rear of detached
bungalow.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B20/2019/0171

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
26/04/2019

Location:
52, 54 & 56 Mount Pleasant Skelgate Dalton-in-
Furness Cumbria LA15 8BQ

Proposal:
Conversion of hotel accommodation back to 3
dwellings including front and rear ground floor
extensions.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B18/2019/0178

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
24/04/2019

Location:
Land at Parkhouse Farm House Parkhouse Road
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13 0PL

Proposal:
Extension to existing livestock building

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B21/2019/0177

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
11/04/2019

Location:
236 Ireleth Road Ireleth Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7DP

Proposal:
Demolition of existing single storey extension and
replacement with new single storey extension with
mono pitched roof to provide dining room and
utility extension.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0151

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
30/04/2019

Location:
27 Water Garth Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
3YL

Proposal:
Erection of a two storey side extension forming
additional utility, extended dining room and one
additional bedroom.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B23/2019/0157

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
02/04/2019

Location:
Alfred Barrow Health Centre, Duke Street, Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 2LB

Proposal:
Listed Building Consent for the provision of
signage to the pharmacy unit within the  health
centre including:
2 internally illuminated signs, non illuminated
lettering and an  internal vinyl sign to the front
elevation.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/0163

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
18/04/2019

Location:
Car Park at Former HIP Building, Buccleuch Dock
Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 3 (Construction Traffic Management
Plan) of planning permission 2018/0340
Construction of a car park with mezzanine deck to
provide a total of 841 spaces, vehicle access and
egress to Buccleuch Dock Road and Michaelson
Road, hard and soft landscaping, security fencing
lighting, vehicle barriers and infrastructure and
ancillary works.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B20/2019/0154

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
04/04/2019

Location:
Unit 45, Trinity Enterprise Centre, Ironworks Road,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 2PN

Proposal:
Change of use from light industrial (Use Class
B1/B2/B8) to a bakery/cafe (Use Class A1/ A3)

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B21/2019/0194

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/04/2019

Location:
15 Shakespeare Street, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA14 5RE

Proposal:
Erection of single storey flat roofed rear extension
to form store

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B18/2019/0225

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
01/05/2019

Location:
Dalemount Filling Station Ireleth Road Ireleth
Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16 7JD

Proposal:
Refurbishment of existing shop to include a single
storey extension to increase footprint by 20 m2
and alterations to roof and elevations

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
RA/2019/0267

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
26/03/2019

Location:
36 Suffolk Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9QH

Proposal:
Forming opening at first floor with concrete
lintel over. Removal of ground and first floor
chimney breast with support of stack in loft,
and replacement doors and windows
throughout.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
03/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0298

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
04/04/2019

Location:
St Francis Church Schneider Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Convert existing boiler house to accessible
WC and associated drainage works.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
30/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0237

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
19/03/2019

Location:
10 Clovelly Terrace
Barrow in Furness
LA14 4HG

Proposal:
Rear kitchen / living / dining area extension

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0319

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
11/04/2019

Location:
48 King Alfred Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3BX

Proposal:
Alterations to form a wet room and drainage
works.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
11/04/2019

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0358

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
29/04/2019

Location:
88 King Alfred Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3BS

Proposal:
Addition of en-suite to master bedroom.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
29/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0368

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
30/04/2019

Location:
61 Powerful Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3PL

Proposal:
New floor in living room and hall and
replacement windows.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
30/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0197

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
28/02/2019

Location:
13 Teal Close Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7JF

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0198

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
04/03/2019

Location:
16 Weaver Green Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3UF

Proposal:
Single storey kitchen extension.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
16/04/2019

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0235

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
18/03/2019

Location:
7 Portland Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4EU

Proposal:
Remove existing shed/concrete sectional
garage/slab and lean-to UPVC porch.
Replace with a lounge/diner extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
25/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0296

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/04/2019

Location:
34 Portsmouth Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3AH

Proposal:
Enlarge existing opening.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
03/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0297

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/04/2019

Location:
43 Glasgow Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 2ED

Proposal:
Enlarge existing structural opening and
removal of hallway partition including
upgrading of means of escape.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
03/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0301

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/04/2019

Location:
52 Mount Pleasant, Skelgate, Dalton-in-
Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Conversion of hotel to dwelling.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/04/2019

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0302

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/04/2019

Location:
54 Mount Pleasant, Skelgate, Dalton-in-
Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Conversion of hotel to dwelling.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0303

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/04/2019

Location:
56 Mount Pleasant, Skelgate, Dalton-in-
Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Conversion of hotel to dwelling.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0250

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
26/03/2019

Location:
43 Bay View Grove Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0EQ

Proposal:
Proposed rear 2 storey extension forming a
lounge and forth bedroom.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
01/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0014

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
26/03/2019

Location:
50 Windrush Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3UN

Proposal:
Ground floor rear extension.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
04/04/2019

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0265

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
26/03/2019

Location:
3 Belvedere Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0HZ

Proposal:
Single storey rear and side extension to form
kitchen, utility and store.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
25/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0289

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
02/04/2019

Location:
14 Empress Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3DZ

Proposal:
Installation of a second velux window in an
existing loft conversion.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
02/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0300

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/04/2019

Location:
73 Glenridding Drive Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4PA

Proposal:
Garage conversion.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0306

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/04/2019

Location:
4 Abbey Heights Ireleth Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7HT

Proposal:
Rear sun room extension.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/04/2019

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0310

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
05/04/2019

Location:
26 Lyndale Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9AR

Proposal:
Utility and Store Extension.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
05/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0309

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/04/2019

Location:
22 Stackwood Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9HG

Proposal:
Two storey side extension forming garage,
utility and wc at ground floor level with first
floor ensuite bedroom above.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
26/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0326

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
16/04/2019

Location:
13 Riverside Gardens Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0DD

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0330

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
16/04/2019

Location:
62 Roose Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9RH

Proposal:
Installation of new drainage to create 4 x
ensuite bathrooms and structural alteration to
bedroom wall.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
16/04/2019

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0331

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
17/04/2019

Location:
39 Newton Road Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8LR

Proposal:
Rear extension.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
17/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0332

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
17/04/2019

Location:
42 Park Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9BB

Proposal:
Single storey extension and removal of wall
between kitchen and living room.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
17/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0174

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
22/02/2019

Location:
BAE Systems Jute Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria

Proposal:
Erection of a new facility for the maintenance
of shiplift transfer cars.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
17/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0182

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
26/02/2019

Location:
Pizzarella Promenade Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3AA

Proposal:
Rear extension.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Refused

Decision
Date:
18/04/2019

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0346

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
24/04/2019

Location:
5 Armon Close Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0SY

Proposal:
Two storey side extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
24/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0349

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
25/04/2019

Location:
42 Mulberry Way Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0RR

Proposal:
Creation of a new internal door opening.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
25/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0075

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
30/01/2019

Location:
86 North Row Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0HF

Proposal:
Loft conversion with rear dormer.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
16/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0003

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
06/03/2019

Location:
47 Highlands Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0AH

Proposal:
Single storey rear and side extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
04/04/2019

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0352

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
25/04/2019

Location:
20 Brent Avenue Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8QF

Proposal:
Removal of load bearing walls.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
25/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0359

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
29/04/2019

Location:
35 Merlin Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8QE

Proposal:
Addition of upstairs bathroom.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
29/04/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0360

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
29/04/2019

Location:
7 Thwaite Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 1AL

Proposal:
Removal of load bearing wall between sitting
and dining room.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
29/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0195

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
04/03/2019

Location:
66 Crellin Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 1DS

Proposal:
New shop front, rear metal stairs and new
timber first floor.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
18/04/2019

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0348

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
24/04/2019

Location:
16 West Row Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0HW

Proposal:
Fit velux roof windows, remove two walls and
fit replacement windows and door

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
25/04/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0205

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
06/03/2019

Location:
16 Park Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3AE

Proposal:
Two storey side extension and single storey
front extension.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
18/04/2019

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

BOOK 1 FOR DECISION 
 

21st May 2019 
 

 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen,  
 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Planning Manager 
 

Page 1 of 55

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



B31/2019/0227 
Planning Committee  

21
st
 May 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B31/2019/0227 Date Valid :14/03/2019 

Address : Hayeswater Drive Cemetery Hill 
Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 

Case Officer : Charles Wilton 

Proposal : Application for a non-material amendment following grant of planning 
permission 2016/0126 (erection of 13 dwellings) to allow the erection of a vertically 
boarded fence in place of the proposed wall and the replacement of an existing wall with 
a fence 

Ward : Dalton South Ward 
Parish : Dalton Town with Newton Parish 
Council 

Applicant : MT Wood and Sons Ltd  Agent : Neil Price Limited  

Statutory Date : 11/04/2019 Recommendation : Approval 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy GI9 - Private 

Garden Boundaries 

Summary of Main Issues 

The replacement of a fairly modern brick wall with a timber fence used elsewhere on the 
estate raises no particular planning issues 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 55

Page 50

Agenda Item 8

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B31/2019/0227


Response to Publicity and Consultations; 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Devoke Water Gardens 19, 21, 23, 25, 27, 29, 
Hollygate Road 3, 4, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

1 0 1 0 

Summary of responses; 

No need for a gate to be provided. 

Query over the responsibilities for future maintenance. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Dalton With Newton Town Council 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

No organisation responses recorded 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The application relates to a building site consisting of 13 houses. These are accessed 
via a cul de sac of Cemetery Hill 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Application for a non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 
2016/0126 (erection of 13 dwellings) to allow the erection of a close boarded fence in place 
of the proposed wall and the replacement of an existing wall with a fence 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 02/1998/0560 Land between Cemetery Hill and Hollygate Road Dalton-in-Furness 
Cumbria LA158LN Residential development (Outline) Appcond 06/10/1998 
 

3.2 1979/0740 Part O.S.Field No. 1322, Adjoining Gibraltar Farm, Dalton-in-Furness Outline 
application for the erection of a bungalow Refused 10/10/1979 

Page 3 of 55

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



 
3.3 1979/0741 Part O.S.Field No. 1259, Adjoining Gibraltar Farm, Dalton-in-Furness Outline 
application for the erection of a bungalow Refused 10/10/1979 
 
3.4 1980/0693 Part O.S.Field 1259, Adjoining Gibralter Farm, Dalton-in-Furness Outline 
application for erection of a bungalow Refused 15/10/1980 
 
3.5 1984/0362 Former Blair's Factory, Cemetery Hill, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use from 
light industrial factory to workshop, offices and storage for building contractor Appcond 
04/07/1984 
 
3.6 1984/0431 Former Blair's Factory, Cemetery Hill, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use of 
industrial buildings to office with ancillary car park Appcond 15/08/1984 
 
3.7 1984/0481 Former Blair's Factory, Cemetery Hill, Dalton-in-Furness Erection of new 
boundary fence to Cemetery Hill elevation, internal yard fencing and gate Approved 
06/07/1984 
 
3.8 1987/0038 Anticross Industrial Estate, Cemetery Hill, Dalton-in-Furness Change of use 
from light industrial to builders merchants and caretakers flat and formation of car park 
Appcond 15/04/1987 
 
3.9 1990/0879 Antycross Industrial Estate, Hollygate Road, Dalton-in-Furness Outline 
Planning Permission - Erection of a vehicle maintenance workshop Appcond 29/11/1990 
 
3.10 22/1999/0463 land between Cemetry Hill And Hollygate Road Dalton-In-Furness 
Cumbria Approval of Reserved Matters for the erection of 12 houses, 2 bungalows and 
associated infrastructure, including 7 garages, access road and car park Appcond 
18/08/1999 
 
3.11 42/2005/1156 New Housing site at Builders Yard Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness 
Cumbria Residential development for the erection of 20 dwellings Condition Precedent 
15/10/2007 
 
3.12 50/1991/0833 F.B.M. Building Supplies, Hollygate Road, Dalton-in-Furness Installation 
of new customer access doors including ramped access Approved 19/12/1991 
 
3.13 B07/2016/0126 Hayeswater Drive Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Residential 
Development of 14 Dwellings APPCOND 13/06/2017 
 
3.14 B07/2018/0407 Hayeswater Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Application to vary 
conditions 2 & 15 of planning permission B07/2016/0126 (development of 13 dwellings) to 
allow for revised drainage layout APPCOND 19/06/2018 
 
3.15 B13/2009/1222 Cemetery Hill Site Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Erection of 
four semi-detached dwellings (retrospective). Appcond 22-AUG-2011 
 
 

Page 4 of 55

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



 

3.16 B13/2013/0390 Land at Hayeswater Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Application for 
Outline Planning Permission with all matters reserved for the development of six, 3 
bedroom semi-detached dwellings and one, 4 bedroom detached dwelling with direct 
access from existing road built to a adoptive specification with applica Appcond 07-AUG-
2013 
 
3.17 B28/2008/0452 Cemetery Hill Site Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria 
Submission of ground investigation report as required by Condition No. 2 of Planning 
Permission 05/1156 DISPOSED 21-SEP-2011 
 
3.18 B28/2009/0803 New Housing site at Builders Yard Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness 
Cumbria Submission of 'access road' details on phase 1 of development as required by 
condition no. 5 of planning permission 2005/1156. DISPOSED 21-SEP-2011 
 
3.19 B28/2017/0435 Street Record Hayeswater Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Application 
for approval of details reserved by Condition No.3 (Site Investigation), No.4 (Remediation 
Scheme), No.5 (Construction Method Statement), No.6 (Tree Protection Plan) and No.9 
(Methodology for import of materials) for planning permission B07/2016/0126 (Residential 
Development of 13 dwellings) APPCOND 30/08/2017 
 
3.20 B28/2018/0037 Hayeswater Drive Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Discharge 
of conditions No 11 (Highway construction details), No. 13 (Landscaping Scheme), No. 14 
(Exceedance Route Measures) and No. 15 (Foul and Surface Water Drainage Details and 
Phasing0 for planning permission B07/2016/0126 Residential Development of 13 Dwellings 
APPCOND 26/09/2018 

4. Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

Saved Policies 

4.1 The application relates part of the southern boundary of the Hayes Water Drive 
development. This is defined mainly by a brick wall. Also some metal security gates dating 
from when the site was in commercial use. 

4.2 The approved plan showed the wall to be retained and extended to replace the security 
gates which adjoin the head of a private road serving 3 & 4 Hollygate Road. The applicant 
is seeking to amend the approved plan to show most of the wall replaced by a timber fence. 
This is shown to be a vertically boarded fence with a small gap between each board. Space 
is shown under the fence to accord with policy G19 of the emerging Local Plan. This states 
as follows: 

 

 

Page 5 of 55

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Policy GI9: Private Garden Boundaries 

Development proposals will need to incorporate specific measures to assist the local 
migration of wildlife between the side and rear garden boundaries of dwellings. 
Proposals that actively promote accessibility and habitat for wildlife will be 
encouraged. Proposals that would inhibit such movement will be resisted 

Justification 

This policy has been included in response to recent reports relating to a decline of 
hedgehogs and Bees in particular and the need to redress the situation 

4.3 A representation has been received from a resident in Hollygate Road raising two points. 
One expressing concern were a gate to be installed and two, querying future responsibility 
for the fence. I have replied explaining that no gates are proposed and that the fence is to 
be transferred to the owners of the new houses. 

4.4 An unusual aspect of the proposal is that part of the wall forms the rear boundary of 
back gardens to 19 to 21 Devoke Water Gardens and which the applicant intends to 
demolish and replace with the fence. I have queried the applicant's ownership and who has 
explained that the wall was included in the sale of the development land. The Council's 
consent is not required for its demolition. 

4.5 In planning terms the wall has no particular value being relatively modern and of which 
the applicant has explained has structural issues. The proposed fence is the same type as 
has been used elsewhere on the estate having been previously approved as the main 
boundary treatment on this site. The fence will be slightly taller than the wall - 1.8m as 
opposed to typically 1.4m and should as a result provide improved privacy but with little 
impact upon sun-lighting levels to the properties. 

4.6 Finally the full extent of the replacement fence was not appreciated when the application 
was received with residents in Devoke Water not notified until the 30/04/19. However this 
still allows adequate time for representations. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The same style of the proposed fence has been used elsewhere on the site and is 
considered to be an acceptable replacement for the wall in planning terms. 

6. Recommendation 

That the non material amendment be Approved subject to the following conditions; 

1. The approved fence shall be erected in accordance with the drawings hereby approved: 
Fence Detail ref P109 Revision A and Site Layout Plan Ref 3296-P102 Revision H. 

Page 6 of 55

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



 

  
 
 

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

  

  

  

  

Page 7 of 55

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



4

9

1

2

5

3

6

7

8

13

12

H

a

y

e

s

w

a

t
e

r
 
D

r
i
v

e

C

e

m

e

t
e

r
y

 
H

i
l
l

H

o

l

l

y

g

a

t

e

 

R

o

a

d

2

.
4

 
x

 
7

0

m

 
v

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

Existing access

tarmac

2

.
4

 
x

 
4

5

m

 
v

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

tarmac

pavers

tarmac

5

0

0

4

8

0

0

R

1

2

5

0

0

2

.
4

 
x

 
7

0

m

 
v

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

New timber fence

to provide

boundary with

Devoke Water

Gardens

2

.
4

 
x

 
4

5

m

 
v

i
s

i
b

i
l
i
t
y

 
s

p

l
a

y

12B

Speed table

s

l
i
d

i
n

g

 
d

o

o

r
s

pavers

Rear gardens to

plots 10 & 11 with

1.8m timber fence

pavers

s

l
i
d

i
n

g

 
d

o

o

r
s

pavers

pavers

pavers

pavers

4

8

0

0

1.8
m

 ti
m

ber f
ence

tarmac

R

1

2

5

0

0

1.8m timber

fence between

rear gardens

2

0

0

0

2

4

0

0

0

1

.

8

m

 

t

i

m

b

e

r

 

f

e

n

c

e

 

i

n

s

i

d

e

 

o

f

 

e

x

i

s

t

i

n

g

f

e

n

c

e

 

a

t

 

f

i

n

i

s

h

e

d

 

g

r

o

u

n

d

 

l

e

v

e

l

3C

13B

1U

15U

14U

17U

4C

2U

16U

G5C

G18U

9C

10

11B

6U

G10C

11

7B

G8C

garden P9

pavers

(extra parking P9)

Existing trees note

subject to TPO

Rear gardens to plot 12 with

1.8m timber fence - terracing

to garden at lower level

2

0

0

0

4

8

0

0

5

0

0

Area of land outside

applicants ownership

adjoing existing footway

Existing footway

Wall returns at end of footway

Footpath link to Holygate Road

- full details to be agreed with

Cumbria Highways including

access onto Hollygate Road

Refuge

collection

point 1

Refuge

collection

point 2

pavers

4

8

0

0

6

3

3

6

6

3

1

8

4

8

0

0

footpath

footpath

1

.
8

m

 
t
i
m

b

e

r
 
f
e

n

c

e

1

.
8

m

 
t
i
m

b

e

r
 
f
e

n

c

e

Sheet Revision

Drawn

Title

Project

NEIL PRICE LIMITED

No. Date

Checked Date

The copyright of this drawing is vested in Neil Price Ltd and must not be copied

or reproduced, either directly or indirectly without the consent of the company.

Responsibility is not accepted for errors made by others in scaling from this

drawing - All construction information should be taken from figured dimensions

only.

All heights, levels, sizes and dimensions to be checked on site and any

discrepancies be notified prior to any manufacture or commencement of works.

Project Ref Scale

Revision

A1

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

HAYESWATER DRIVE

DALTON-IN-FURNESS

SITE LAYOUT PLAN

3296-P102

1:250 @ A1 / 1:500 @ A33296

21st December 2015TC

PLANNING

0

1 : 250

2.5 5 7.5 10 12.5

METRES

PLOT SCHEDULE

PLOT No TYPE DESCRIPTION

INTERNAL

FLOOR

AREA (sqft)

QUANT.

1, 4, 10 & 11
TYPE 1 DETACHED 4 BED WITH INTEGRAL GARAGE 1416

4

2 & 3 TYPE 2

DETACHED 3 BED 1068 2

5 & 8 TYPE 2A

SEMI-DETACHED 3 BED 1151 2

6 & 7 TYPE 3 SEMI-DETACHED 4 BED WITH INTEGRAL STORE 1382 2

9 TYPE 4

DETACHED 4 BED WITH ATTACHED GARAGE 1130 1

13 TYPE 4A

DETACHED 4 BED 1171 1

12 TYPE 6

DETACHED 3 BED 1136 1

TOTAL UNITS:

13

MATERIALS

ROOFS

Grey concrete roofing tiles

WALLS

White wet dash render

Smooth grey rendered plinth below DPC

Precast concrete quoins, heads and cills

WINDOWS

White uPVC double glazed units.

DOORS

White uPVC units to match windows

RAINWATER GOODS

Black uPVC gutters and downpipes.

FASCIAS, BARGEBOARDS AND SOFFITS

White uPVC

HARDSTANDING

Block or tarmac pavers to roads

Block pavers to drives

Concrete pavers to paths and patios

WALLS AND FENCES

Brick faced walls

Vertically boarded timber fences

H

A 05/05/16 Tree survey added

B 02/08/16 Plots reduced from 14 to 13, TPO trees added

C 28/09/16 Service strip updated

D 27/03/17 Footpath link added

E 12/05/17 Hayeswater drive widened to 4.8m

F 12/10/18 Plot 12 Revised

G 19/02/19 Plot 12 fencing updated

H 20/02/19 Fencing layout updated

2019/0227

Page 8 of 55

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 8



2019/0227

Page 9 of 55

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 8



B18/2019/0256 
Planning Committee 

21
st
 May 2019   

  

  

Application Number : B18/2019/0256 Date Valid : 25/03/2019 

Address : Harding Rise House, Harding 
Rise, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 
2TF 

Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Removal of condition no. 5 (Main entrance incorporated into building 
frontage onto Harding Rise) from planning application B07/2017/0790 (Proposed 
new office building to provide managed office space together with associated 
access road and parking) to introduce main entrance into the South South West 
elevation. 

Ward : Barrow Island Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr S Solsby, Barrow 
Borough Council  

Agent : Mr B Shiach, Mellor Architects  

Statutory Date : 20/05/2019 
Recommendation : Condition 5 can 
be removed  

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D21 
2. Barrow Port Area Action Plan - Policy BP23 
3. Barrow Port Area Action Plan - Policy BPSV1 
4. Barrow Port Area Action Plan - Policy BPSV2 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - 
Council’s commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - 
Sustainable Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - 
Design 

 

Page 10 of 55

Page 58

Agenda Item 8

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B18/2019/0256


Summary of Main Issues 

This application is submitted on behalf of the Borough Council and so falls to be 
determined by Planning Committee. 

Condition 5 of the previous planning consent required the main entrance to be 
incorporated into the building's frontage onto Harding Rise. The applicants have now 
applied to remove this condition and the main issue is whether this is acceptable in 
design terms and in relation to encouraging pedestrian friendly developments. 

  

Non Material Considerations 

None. 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

No neighbours listed as consulted. 
  

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

 
Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
   
List of Organisation Responses 

No organisation responses recorded 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11 of 55

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site comprises a 0.8ha site on the Waterfront Business Park. It is 
the first plot on the left on entering the site and which looks across Ramsey Way to 
Walney Channel. The site, along with two other plots, has recently been remediated 
by the County Council under permission 2017/9005 and left as hard surfacing. To 
the rear of the site is a steep slope with small trees/scrub with a car park and then 
housing beyond. The next plot along Ramsay Way accommodates BAE's logistics 
centre. 

2.Proposal Details 

2.1 This application seeks the removal of condition no. 5  from planning consent 
B07/2017/0790 (Proposed new office building to provide managed office space 
together with associated access road and parking) to introduce the main entrance 
into the South South West elevation. 

Condition 5 is worded as follows : 

"Notwithstanding the documents approved under condition 2 above no development 
shall take place until details showing a main entrance incorporated into the building's 
frontage onto Harding Rise have been submitted to and approved in writing with the 
planning authority. The development shall only proceed in accordance with the 
details approved under this condition. 
 

Reason 
 
The submitted details show the main access into the building at the rear and through 
the car park. This arrangement is not considered to adequately address the 
requirements of saved policy BP23 which requires developments to respond 
positively to the public realm or policies which seek to encourage journeys other than 
by the private motor car." 

2.2 The agent has submitted the following information to justify the removal of the 
condition: 

"1.    It is anticipated the majority of pedestrians will approach the site by coming 
down Harding Rise. 

It is however acknowledged that there could be relatively small numbers that 
could approach from the south east of Harding Rise.  The nearest bus stop to 
the site is located at the junction of Ramsden Dock Road and Michaelson 
Road, therefore people travelling by bus to the site will approach the site from 
the west of Harding Rise. 

 

Page 12 of 55

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



Access to the site for all including pedestrians will be via the current access 
point and will be a shorter distance for pedestrians when approaching the 
building from the top of Harding Rise, rather than going via a separate 
pedestrian access point further down Harding Rise.   The current proposed 
pedestrian access point is adjacent to the vehicle access and the building; it is 
not through the car park. 

2.       The building layout and elevations have been designed to exploit the 
views out from the site across the Walney Channel and beyond. This is in line 
with the Design Guidance set out in the Barrow Port Area Action Plan. 

The introduction of an entrance on the south/south west elevation would 
eliminate this view from a section of the elevations. 

3.       The introduction of a main entrance in south/south west elevation would 
create an imbalance in the elevations’ composition.  It would also mean a 
reduction of valuable useable internal floor area. 

4.       The prevailing weather comes from the south west across the Walney 
Channel straight at the south/south west elevation of the building.  The 
introduction of an entrance in this elevation facing the prevailing weather 
would be detrimental to protecting the building from the weather, which is 
often severe and which is highlighted in the Barrow Port Area Action Plan. In 
order to try and mitigate the impact of the weather an internal draft lobby 
would have to be introduced which would increase the loss of valuable 
useable internal space. 

5.       The main entrance to the building which is located on the rear elevation 
(north/north east) is protected from  the  prevailing  weather.    However,  it 
 also  provides  a  focal  and  building orientation point into the building for 
everybody using or visiting the building by whichever mode of transport is 
used.  The introduction of another entrance would detract from the current 
very clear access point to the building.  It would also potentially confuse 
navigation of the building, particularly for visitors. 

6.       The site perimeter is secured by a palisade fence which has one clear 
access point.   The introduction of an exclusive pedestrian access point, 
which would be only a short distance from the existing access would create 
an additional security risk together with additional management of the site. 

7.       Due to the level change between the footpath on Harding Rise and the 
finished ground floor level of the building being just over one metre a ramped 
access together with a stepped access would have to be provided.  In order to 
do this a ramp of approximately twenty metres would have to be provided. 
This is based on a 1 in 20 gradient as set out in the Access for All Section of 
the Barrow Port Area Action Plan." 

  

Page 13 of 55

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



3.Relevant History 

 
3.1 B08/2017/0790 Proposed development site at Harding Rise, Barrow-in-Furness, 
Cumbria. Proposed new office building to provide managed office space together 
with associated access road and parking. APPCOND 06/03/2018. 
 
  

4.Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

4.1 The National Planning Policy Framework seeks to encourage employment 
creation through appropriate development having regard to sustainable means of 
transport, good quality design and supporting improvements in bio diversity. 

4.2 Paragraph 124 advises: "Good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make 
development acceptable to communities". 

4.3 Paragraph 127 paragraph (f) advises that planning decisions should" create 
places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-
being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users ; and where 
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or 
community cohesion and resilience". 

4.4 Paragraph 130 advises: "Local planning authorities should also seek to ensure 
that the quality of approved development is not materially diminished between 
permission and completion, as a result of changes being made to the permitted 
scheme (for example through changes to approved details such as the materials 
used)." 

Saved Policies 

4.5 Saved policy seeks to achieve good design. 

Emerging Policies 

4.6 A further requirement of policy is that development should create an active 
frontage onto the water front and create a gateway feature into the wider business 
park. 

 

 

 

 

Page 14 of 55

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



4.7 The proposal represents a most substantial development which will add an office 
building of high quality into a most prominent area of the business park. The building 
consists of a central bay with two projecting wings as advised by the PAAP. However 
it does face south rather than north so that its role as a gateway feature is reduced 
being most prominent in views on leaving the site. However this has been the result 
of significant on site constraints (UU sewer infrastructure). The development does 
however deliver a relatively discreet car park located behind, and largely screened 
by, the office building.  

4.8 It was felt with the previous application that the proposal suffered from having its 
main entrance at the rear with sole access via the car park and that pedestrian and 
public transport journeys would be more encouraged if the main access was from the 
front street. It was agreed at the time that, due to a tight funding bid schedule, the 
scheme would be amended to show alternative access and that this would  be 
secured by condition rather than the submission of amended plans. 

4.9 The agent has now submitted a detailed landscaping scheme which is also before 
this committee today, together with the justification set out above for the rear access 
arrangement. The landscaping scheme shows planting around the site frontage with 
cluster planting forming a gateway entrance adjacent the north west; this would be 
the natural desire line for pedestrians. Dedicated pedestrian footpaths are also 
proposed from the site entrance to the property entrance. 

4.10 Given the additional information available now in terms of justification the 
removal of condition 5 seems reasonable. Additionally, Councils can only impose 
any condition where it meets all the tests set out for conditions: necessity, relevance, 
enforceability, precision and reasonableness. With the benefit of the additional 
information it is felt that the condition would no longer satisfy the tests. The 
remaining conditions are re-stated on the new Decision Notice. 

5.Conclusions 

5.1 This proposal represents an important opportunity to secure the planning 
objectives for the Water Front Business Park in the form of a high quality office 
development. This will bring both important economic benefits to the area in terms of 
job creation but also deliver a major flag ship project for the town. 

5.2 Whilst it is regrettable that access is not to be from the front of the building, the 
justification set out by the agent combined with the landscaping details now 
submitted suggest that it would be reasonable to remove the condition. The scale, 
quality and prominence of the site should still deliver a most positive outcome. 

6.Recommendation 
I recommend that Condition 5 of planning decision 2017/0790 can be removed and 
the following conditions are carried forward: 

 1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 
beginning with the date of the original planning permission 2017/0790 dated 
6.3.2018. 

Page 15 of 55

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



Reason 

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and to keep the permission to the terms of the original consent. 

Compliance with Approved Plans 

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the application dated 
6th December 2017 and the following approved plans and documents except where 
modified by conditions below: 

Drawing numbers: K867-P-02, K867-P- 03 rev B, K867-P- 04, K867- P- 05, K867-P- 
06, K867-P- 07, K867-P- 08, K867-P- 09, K867-P-10, K867-P- 11, K867-P- 12. 

Reason 

To ensure the development is only carried out as approved. 

Pre-commencement Conditions 

3. Notwithstanding the documents approved under condition 2 above and in 
particular drawing no K867 - P-03 rev B, development shall not commence until 
details of the car park layout and landscaping including the number of parking 
spaces have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 
The development shall only proceed in accordance with details approved under this 
condition. 

Reason 

The submitted application does not address the policy requirements including saved 
policies BPV1, BP4 or BP23 of the Port Area Action Plan in relation to protected 
species and the need to seek improvements in bio-diversity and as a consequence 
the issues of layout may require amending once these matters have been 
addressed. 

4. The landscaping scheme referred to under condition 3 above shall accord with 
the principles on landscape character under Design Guidelines pursuant to saved 
policy BP23. The scheme shall be submitted on a plan not greater than 1:200 scale 
and shall contain details of numbers, locations, species and sizes of plants to be 
used. All planting and subsequent maintenance shall be to current British 
Standards. The approved scheme shall have been implemented by the end of the 
first planting season following either the substantial completion of the development 
or the beneficial occupation of any part of the development, which ever is the 
sooner. Any trees or shrubs removed, dying being severely damaged or becoming 
seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by the landowner 
with trees or shrubs of a similar size and species to those originally required. The 
landscaping scheme shall otherwise be retained for the life of the development. 

Page 16 of 55

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



Reason 

To ensure that the development respects its coastal location, maximises the 
potential for habitat enhancement including contributing to a network of habitats and 
thereby accords with the saved policies BPSV1 and BP4. 

During Building Works 

5. The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out in 
accordance with principles set out in the submitted Drainage Strategy, ref: 
K34487/01/DS/RH, issue A, dated 6 December 2017, by R.G. Parkins & Partners 
LTD proposing surface water discharging into private surface water drain. Foul 
water should be discharged into the combined sewers near the northern boundary. 
The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason 

To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an undue increase in 
surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding. 

6. Full details of the surface water drainage system shall be submitted to the 
Planning Authority for approval prior to development being commenced. Any 
approved works shall be implemented prior to the development being completed 
and shall be maintained operational thereafter. 

Reason 

In the interests of highway safety and environmental management, to give effect to 
the consultation response of the County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority, to 
support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8. 

7. Clear arrangements must be in place for ongoing maintenance of the drainage 
system over the lifetime of the development. The drainage system must be 
designed for ease of maintenance. In this respect further details shall be submitted 
to the Planning Authority for approval before work commences on site. No work 
shall be commenced until a full specification has been approved. 

Reason 

To ensure flood risk is not increased within the site or elsewhere and to give effect 
to the consultation response of the County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority. 

8. Prior to any beneficial use of the car park referred to under conditions 2 and 3 
above, oil separators shall have been fitted into the surface water drainage scheme 
in accordance with details which have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority. The oil separators shall be maintained and retained for the 
life of the development. 

 

Page 17 of 55

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



Reason 

To give effect to the recommendations within paragraph 3.6 of the Drainage 
Strategy, ref: K34487/01/DS/RH, issue A, dated 6 December 2017, by R.G. Parkins 
& Partners LTD. 

9. Prior  to the  use  of any soils in on site landscaping and which have been 
excavated from the site they shall have first been tested for asbestos accordance 
methodology submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The 
analysis shall then be carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of 
its completion submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 

Reason 

The proposed layout plan refers to existing top soil being excavated and re used in 
landscaping areas. However the Contamination Report ref GC20776/04, section 
5.2.4 confirms that no asbestos testing has been carried out. This is advised at 
section 5.3.1 of the report. 

10. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 
contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed development. A 
suitable methodology for testing this material should be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Planning Authority prior to the soils being imported onto site. The 
methodology should include the sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria 
against which the analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk 
assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then be carried out 
as per the agreed methodology with verification of its completion submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 

Reason 

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property 
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other off-site 
receptors in accordance with Saved policy 056 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006 
and policy C4 in the Local Plan pre submission draft. 

 Continuing Limitation 

11. Notwithstanding any provision contained within either the Town and Country 
(Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) or contained within the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) or any Order 
revoking and re-enacting those Orders within or without modifications, there shall 
be no change from the permitted uses of B1(a) and B1(b) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) to any uses falling within Use 
Class A2 or Use Class C3 of the referred to Order. 

 

Page 18 of 55

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



Reason 

The limitation on uses is to give effect to the requirements of saved policy BP23. 

 
Informative 

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the 
Building Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to 
the Planning Officer before any such works are carried out. 

   

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. 
Please contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further 
advice as to how to proceed. 

   

 

  

  

Page 19 of 55

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



1

.

8

m

 

w

i

d

e

 

f

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

3

.

5

6

,

6

0

0

Ø

3

.

5

8

,

6

0

0

Ø

2

.
5

0

4

5

0

Ø

Dock's Manager's

Office

87no. car

parking spaces.

(9no. disabled)

S
W

/C
o
m

b
in

e
d
 s

e
w

e
r

S
W

/C
om

bin
ed s

ew
er

S

W

/
C

o
m

b
i
n
e
d
 
s
e
w

e
r

S

W

/

C

o

m

b

i

n

e

d

 

s

e

w

e

r

S

W

/

C

o

m

b

i

n

e

d

 

s

e

w

e

r

A

B

P

 

w

a

t

e

r

 

p

i

p

e

W

a
te

r
 p

ip
e

S

W

 

d

r

a

i

n

5
n
o
.

P

T
W

6

n

o

.

 

D

i

s

.

 

P

a

r

k

i

n

g

1
0
n
o
.
 
s
p
a
c
e

B

i
c
y
c
l
e

 
s
t
o

r
a

g

e

s
h

e

l
t
e

r

S

e

r

v

i

c

e

s

 

a

n

d

 

D

r

o

p

O

f

f

 

P

o

i

n

t

 

2

5

m

²

W

a

s

t

e

 

&

 

R

e

c

y

c

l
i
n

g

s

t

o

r

a

g

e

 

c

o

m

p

o

u

n

d

3

m

 

e

a

s

e

m

e

n

t

 

e

a

c

h

 

s

i

d

e

 

o

f

 

p

i

p

e

3
m

 e
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
e
a
c
h
 s

id
e
 o

f 
p
ip

e

S

h
e
lt
e
r
 
o
v
e
r
 
b
ik

e

a
n
d
 
c
y
c
le

 
p
a
r
k
in

g

S

h

e

l
t

e

r

 

o

v

e

r

 

w

a

s

t

e

 

&

r

e

c

y

c

l
i
n

g

 

c

o

m

p

o

u

n

d

1

.

8

m

 

w

i

d

e

 

f

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

1

.
8

m

 
w

i
d

e

 
f
o

o

t
p

a

t
h

1

.

8

m

 

w

i

d

e

 

f

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

R

a

i

s

e

d

 

p

e

d

e

s

t

r

i

a

n

 

c

r

o

s

s

i

n

g

H

A

R

D

I

N

G

 

R

I

S

E

1

.

8

m

 

w

i

d

e

 

f

o

o

t

p

a

t

h

REV. DATE REVISION NOTE

CLIENT

PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE

DATE                                              DRAWN                                                SCALE @ A1

DRAWING NUMBER                                                                                    REV

PRE-TENDER ISSUE

TENDER ISSUE

CONSTRUCTION ISSUE

AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

architects

THIS  DRAWING   AND  ITS   CONTENTS  ARE  AND   REMAIN   THE  COPYRIGHT   OF MELLOR
ARCHITECTS LIMITED. DO NOT SCALE. IF IN DOUBT SEEK CLARIFICATION.

Barrow Borough Council

Plot 1 - Barrow Island
Proposed Development

Proposed Site Plan

Nov 17 GB 1:200

K867-P-03

X

1:200 Proposed Site Plan

N

0 10 20 m

1:200 Scale Bar

52019/0256

Page 20 of 55

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 8



B28/2019/0257 
Planning Committee  

21
st
 May 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B28/2019/0257 Date Valid : 25/03/2019 

Address : Harding Rise House, Harding 
Rise, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 
2TF 

Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Approval of details reserved by condition(s) no. 3 (car park layout and 
landscaping details), no. 4 (landscaping scheme and planting schedule), no. 7(surface 
water drainage) and no. 9 (installation of oil separators) for planning application 
B07/2017/0790 Proposed new office building to provide managed office space together 
with associated access road and parking. 

Ward : Barrow Island Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr S Solsby, Barrow Borough 
Council  

Agent : Mr B Shiach, Mellor Architects  

Statutory Date : 20/05/2019 
Recommendation : The details 
submitted in relation to the conditions 
are agreed. 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D21 
2. Barrow Port Area Action Plan - Policy BP2 
3. Barrow Port Area Action Plan - Policy BP23 
4. Barrow Port Area Action Plan - Policy BP4 
5. Barrow Port Area Action Plan - Policy BPSV1 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS6 - 

Landscaping 

Page 21 of 55

Page 69

Agenda Item 8

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B28/2019/0257


Summary of Main Issues 

Under the current Agreement all Council related applications must be reported to this 
committee. The main issues are whether satisfactory details have been submitted to enable 
agreement that the conditions have been met.  

Non Material Considerations 

None  

Response to Publicity and Consultations 
 
Site notice displayed, no neighbours listed as consulted 
  

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 16/04/2019  

"Cumbria County Council as the Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the application material and has the following comments: 

Condition no. 3 (car park layout and landscaping details) 

(Note: comments only relate to car park layout.  Landscaping is not a matter for 
consideration for the Highway Authority.) 

It is noted that based on the gross floor area of the total office provision (6,951 m²) the 
parking provision according to the CDDG would be around 280 spaces.  Only around 100 
spaces have been provided.  However, it is also noted that the proposed number of full time 
employees is 150 and assuming that typical daily attendance is 2/3 to ¾, and with 
alternative means of transport for a small proportion, then the parking provision should be 
suitable. 

Page 22 of 55

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



 

However, over time, the number of staff may increase and the provision may not be 
adequate in the longer term and this could put parking pressure on adjacent sites.  
However, it is noted that the red line boundary site has significant non developed areas of 
grass etc., which could be used for additional parking subject to future planning 
applications. 

It is also noted that the application forms states 9 spaces for blue badge holders but only 3 
are shown.  The actual requirement based on the overall provision is 4 spaces.  This should 
be rectified on the construction issue plan. 

The Highway Authority therefore have no objection to the parking layout but one of the 
spaces should be allocated as a blue badge space to make a total of 4. 

Condition no. 4 (landscaping scheme and planting schedule), 

This is not a matter for the Highways Authority or LLFA to comment on." 

( In relation to the Highway Authority comments, the agent has responded as follows: 

Regarding the Highway Authority comments I think the situation has become confused. The 
area of the building is 2317m², not 6951m². I suspect this area has been picked up from the 
Planning Application which was submitted via the Planning Portal, which identifies the area 
as 2317m². However, when you fill out the form with the areas for the Use Classes it totals 
the area against each Use Class, as if each Use Class has a separate area, when in reality 
the Use Classes apply to the 2317m². Hope that makes sense! 

During the application process a question was raised by CCC / Charles Wilton about the 
parking & after discussion the basis of the parking was calculated as follows, which was our 
response at the time: 

 The CCC 2017 Guidance which we have been told to work to by the Planning Dept 
stipulates 1No car space per 25m² of GIFA, therefore 2317m² divided by 25 equals 
93No spaces. For the Disabled   Parking spaces the guidance stipulates 3% of the 
standard spaces, therefore 93x3% equals 3No spaces. For the Motorcycles the 
guidance stipulates 5% of the standard spaces, therefore 93x5% equals 5No. For 
Pedal cycles the guidance stipulates 10% of the standard spaces, therefore 10%x93 
equals 10No] 

In view of the above I don't think there is a need to revise the current layout.") 

 

 

 

 

Page 23 of 55

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 16/04/2019  

"Condition no. 7(surface water drainage ) & Condition no. 9 (installation of oil 
separators) for planning application 

The design of the surface water drainage network is based on a free unrestricted flow to the 
main system on the Waterfront Development which discharges into the dock.  The receiving 
system has been designed to take unrestricted flow so this design is suitable.  It is also 
noted that the system includes the necessary silt trap and oil separator to manage water 
quality as required. 

The LLFA therefore has no objection to the surface water drainage proposals and are of the 
opinion that Conditions 7 and 9 can be discharged." 

United Utilities 18/04/2019 
 
"Further to our review of the submitted documents, Drawing of Drainage Layout, ref: 
K34487/A1/03. 
 
Revision B - Dated 06/12/17 proposing surface water discharging into private surface water 
drain owned by Cumbria County Council, United Utilities recommends that drainage 
conditions are discharged.  We recommend the Lead Local Flood Authority along with any 
other statutory consultees, are also consulted on the proposal. 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site comprises a 0.8 Ha site on the Waterfront Business Park which 
looks across Ramsey Way towards Walney Channel. The site, along with two other plots, 
was recently remediated by the County Council under permission 2017/9005 and has been 
left hard surfaced. To the rear of the site is a steep slope with small trees/ low level scrub, 
with a car park and then housing beyond. The next plot along Ramsay Way accommodates 
BAE's logistics centre. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Members may recall that planning consent was granted in March 2018 for the erection of 
an office building to provide managed office space for B1(a) and B1(b) units. Since the 
applicant is the Borough Council this application  is required to be  determined by the 
Planning Committee. 

2.2 Various planning conditions were attached to the original consent and the current 
application relates to the approval of details reserved by condition(s) no. 3 (car park layout 
and landscaping details), no.4 (landscaping scheme and planting schedule), no.7(surface 
water drainage) and no.9 (installation of oil separators) of planning application 
B07/2017/0790. 

 

Page 24 of 55

Page 72

Agenda Item 8



2.3 The relevant conditions were worded as follows: 

"3. Notwithstanding the documents approved under condition 2 above and in particular 
drawing no K867 - P-03 rev B, development shall not commence until details of the car park 
layout and landscaping including the number of parking spaces have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The development shall only proceed in 
accordance with details approved under this condition. 
 
Reason 
 
The submitted application do not address policy requirements including saved policies 
BPV1, BP4 or BP23 of the Port Area Action Plan in relation to protected species and the 
need to seek improvements in bio-diversity and as a consequence the issues of layout may 
require amending once these matters have been addressed. 

4. The landscaping scheme referred to under condition 3 above shall accord with the 
principles on landscape character under Design Guidelines pursuant to saved policy BP23. 
The scheme shall be submitted on a plan not greater than 1:200 scale and shall contain 
details of numbers, locations, species and sizes of plants to be used. All planting and 
subsequent maintenance shall be to current British Standards. The approved scheme shall 
have been implemented by the end of the first planting season following either the 
substantial completion of the development or the beneficial occupation of any part of the 
development, which ever is the sooner. Any trees or shrubs removed, dying being severely 
damaged or becoming seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by 
the landowner with trees or shrubs of a similar size and species to those originally required. 
The landscaping scheme shall otherwise be retained for the life of the development. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development respects its coastal location, maximises the potential for 
habitat enhancement including contributing to a network of habitats and thereby accords 
with the saved policies BPSV1 and BP4 

7. Full details of the surface water drainage system shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval prior to development being commenced. Any approved works shall 
be implemented prior to the development being completed and shall be maintained 
operational thereafter. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of highway safety and environmental management, to give effect to the 
consultation response of the County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority, to support 
Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8. 

9. Prior to any beneficial use of the car park referred to under conditions 2 and 3 above, oil 
separators shall have been fitted into the surface water drainage scheme in accordance 
with details which have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority. The oil separators shall be maintained and retained for the life of the 
development. 
 

Page 25 of 55

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



Reason 
 
To give effect to the recommendations within paragraph 3.6 of the Drainage Strategy, ref: 
K34487/01/DS/RH, issue A, dated 6 December 2017, by R.G. Parkins & Partners ltd" 

3. Relevant History 
 

3.1 B08/2017/0790 Proposed development site at Harding Rise Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 
Proposed new office building to provide managed office space together with associated 
access road and parking. APPCOND 06/03/2018 

4. Officer Assessment 

National Guidance 

4.1 The National Planning Policy Framework seeks to encourage employment creation 
through appropriate development having regard to sustainable means of transport, good 
quality design and supporting improvements in bio diversity. A recently added paragraph 
(130) advises that "Local planning authorities should also seek to ensure that the quality of 
approved development is not materially diminished between permission and completion, as 
a result of changes being made to the permitted scheme (for example through changes to 
approved details such as the materials used)" and this gives added weight to the aim of 
achieving good design.  

Saved Policies 

4.2 The relevant saved policies were considered as part of the previous application and 
relate to enhancing the natural environment (BPV1 and BP4) and design guidance (BP23 
and D21) 

Emerging Policies 

4.3 Emerging policies relate to design (DS5) landscaping and bio-diversity enhancement 
(DS6). 

Condition 3 

4.4 This condition required details of the car parking layout and landscaping including the 
number of parking spaces to be submitted. Around 100 parking spaces have been 
provided, including dedicated blue badge spaces however, there are areas of undeveloped 
land that could also be set out for any future increased demand. The Highway Authority are 
satisfied with the proposals subject to the provision of an additional blue badge space. 
However, the agent has pointed out that this requirement was based on an incorrect site 
area measurement and as such three spaces appear to be adequate. (Given that the 
Borough Council is the applicant, the number of spaces could be increased in the future if 
demand requires.) 

 

Page 26 of 55

Page 74

Agenda Item 8



Condition 4 

4.5 This condition required a detailed landscaping scheme to be submitted in accordance 
with the design guidance in Policy BP23. The preference is for informal planting 
arrangements of shrubs, grasses and herbaceous plants appropriate to the coastal location 
and providing habitat where possible. Grass is proposed around the front boundary with 
groups of trees at irregular intervals and hedgerows are proposed to the northern and 
eastern boundaries. Landscaping is also proposed within the car park to break up areas of 
hard surfacing, including ornamental grasses and shrub planting. Pine trees are proposed 
adjacent to the site entrance to from a landscaped gateway, with a mixture of Pine, Silver 
Birch, Rowan and Alder throughout the site. The proposed landscaping should result in an 
attractive development as well as  bio-diversity enhancement. 

Condition 7 

4.6 This condition required full details of the surface water drainage system to be agreed. 
Details have been submitted which show a surface water drainage network  based on a 
free unrestricted flow to the main system on the Waterfront Development which discharges 
into the dock.  The receiving system has been designed to take unrestricted flow so this 
design is suitable and the LLFA and U.U have raised no concerns.  

Condition 9 

4.7 This condition required details of the oil separators in relation to the surface water 
drainage proposals to be agreed. Full details have been submitted  of the necessary  silt 
trap and oil separator to manage water quality as required. The LLFA are happy with the 
proposals and raise no objection. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The submitted details in relation to car parking, landscaping, drainage and oil separators 
are considered to be acceptable in relation to the requirements of the conditions. 

6. Recommendation 
  
Satisfactory details in relation to the conditions have been provided. The conditions can be 
partially discharged since on-going monitoring is required to ensure that the development 
proceeds on the approved basis. 
  
Schedule of approved documents 
Conditions 3 and 4: 
Plant Schedule reference IT(18)090_SCH001-T1 prepared by Iteriad 
Technical Package Issue for landscaping Reference IT(18)090 dated 04.02.2019 prepared 
by Iteriad 
Wider Site Planting Plan Drawing No. IT(18)090_(0-)L001 Revision T1 prepared by Iteriad 
Central Area Detailed Planting Plan Drawing No. IT(18)090_(0-)L002 Revision T1 prepared 
by Iteriad 
Typical Planting Details Drawing No. IT(18)090_(0-)L003 Revision T1 prepared by Iteriad 
  
 

Page 27 of 55

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



Condition 7: 
Drainage Layout Drawing No. K34487/A1/03 Revision B prepared by RG Parkins 
Surface Water Schedules and Longitudinal Sections Drawing No. K34487/A1/04 Revision B 
prepared by RG Parkins 
General Drainage Details Drawing No. K34487/A1/05 Revision B prepared by RG Parkins 
  
Condition 9: 
General Drainage Details Drawing No. K34487/A1/05 Revision B prepared by RG Parkins 

 

  

  

Page 28 of 55

Page 76

Agenda Item 8



Bollard

Sand

Sand

S

h

i

n

g

l

e

S

l
i
p

w

a

y

S

l

o

p

i

n

g

 

m

a

s

o

n

r

y

M

e

a

n

 

H

i

g

h

 

W

a

t

e

r

S

h

i

n

g

l

e

Shingle

Bollards

Barrow Island

ESS

of Posts

Line

W

A

T

T

1

1

T

E

R

R

A

C

E

S

M

S

l

o

p

i

n

g

 

m

a

s

o

n

r

y

T

r

a

c

k

3

8

2

3

J

A

M

E

S

Barrow Island

7.4m

Office

Dock's Manager's

R

A

M

S

D

E

N

 

D

O

C

K

 

R

O

A

D

4

1

4

3

3

3

T

r
a

c

k

S

l

o

p

i

n

g

 

m

a

s

o

n

r

y

S

l

o

p

i

n

g

 

m

a

s

o

n

r

y

Mast(Telecommunication)

Shingle

1

St John's

Vicarage

Boat Yard

S

h

i

n

g

l

e

Bollard

319400m 319500m 319600m 319700m

467600m

467700m

467800m

467900m

468000m

©Crown Copyright and database rights 2017 OS 100019980

H

a

r

d

i

n

g

 

R

i

s

e

REV. REVISION NOTEDATE

THIS DRAWING AND ITS CONTENTS ARE AND REMAIN THE COPYRIGHT OF MELLOR ARCHITECTS LIMITED. DO NOT SCALE.
 IF IN DOUBT SEEK CLARIFICATION.

PROJECT SCALE @ A3DRAWNDATE

DRAWING NUMBERDRAWING TITLE REV

PRE-TENDER ISSUE CONSTRUCTION ISSUETENDER ISSUE AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

Barrow Borough Council
Plot 1 - Barrow Island - Proposed Development

Site Location

Dec '17 GGB 1/1250

K867-P-01
X

N

0 100m

1:1250 Scale Bar

50

2019/0257

Page 29 of 55

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



R

a

i

s

e

d

 

p

e

d

e

s

t

r

i

a

n

 

c

r

o

s

s

i

n

g

H

a

r

d

i

n

g

 

R

i

s

e

.

Dock's Manager's

Office

Native Hedgerow 191Lm:
458Nr Crataegus monogyna (40%)
287Nr Prunus spinosa (25%)
229Nr Rosa rugosa (20%)
172Nr Viburnum opulus (15%)

3Nr Alnus glutinosa

3Nr Sorbus aucuparia

1Nr Pinus nigra

1Nr Pinus nigra

1Nr Betula pendula

1Nr Betula pendula

2Nr Betula pendula

1Nr Pinus nigra

1Nr Pinus nigra

2Nr Pinus nigra

1Nr Betula pedula

1Nr Pinus nigra

1Nr Pinus nigra

1Nr Pinus nigra

2Nr Betula pendula

1Nr Pinus nigra

2Nr Betula pendula

3Nr Alnus glutinosa

2Nr Betula pendula

1Nr Pinus nigra

1Nr Pinus nigra

11Nr Betula pendula

Proposed Specimen Tree
Standard Nursery Stock

Proposed Pine Tree
Advanced Nursery Stock

KEY

Proposed General Purpose Grass Mix
Ref A19: 2255m2

Proposed Tussock Grass Mix
Ref EM10: 1300m2

Proposed Ornamental Grasses
See Planting Plan L002 for details

Proposed Native Boundary Hedgerow
Double staggered row

Boundary Fence to Architects Detail

Proposed Specimen Ornamental Grasses
See Planting Plan L002 for details

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE 

SCALE DRAWN BY DATE

CLIENT

REVISIONJOB/DRAWING NUMBER

REV DETAILS

CHECKED

DATEBY

DRAWN 

BY

STATUS

CHECKED

NOTES:

DO NOT SCALE. Use figured dimensions only. The contractor

is requested to check all dimensions before the work is put in

hand. Copyright of this drawing belongs solely to Iteriad Ltd ©.

This drawing must only be used for the purpose for which it is

supplied and its contents must not be reproduced for any

purpose without written permission. Areas indicated, or areas

calculated from this drawing should be used for valuation

purposes or as the basis for development contracts. Iteriad Ltd

is a limited liability company registered in England and Wales.

Number 7966573

DRAWING RECORD

Plot 1 - Barrow Island Office Dev

WIDER SITE PLANTING PLAN

1:250@A1 AP 29.01.18

IT(18)090_(0-)L001 T1

Stage 4 Technical design

N

First issue for comment
AP

KH
T1

29.01.19

8 6 4 2 0 5 1010

SCALE BAR

15m

NOTES:
To be read with Landscape Architects Drawings:
IT(18)090_(0-)L002 Central Area Detailed Planting Plan &
IT(18)090_(0-)L003 Typical Details

To be read with Planting Schedule IT(18)090_SCH001_T1

To be read with NBS Specification

2019/0257

Page 30 of 55

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 8



Proposed Specimen Tree
Standard Nursery Stock

Proposed Pine Tree
Advanced Nursery Stock

KEY

Proposed General Purpose Grass Mix
Ref A19

Proposed Tussock Grass Mix Ref EM10

Proposed Ornamental Grass,
Herbaceous & Shrub Planting

Proposed Native Boundary Hedgerow
Double staggered row, See Plan L001 for details

Boundary Fence to Architects Detail

Proposed Specimen Shrubs &
Ornamental Grasses

R

a

i

s

e

d

 

p

e

d

e

s

t

r

i

a

n

 

c

r

o

s

s

i

n

g

1Nr Cortaderia selloana

38Nr Carex grayi

135Nr Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster'

90Nr Molinia caerulea 'Dauerstrahl'

27Nr Pennisetum alopecuroides

1Nr Cortaderia selloana

42Nr Carex grayi

42Nr Carex grayi

1Nr Cortaderia selloana

1Nr Miscanthus sinensis 'Gracillimus'

45Nr Carex grayi

1Nr Miscanthus sinensis 'Gracillimus'

27Nr Carex grayi

18Nr Pennisetum alopecuroides

39Nr Molinia caerulea 'Dauerstrahl'

62Nr Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster'

145Nr Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster'

1N Panicum virgatum 'Northwind'

90Nr Molinia caerulea 'Dauerstrahl'

44Nr Pennisetum alopecuroides

135Nr Molinia caerulea 'Dauerstrahl'

147Nr Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster'

83Nr Carex grayi

165Nr Stipa tenuissima
31Nr Pennisetum alopecuroides

51Nr Molinia caerulea 'Poul Peterson'

1N Panicum virgatum 'Northwind'

1N Panicum virgatum 'Northwind'

75Nr Molinia caerulea 'Poul Peterson'

18Nr Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster'

60Nr Pennisetum alopecuroides

33Nr Molinia caerulea 'Poul Peterson'

33Nr Pennisetum setaceum 'Purpureum'

38Nr Pennisetum setaceum 'Purpureum'

44Nr Pennisetum setaceum 'Purpureum'

22Nr Pennisetum setaceum 'Purpureum'

1Nr Cortaderia selloana

124Nr Pennisetum alopecuroides

23Nr Pennisetum alopecuroides

15Nr Carex grayi

9Nr Carex grayi

1Nr Cortaderia selloana

119Nr Pennisetum alopecuroides

1Nr Miscanthus sinensis 'Gracillimus'

1Nr Miscanthus sinensis 'Gracillimus'

15Nr Carex grayi

17Nr Carex grayi

1N Panicum virgatum 'Northwind'

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE 

SCALE DRAWN BY DATE

CLIENT

REVISIONJOB/DRAWING NUMBER

REV DETAILS

CHECKED

DATEBY

DRAWN 

BY

STATUS

CHECKED

NOTES:

DO NOT SCALE. Use figured dimensions only. The contractor

is requested to check all dimensions before the work is put in

hand. Copyright of this drawing belongs solely to Iteriad Ltd ©.

This drawing must only be used for the purpose for which it is

supplied and its contents must not be reproduced for any

purpose without written permission. Areas indicated, or areas

calculated from this drawing should be used for valuation

purposes or as the basis for development contracts. Iteriad Ltd

is a limited liability company registered in England and Wales.

Number 7966573

DRAWING RECORD

Plot 1 - Barrow Island Office Dev

CENTRAL AREA DETAILED 

PLANTING PLAN

1:125@A1 AP 29.01.18

IT(18)090_(0-)L002 T1

Stage 4 Technical design

N

NOTES:
To be read with Landscape Architects Drawings:
IT(18)090_(0-)L001 Wider Site Planting Plan &
IT(18)090_(0-)L003 Typical Details
To be read with Planting Schedule IT(18)090_SCH001_T1
To be read with NBS Specification
Refer to drg L001 for trees and hedge information.

SCALE BAR

4 3 2 1 0 2.5 5m5

First issue for comment
AP

KH
T1

29.01.19

2019/0257

Page 31 of 55

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 8



B07/2019/0261 
Planning Committee 

21
st
 May 2019   

  

  

 

Application Number : B07/2019/0261 Date Valid :26/03/2019 

Address : Sutherland Court, Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 1FE 

Case Officer : Maureen Smith 

Proposal : Application for a Minor Material Amendment (by variation of Condition 2) 
following the grant of planning permission 2018/0507 to omit substation and amend layout 
resulting in the provision of 1 no. additional dwelling(59 in total) and substitution of house 
types on Plot 53 from a 3 bed detached (Kilkenny) to a 3 bed semi (Tyrone) and a 2 bed 
semi (Cork) and provision  of detached garage on Plot 11(2018/0507:Erection of 58 
residential dwellings, consisting of 2, 3 and 4 bedroomed properties with associated 
works) 

Ward : Hindpool Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr Chris Dodds, Gleeson 
Regeneration Ltd.  

Agent : Mr Chris Dodds, Gleeson 
Regeneration Ltd.  

Statutory Date : 25/06/2019 
Recommendation : Permission be 
granted with conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D21 
2. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy E2 
3. Housing Chapter Alteration 2006 - Policy B3 
4. Housing Chapter Alteration 2006 - Policy B5 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H3 - Allocated 

Housing Sites 

Page 32 of 55

Page 80

Agenda Item 8

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B07/2019/0261


 

5. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H7 - Housing 
Development on Windfall Sites 

6. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy I1 - Developer 
Contributions 

 

Summary of Main Issues 

Planning permission was granted in November 2018 for the residential development of the 
site. As a minor material amendment application the key issue is whether the proposed 
changes are acceptable; the proposals relate to modest changes to the layout as a result of 
the omission of a sub station. 

Like the previous consent, the proposal should secure numerous planning advantages 
including delivering a useful supply of new, mainly smaller homes, 
recycling vacant previously developed land within a sustainable location which 
provides opportunities for walking, cycling and access to public transport. The design 
is sensitive to the local area and should contribute to the regeneration of central Barrow. 

Non Material Considerations 

 None 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by site and press notices. 

 
No neighbours listed as consulted. (There are no neighbouring properties on Marsh Street 
directly opposite the part of the site where the changes are proposed, neighbours were 
consulted on the previous proposal and no objections were raised.) 
  

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

 

 

 

Page 33 of 55

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
BAE Systems - Emergency Planning Officer (Nuclear) 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 
Cumbria Constabulary (Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor) 
Cumbria County Council (Archaeology) 
Cumbria County Council (CAT 1 Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Economic Development and Infrastructure) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Cumbria County Council (Transport & Spatial Planning) 
Electricity North West Ltd 
Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

  
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 28/03/2019  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals.”  

 

Cumbria Constabulary (Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor) 28/03/2019  

"Many thanks for your communication dated 28th March 2019. I wish to make the following 
observations, which I have considered from a crime prevention perspective. 

I am fully in favour of these proposals. Substituting the housetypes at Plot 53 has the effect 
of removing the unobserved footpath, which I highlighted in my consultation response to 
B07/2018/0507. 

By dispensing with the electrical sub-station, the space comes into the more obvious 
ownership of Plots 8 and 9. 

I shall be pleased to discuss any crime prevention issues arising from this application." 

  

Page 34 of 55

Page 82

Agenda Item 8



 

Cumbria County Council (Archaeology) 29/03/2019  

"I am writing to thank you for consulting me on the above application and to confirm that I 
have no objections and do not wish to make any comments or recommendations. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any queries regarding the above." 

  

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 29/03/2019  

"This part of the BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency 
Preparedness and Public Information) 2001 Regulations. There are no objections to the 
proposed development based on the information provided but it should be noted that the 
proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of the site. 
Cumbria County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office for  Nuclear 
Regulation, have certain special arrangements are made for residents/business premises in 
this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the 
appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at the site.  Accordingly I would be 
grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, advise the applicant to 
liaise with this office  to allow for further discussion." 

 
Cumbria County Council (Highways & Lead Local Flood Authority) 16/04/2019  

“Cumbria County Council as the Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the application material and has the following comments: 

It is considered that omitting the sub-station and adding an additional unit does not 
constitute a material change to the highway or surface water proposals.  Any impact of this 
change will be minimal and as such we have no objection to the proposal.    

 

Office for Nuclear Regulation (Nuclear) 03/04/2019 

"I have taken on board the views of the emergency planners within Cumbria County 
Council, which is responsible for the preparation of the AWE Barrow off-site emergency 
plan required by the Radiation Emergency Preparedness and Public Information 
Regulations (REPPIR) 2001. They have provided adequate assurance that the proposed 
development can be accommodated within their off-site emergency planning arrangements. 

The proposed development does not present a significant external hazard to the safety of 
the nuclear site. 

Therefore, ONR does not advise against this development". 

Page 35 of 55

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The application relates to a cleared site once occupied by 126 terraced houses and 
associated streets which extends to 1.62ha (4 acres). It is rectangular in shape with 
the long boundaries formed by Marsh Street and Sutherland Street; the shorter 
sides by Crellin Street and back Greengate Street (Thompson St). What was once Arthur 
Street runs lengthwise through the site as do the remains of two back streets.  However 
these are no longer classed as highways and the site is currently enclosed by security 
fencing. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 This application is for a minor material amendment following the recent grant of planning 
permission 2018/0507. The application has been submitted after confirmation that a 
substation is no longer required on the site. This has enabled some minor changes as a 
result of removing the substation from the plan: as a result one additional plot can be 
provided within the site in the south eastern corner. Plot 53, which was previously a three 
bedroom detached dwelling(Kilkenny), is to be substituted with a three bedroom 
semi(Tyrone) and a two bed semi(Cork). Additionally, plot 11 will have a single detached 
garage added and the rear gardens to plots 9 and 10 will be slightly longer. All of the house 
types (and the garage) have previously been approved under the earlier consent. 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 B07/2018/0507 Land at Arthur Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria Erection of 58 
residential dwellings, consisting of 2, 3 and 4 bedroomed properties with associated works 
APPCOND 09/11/2018 
 
  

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The principle of residential development on the site has previously been accepted. This 
application only need consider the acceptability of the amendments. 

National Guidance 

4.2 National guidance gives added priority to the delivery of new housing while achieving 
sustainability and a high standard of design. 

4.3 Paragraph 130 advises: " Local planning authorities should also seek to ensure that the 
quality of approved development is not materially diminished between permission and 
completion, as a result of changes being made to the permitted scheme (for example 
through changes to approved details such as the materials used). " 

Page 36 of 55

Page 84

Agenda Item 8



Saved Policies 

4.4 This urban brownfield site is within walking distance of shops and other services, being 
less than 400m from Dalton Road. It benefits from a high level of sustainability, using 
previously developed land in a location which promotes walking/cycling with good access to 
various public transport. The train station is 0.5km to the north and there are several bus 
routes on Abbey Road and Greengate Street within a 5 minute walk. As such, in locational 
terms, the site accords with the Development Plan (Saved policies B3 & B5). 

4.5 Approval will also accord with Saved policy E2 which requires roads to be designed to 
adoptable standards. 

4.6 There are no changes to the previously approved palette of materials  and the 
amendments can, both in terms of layout and design/materials,  be considered to accord 
with saved policies B3 & D21.  

Emerging Policies 

4.7 The proposal accords with emerging policy H7 (windfall sites). 

4.8 The site also benefits from a residential allocation (site ref SHL047/emerging policy H3) 
and is also included within the Council's 5 year housing land supply. This means that it 
is considered capable of delivering completions within that time frame. It should be noted 
that the site became available through a publicly funded housing market renewal scheme, 
involving demolition and group repair.  Redevelopment of this site was envisaged as part of 
the renewal scheme in order to assist with regeneration of the surrounding area. 

4.9 The previous application identified through the Barrow Transportation Study  that the site 
should contribute to an off site cycle route with an amount of £7200 agreed with the 
County/applicant. The policy basis for this is emerging policy l1 and this requirement will be 
carried forward by way of an updated unilateral agreement.  

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The proposed changes to the layout are modest in scale and retain adequate separation 
distances between dwellings. The provision of an additional dwelling is welcomed and there 
are no implications in terms of urban design or privacy/overlooking issues. A recent addition 
to the NPPF (paragraph 130) is a requirement that developments are not watered down 
between approval and construction, however the amendments in this case retain the 
original design ethos. 

5.2 As with the previous approval, the proposal should secure numerous planning 
advantages including delivering a useful supply of new, smaller homes, recycling 
vacant previously developed land and in a location which provides opportunities for walking, 
cycling and public transport. The design, as revised, is sensitive to the local area and 
should contribute to the regeneration of central Barrow. Other than the layout drawing and 
the Design and Access Statement, the suite of information in terms of plans and supporting 
documents remains unchanged. 

Page 37 of 55

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



 

6. Recommendation 

I recommend that: 

A. the unilateral undertaking be updated to take account of the amended plans and 
application reference  to secure: 

i. the maintenance of the public open space and storm water storage tank and, 

ii. a contribution of £7200 to Cycle Route ID 1 [Barrow Transportation Study 2016] then 

B. Planning Consent is GRANTED, subject to the amendment of conditions attached to the 
previous planning consent as set out below: 

  
1. The development shall be begun not later than three years from the date of the original 
planning permission granted under reference 2018/0507 dated 9/11/2018. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the application reference 2018/0507 approved on 09/11/2018 as amended by this 
application for a minor material amendment in relation to the omission of the sub-station 
and resultant amendments to the layout resulting in one additional dwelling and the hereby 
approved plans and documents defined by this permission as listed below, except where 
varied by conditions attached to this consent: 
Planning Layout dwg ref 1071/2D (amended plan received on 22.3.19) 
House types 201/1F, 212/1, 301/1G, 304/1E, 307/1B, 309/1E, 314/1, 405/1E 
Aggregate Drive Detail dwg ref SD172 rev G 
Garage details dwg ref SD703 rev B 
Garage details dwg ref SD700 rev A 
Boundary details dwg ref SD103 rev B 
Boundary treatments dwg ref SD100 rev D 
Drainage Assessment prepared by D. Wright dated July 2018 
Ground Gas Addendum letter ref C7620/7127/APC/APC, dated 1st October 2018 
Strategy for Remedial Works ref C7620A dated 14th August 2018 
Section 38 Plan dwg ref D800 rev A 
Refuse vehicle tracking plan dwg ref D902 
Private drive tracking dwg ref D903 
 

 

Page 38 of 55

Page 86

Agenda Item 8



 

Lantern layout Urbis Schreder 
Outdoor Lighting Report Urbis Schreder 
Kerbs and surfacing dwg ref D500 Rev A 
Proposed levels D100 rev A 
Construction Management Plan including dwg ref. Con-01 
 
 
Reason 
 
In order to link the permission to the submitted application. 
 
3.  All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping as 
shown on drawing ref 1071/2D (amended plan received on 22.3.19) shall be carried out in 
the first planting and seeding seasons following beneficial occupation of any part of the 
development, or in accordance with the phasing of the scheme as agreed in writing with the 
Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased, shall be replaced by the landowner in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any 
variation. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to secure the landscaping element of 
the proposed bio diversity enhancements. 
 
During Building Works 
 
4.  The drainage for the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance 
with the principles set out in the submitted Drainage Assessment dated July 2018, and 
which limits the discharge of surface water into the surface water sewer at a maximum flow 
rate of 6.5 l/s for any storm event. The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
Reason 
 
To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of 
flooding and pollution. To ensure the surface water system continues to function as 
designed and that flood risk is not increased within the site or elsewhere. To give effect to 
the consultation response dated 13/08/2018 from United Utilities. 
 

 

 

 

Page 39 of 55

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



 
5.  No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for contamination 
and assessed for its suitability for the proposed development. A suitable methodology for 
testing this material should be submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority prior to 
the soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the sampling frequency, 
testing schedules, criteria against which the analytical results will be assessed (as 
determined by the risk assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall 
then be carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its completion 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 
 

Reason 
 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land, and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors in accordance with 
Saved policy 056 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006 and policy C4 in the Local Plan pre 
submission draft. 
 
6. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported immediately to the 
Planning Authority. Development on the part of the site that is affected must be halted and 
Field Investigations shall be carried out and the results submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Planning Authority. These shall be implemented prior to occupation of that part of the 
development. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land, and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors in accordance with 
Saved policy 056 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006 and policy C4 in the pre submission 
draft. 
 
7.  That in relation to plots 5 to 10, (inclusive) 13 & 14 ground gas protection measures shall 
have been integrated into the foundation/floor construction in full compliance with Ciria 
C665 Table 8.6 (Reinforced concrete floor slab (suspended, non suspended or raft) with at 
least 1200g DPM and underfloor venting, all joints and penetrations sealed) and an 
independently prepared verification report by an appropriately qualified professional shall 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority to that effect. 
 
Reason 
 
To give effect to the recommendations of Ground Gas Addendum letter ref 
C7620/7127/APC/APC dated 1st October 2018, to give effect to the consultation responses 
dated 9/10/2018 & 02/11/2018 from Public Protection (Barrow Borough Council),and in the 
interests of public safety. 

Page 40 of 55

Page 88

Agenda Item 8



 

Before Occupation 
 
8. Prior to any occupation of the development a sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority and agreed in writing. The sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan shall include as a minimum: 
a. Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, or, 
management and maintenance by a resident’s management company; and 
b. Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable 
drainage system to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout 
its lifetime. 
The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved plan. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the sustainable drainage system 
in order to manage the risk of flooding and pollution during the lifetime of the development. 
To give effect to the consultation response dated 13/08/2018 from United Utilities. 
 
9. The carriageway, footways and footpath links including street lighting  shall be completed 
in accordance with the details approved under condition 2 above prior to the occupation or 
substantial completion of the 29th dwelling. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway safety. To 
support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD5, LD7, LD8. To accord with saved policy E2. To 
give effect to the consultation response dated 10/08/2018 from Cumbria County Council as 
highway authority. 
 
10.  No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the vehicular access, parking and 
turning requirements to serve that particular dwelling have been constructed in accordance 
with the approved plan and has been brought into use. The vehicular access turning 
provisions shall be retained and capable of use at all times thereafter and shall not be 
removed or altered without the prior consent of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure a minimum standard of access provision when the development is brought into 
use. 
 
11.  The site shall be remediated in accordance with the Strategy for Remedial Works ref 
C7620A and no dwelling shall be occupied until a Verification Report for that plot has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 
 
 

Page 41 of 55

Page 89

Agenda Item 8



Reason 
 
To give effect to the Strategy for Remedial works ref C7620A. To give effect to the 
consultation response from Public Protection dated 17/09/2018. To secure the adequate 
remediation of the site. 
 
12.  No dwellings shall be occupied until the estate road including footways to serve such 
dwellings has been constructed in all respects to base course level and street lighting 
where it is to form part of the estate road has been provided and brought into full 
operational use. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of highway safety and to support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD5, LD7, 
LD8 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
13. All driveways and private roads shall be of permeable surfacing. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that permeable areas are increased on the site and that runoff rates are 
decreased. 
 
14. All vehicle parking spaces and the accesses thereto must be reserved for the parking of 
private motor vehicles and no permanent development, whether permitted by the Town & 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) or not, shall be carried out 
on that area of land in such position as to preclude vehicular access to the development 
hereby permitted. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made and retained for the use 
associated with the development hereby permitted. 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 

   

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

Page 42 of 55

Page 90

Agenda Item 8



   

 The proposed development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area 
of the BAE site. Cumbria County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the 
Office for Nuclear Regulation, have certain special arrangements for 
residents/business premises in this area and particular attention is paid to ensuring 
that people are aware of the appropriate action to take in the event of an incident at 
the site. The applicant is advised to liaise with the County Council Emergency 
Planning office to allow for further discussion of available information: Senior 
Emergency Planning Officer, Resilience Unit, Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Fire 
& Rescue HQ, Carleton Ave, Penrith , Cumbria , CA10 2FA 
 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Page 43 of 55

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



Page 44 of 55

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



B18/2019/0188 
Planning Committee  

21
st
 May 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B18/2019/0188 Date Valid :04/04/2019 

Address : Field at Nook Lane/Saves Lane 
Ireleth Askam-in-Furness Cumbria 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Change of use of pasture land to outdoor all weather arena. 

Ward : Dalton North Ward Parish : Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 

Applicant : Mrs L Foxon   Agent : Mrs L Foxon   

Statutory Date : 30/05/2019 
Recommendation : Refuse for the 
reasons stated 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-170 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D1 
2. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D2 
3. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy D21 
4. Saved Local Plan 2001 - Policy G15 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy GI6 - Green Links 
5. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy GI7 - Open 

Countryside 
6. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy HC12 - Equestrian 

Development 

Page 45 of 55

Page 93

Agenda Item 8

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B18/2019/0188


 

7. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy N1 - Protecting 
and enhancing landscape character 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main issues relating to the proposal are the potentially detrimental visual impact upon 
the landscape and any possible impact on the access track/public right of way (PROW). 

Non Material Considerations 

Private access rights 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

 
Proposed development advertised on site 
  
Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Saves Lane 59, 61, 65, 67, 69, 71, 73, 75, 77, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

7 1 5 1 

Objections summary 

Suitability of access, potential for increased traffic, harm to countryside and landscape 
setting, loss of agricultural land, impact from horse paraphernalia, potential for commercial 
use and floodlights, impact on wildlife, precedent it may set.  

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (PROW) 
Health and Safety Executive (Pipeline Enquiries) 
Natural England 
   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46 of 55

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 

List of Organisation Responses 

Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 17/04/2019  

"This application was discussed at the parish council held on Tuesday 16 April 2019. 
Although there were no objections raised by parish council or members of the public 
present at the meeting, the parish council have received objections from residents of Saves 
Lane. These residents object to change of use of pasture/agricultural land into an all-
weather arena. They are concerned about the impact on the area which is in the main 
agricultural farmland and the fact that the access is via a well used public footpath. The 
parish council have advised the resident to send their objections directly to Barrow Borough 
Council." 

Cumbria County Council (PROW) 05/04/2019  

"There should be no interference with public footpath numbers 602058 and 602061 
throughout the duration of the construction phase and thereafter." 

Health and Safety Executive (Pipeline Enquiries)  01/05/2019  
 
“HSE Do not advise against, consequently, HSE does not advise, on safety grounds 
against the granting of planning permission in this case. 
  

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The site is located within the open countryside, and accessed from an unmade track 
which runs from Saves Lane.  The track also forms a Public Right of Way (PROW), which 
continues beyond the application site connecting into the wider PROW network.  The site 
consists of a gated access, with a track looping back to the pasture from the main track 
connecting to Saves Lane.  A small shed, log store and caravan are located at the entrance 
to the field used by the horses, within which is a stable building, though they are all located 
outside of the application site.  The field is demarcated with trees, hedges and scrub, with a 
small section of Leylandii hedging screening the stable.  A beck runs through the southern 
section of the land. 

1.2 In a wider landscape setting, the area is classified as "Intermediate Moorland And 
Plateau - Ridges" (in The Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance and Toolkit) - this 
section forms a low level, gently sloping plateau leading down to the coast in a westerly 
direction.  To the east, the land rises sharply up to the A595 and beyond.  It is 
generally free from development aside from the low level cables carried adjacent to the 
site.  The site also falls within the outer zone of a major pipeline that requires consultation 
with the Health And Safety Executive. 

Page 47 of 55

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Change of use of pasture land to outdoor all weather arena. 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 No history revealed for this application 

4. Officer Assessment 

Policy background 

4.1 The primary policy relating to such development is saved policy G15.  Whilst the general 
status of the Development Plan has diminished due to its age, this particular policy is 
considered to be consistent with the aims of the NPPF and therefore still carries weight.  
HC12, an emerging policy in the draft Local Plan has very similar aims but now also carries 
considerable weight due to the advanced stage of the Plan, due to be adopted in June by 
the Council.  Both policies advocate equestrian related development only where it is not 
visually intrusive or detrimental to the character of the area.  In addition, the NPPF requires 
decisions to contribute and enhance the local environment by protecting and enhancing 
valued landscapes.  This is often achieved by avoiding the use of non-traditional or 
otherwise visually unacceptable buildings or fencing materials or other semi-permanent 
equipment. 

4.2 Saved Policy D2 designates the site within a wider County Landscape.  The weight of 
this policy is reduced given the designation is not being carried through in the draft Local 
Plan, with more emphasis now being placed upon assessing the contribution of and impact 
on the local landscape, as detailed in emerging policy N1.   The need to provide for 
landscape conservation is reinforced by emerging policies GI6, GI7 and N1. Overall the 
policy position in terms of conservation of the landscape is greater under the emerging local 
plan. 

4.3 General design principles are found in saved policy D21 and expanded within emerging 
policy DS5.  D21 states that proposals in the countryside shall respect the diversity and 
distinctiveness of local landscape character.  DS5 states that, amongst other things, 
 proposals should integrate with and where possible, conserve and enhance the character 
of the adjoining natural environment. Furthermore, proposals should respect the distinctive 
character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating key environmental assets of 
the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, hedgerows, habitats and skylines. 

4.4 The Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance describes the area as follows, "These are 
generally open, large scale landscapes.  Views are often wide and expansive and 
uninterrupted and striking views of the Lakeland Fells and Duddon Estuary and Morecambe 
Bay provide drama and reinforce the sense of wildness.  The wide and expansive 
uninterrupted views to sea and the Lakeland Fells provide a sense of wildness that are 
sensitive to changes in land management and significant infrastructure development."  The 
vision for the character type is for conservation and enhancement. 

 

Page 48 of 55

Page 96

Agenda Item 8



4.5 As described above, the site and locality is within the open countryside, generally free 
from development.  This open, undeveloped character can be enjoyed from the PROW's 
running to the east and west of the site (602058 and 602061), and also further to the east 
from higher vantage points along the A595.   

Proposed development and impact 

4.6 The proposal is for a change of use of pasture land to outdoor all weather arena, 
commonly referred to as a manège. These are usually found in the urban fringe due to their 
space requirements and convenience for the owners.  It has a footprint of 40m x 20m, with 
an indicated cut into the ground of 1.3m at the eastern end and 0.3m west.  It is shown 
as being finished with a sand surface and enclosed by a post and rail fence.  There is no 
proposed change of use of any other part of the land owned by the applicant, though this 
matter is discussed further in 'other issues' below. 

4.7 As the land slopes down from east to west, excavation would be required in order to 
provide a level base.  Whilst not perhaps resulting in a significant engineering operation, the 
levelling of the natural slope and sand surfacing of the manège will appear at odds with, 
and intrusive in, the natural landscape.  This is further emphasised by the post and rail 
fence which is not typical in the setting, with native hedging and scrub usually dividing 
parcels of land.  The facility will become more prominent from other vantage points higher 
up the landscape to the east, with the natural form interrupted by the leisure facility and 
associated built development. 

4.8 The development would therefore appear as an intrusive and isolated feature within the 
countryside, which would not be in keeping with the open character and appearance of the 
surrounding area.  This will be detrimental to the landscape and the enjoyment of the 
adjacent PROW's. 

4.9 A previous decision, relating to a stable block, defended on appeal 
(APP/W0910/A/09/2096850/WF) also arrived at a similar conclusion.  That site is located 
approximately 300m further along the same access track to the north.  Whilst that decision 
was made over 10 years ago, the character of the area has not significantly changed. In 
policy terms the position is now stronger than when that decision was made. 

Other issues 

4.10 The ecological report concludes there is no evidence of any specifically protected 
species regularly occurring on the site or surrounding areas which would be negatively 
affected by the development.  Mitigation and protection of existing trees is suggested to 
promote bio diversity gains by promoting structural diversity.  The land itself is not classified 
as the best grade for agricultural purposes, with the wider area graded good to moderate.  
The proposal would therefore cause no significant ecological harm or agricultural loss. 

 

 

 

Page 49 of 55

Page 97

Agenda Item 8



 

4.11 The access remains as existing; it is not considered the facility, if limited for 
personal/hobby use, would significantly alter the usage of the track compared to the 
existing use.  Cumbria CC has commented with respect to the PROW advising no 
interference with it must occur.   Further comments, received second hand, also advise 
vehicular use could indeed be an offence under the Road Traffic Act.  It is not however for 
the Planning Authority to determine if a lawful right to use the track exists and any consent 
would not provide immunity from any breach of other legislation. 

4.12 As stated, the site contains a small stable block for the horses, though there is no 
planning history connected to this.  It therefore appears to be unauthorised development.  
Aerial photography suggests it was built sometime between 2014 and 2016.  Considering 
the building in isolation, as operational development rather than in association with any 
material change of use, it may or may not be lawful - this will be subject to further 
investigation to establish if it has been present for 4 years or more.  The applicant has the 
opportunity to establish this via a Lawful Development Certificate if indeed it has.  However, 
it is also not clear that a material change of the wider field has not occurred.  The 
information submitted with the proposal is limited, stating only that the pasture is used for 
summer grazing.  On the officer site visit (unaccompanied) a pony was outside of the 
stable, but 2 larger horses were within a closed stable, unable to openly roam and graze.  
Whilst in no way definitive, it does suggest that the horses may in fact be fed and kept on 
site for leisure purposes.  This is further supported by the presence of a caravan on site, as 
there would seemingly be little need if the horses were merely grazing. 

4.13 It is accepted from previous court cases such as Belmont Farm and Sykes that the 
mere grazing of horses on land does not constitute a material change from a former 
agricultural use, although beyond that the use of agricultural land for horses would require 
planning permission.  However, in order to properly establish whether this has occurred or 
not, further information is required in order to make an informed judgement.  This would be 
best obtained via a Planning Contravention Notice; this is normally served in the first stage 
of enforcement action, where it is believed that a breach of planning control may have 
occurred.  This has the advantage of both formalising any response and also not delaying 
the determination of the application at hand.  

5. Conclusions 

The proposed manège is considered to have a detrimental visual impact on the local 
landscape setting due the introduction of the isolated leisure facility.  The proposed 
engineered appearance and obtrusive materials will further increase its 
prominence contrary to the range of landscape and conservation policies within the 
Development Plan and the NPPF, and as expressed in the County landscape document.   

The proposed development would not give rise to any highway safety concerns because it 
would not result in any significant intensification or any changes to existing access 
arrangements, provided that the use of the facility was restricted to domestic use only. 
However, these issues do not add any significant weight either for or against the proposal 
and do not overcome the more fundamental concerns in regards to landscape and visual 
impact. 

Page 50 of 55

Page 98

Agenda Item 8



The planning status of the existing stables and use of the land is to be explored separately 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be refused for the following reason:  

The proposed development would have a significant adverse visual landscape impact and 
would therefore significantly harm the scenic beauty associated with the open countryside 
location.  It is therefore considered to be contrary to saved Local Plan policies D21 and 
G15; emerging Local Plan policies DS5, HC12 and N1, and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

   

  

  

  

Page 51 of 55

Page 99

Agenda Item 8



2019/0188

Page 52 of 55

Page 100

Agenda Item 8



2019/0188

Page 53 of 55

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 8



2019/0188

Page 54 of 55

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 8



2019/0188

Page 55 of 55

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 8



Appendices of Saved and Emerging Policies
 
Note to Members
 
Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the
agenda today.
 
Saved Policies
 
The starting point when determining applications remains the Development Plan.
Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless
material considerations, including the NPPF, indicate otherwise.
 
The tilted balance under paragraph 14 of the NPPF is engaged where any of the policies
relevant to the application are out of date or where there is no 5 year housing land
supply. At present the Council can demonstrate a supply in excess of 5 years. The
officers report will indicate if any policies are out of date and how much weight they can
be given. Under the tilted balance applications should be approved unless
 
"any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies as a whole, or specific policies in the
Framework indicate development should be restricted."
 
The tilted balance is not engaged where all relevant policies are in date and there is a
sufficient supply of housing land.
 
Emerging Policies
 
As the emerging Local Plan is now under examination, the policies within it can be given
weight. The amount of weight each policy has is dependent upon the significance of
unresolved objections to the policy and how consistent it is with the NPPF.
 
National Planning Policy Framework 2018
 
NPPF-170
Planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local
environment by:
 
a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value
and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in

Page 104

Agenda Item 8



the development plan);
 
b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider
benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services - including the economic and other
benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and woodland;
 
c) maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public access to
it where appropriate;
 
d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by
establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future
pressures;
 
e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air,
water or noise pollution or land instability. Development should, wherever possible, help
to improve local environmental conditions such as air and water quality, taking into
account relevant information such as river basin management plans; and
 
f) remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable
land, where appropriate.
 
Saved Local Plan 2001
 
D1
The Borough's countryside will be safeguarded for its own sake and non-renewable and
natural resources afforded protection. Development will be permitted in the countryside
only where there is a demonstrable need that cannot be met elsewhere. Where
necessary development is permitted any adverse effect on the rural character of the
surroundings should be minimised subject to the development's operational
requirements.
 
D2
Development harmful to the distinctive character of designated County Landscapes, as
indicated in the Proposals Maps, will not be permitted. Development justified on grounds
of need that cannot be located elsewhere will be permitted provided that it is sited to
minimise environmental impacts and meets high standards of design.
 
D21
In determining all applications submitted to it the local planning authority will have regard

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



to the General Design Code set out in paragraph 5.4.27 of this plan.
  
In towns and villages, proposals shall relate to the context provided by buildings, street
and plot patterns, building frontages, topography, established public views, landmark
buildings and other townscape elements.  Proposals that do not respect the local
context and street pattern or the scale, height, proportions and materials of surrounding
buildings and development which constitutes over development of the site by virtue of
scale, height or bulk will not be permitted, unless there is specific justification, such as
interests of sustainability, energy efficiency or crime prevention.
  
Development proposals in the countryside shall respect the diversity and distinctiveness
of local landscape character.  New farm buildings will, in general, be required to be sited
within or adjacent to an existing farm building complex or in other well screened
locations and to be subject to a complementary design and use of materials, with, where
necessary, a 'planting' scheme.
 
E2
Highways proposed in housing developments must be designed and constructed to
adoptable standards.
 
G15
Change of use from agriculture to leisure related horse grazing and other horse related
development such as riding schools and stabling will only be permitted where it can be
shown that proposals would not;
  
a)    Be visually intrusive or detrimental to the character of the area;
  
b)    Use non-traditional or otherwise visually unacceptable buildings or fencing materials
or other semi-permanent equipment;
  
c)    Be likely to lead to unacceptable erosion of bridleways, woodlands, commons or
any other ecologically sensitive area; and
  
d)    Involve an unacceptable loss of productive farmland, nuisance to residents,
pollution of sub soil or water courses, or conflict with vehicular or pedestrian traffic.
  
In order to assess fully the impact of proposals for riding schools, the Council will
require, as part of the planning application, details of the areas and routes that are
intended to be used for horse riding activities.
 

Page 106

Agenda Item 8



 
 
Housing Chapter Alteration 2006
 
B3
Applications for residential development on unallocated sites will be permitted where
they accord with the sequential approach of the Structure Plan and also satisfy the
following criteria:
 
i)    The site is located within the built up area of existing settlements or the development
cordons identified in Policy B13; and
 
ii)    The siting, scale, layout and design (in the materials and form of the buildings) of
the development is sensitive to the local environment, it promotes the principles of
'Secure by Design' and adequate parking provision is made; and
 
iii)    Adequate access arrangements can be provided, including servicing the site by the
public transport and by cycle routes; and
 
iv)    The development is laid out in a way that maximises energy efficiency; and
 
v)    The development will not result in the loss of land which has a recognised or
established nature conservation interest; and
 
vi)    The development must not cause an undue increase in traffic  passing through
existing residential areas such as to be detrimental to residential amenity or highway
safety; and
 
vii)    Adequate water supplies, foul and surface water sewers and sewerage treatment
facilities exist or can be provided; and
 
viii)    'A risk-based approach will be adopted for development in or affecting flood risk
areas to minimise the risk of flooding associated with the site and the potential effect
development of the site might have elsewhere through increased run off or a reduction
in the capacity of flood plains. This shall be in accordance with the  sequential
characterisation of flood risk set out in Table 1 of Planning Policy Guidance Note 25
'Development and Flood Risk; and
 
ix)    Where contamination is suspected, a desk study is undertaken and if necessary a
site investigation is undertaken and remediation strategy submitted.

Page 107

Agenda Item 8



 
B5
Within the urban boundaries of Barrow and Dalton applications for new dwellings or
conversions of existing buildings on suitable brownfield sites in residential areas or on
the peripheries thereof will be permitted provided the design, siting, layout and access
arrangements are satisfactory. This means that the development must also satisfy the
criteria of Policy B3. This Policy will also apply to land currently or last used for
employment purposes or with planning permission for employment use where the
proposal involves the provision of housing for which a specific need has been identified
and where the location is considered suitable by the Authority, or such housing is mixed
with employment uses, or the existing use is an un-neighbourly or non-conforming one
by reason of excessive traffic generation, noise or disturbance to local amenity.
 
Barrow Port Area Action Plan
 
BP2
Development Quality & Sustainability
 
The Council will seek a design-led approach to sustainable development within the
Action Plan Area.
 
Planning applications will be expected to address the following minimum requirements,
as appropriate to their nature and scale:
 
BREEAM Assessment
 
A BREEAM Assessment must be carried out for all non-residential development with a
floor space above 1,000 m2 and a rating of 'Very Good' or better will be encouraged.
 
All new housing developments above 30 homes will be encouraged to achieve a
minimum of Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes.
 
Layout
 
Building design and layout must:
 
.;    contribute positively to the public realm;
 
.;    respect existing, or locally characteristic street layouts, scale and massing;
 

Page 108

Agenda Item 8



.;    maximise the benefits of a unique waterfront location in creating a sense of place;
 
.;    provide for new open space and landscaping which enhances and/or provides
mitigation against loss of biodiversity;
 
.;    have respect for its natural setting and where appropriate, landscape setting, in
particular the nature conservation designations;
 
.;    be orientated to make good use of daylight and solar gain.
 
Density
 
New housing should be developed at a density appropriate to its design and location
and the objectives of housing market renewal, whilst mindful of the national indicative
minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare and the requirement to make efficient use
of land.
 
Security
 
New developments shall accord with Secured by Design principles. New development
must provide adequate and appropriate lighting and ensure definition of public and
private space as a minimum.
 
Accessibility
 
The Council is committed to the principle of access for all, through inclusive design and
will expect to see this addressed through new development applications.
 
Parking
 
Appropriate levels of carefully designed parking should be provided for development
having regard to:
 
.;    the standards set out in the Regional Spatial Strategy for non-residential
developments;
 
.;    the standards set out in the saved Supplementary Planning Guidance 'Parking
Guidelines in Cumbria' for residential developments or any regional or local adopted
policy superseding these.
 

Page 109

Agenda Item 8



 
BP23
Waterfront Business Park
 
The development of the Waterfront Business Park will be promoted and supported as a
key component of the Barrow Waterfront Gateway Opportunity Area and as a Regionally
Significant Employment Site. A mix of commercial uses to a maximum of 65,000m2 of
floorspace will be expected as follows (use classes as specified):
 
1)    B1 - Business. This will be restricted to 20% of (65,000 m2) floorspace.
2)    B2 - General Industrial
3)    B8 - Storage and Distribution
 
The development of the Waterfront Business Park will be expected to conform to the
following:
 
a)     Development should contribute positively to the creation of a new waterfront
through:
 
i)    Ensuring a prominent frontage with buildings addressing the waterfront as a
gateway;
 
ii)    Delivering public access to available areas of the waterfront; and
 
b)    A minimum BREEAM rating of Very Good is encouraged for all development.
 
c)    Development should provide and retain 3.55 ha for the relocation and enhancement
of the existing allotments as a key community resource.
 
d)    Access shall be provided for pedestrians and cyclists in line with the design
guidelines set out in this Area Action Plan.
 
e)    Development will be expected to contribute to enhanced vehicular access in the
form of the Western Dock Access Road (Policy BP11).
 
f)    Permitted development rights for changes of use from B2 to B1 of the Use Classes
Order use will be removed in order to maintain the proposed development mix, to
reduce potential adverse impacts on Barrow town centre.
 
g)    Change of use from B2 to A2 of the Use Class Order will not be permitted for the

Page 110

Agenda Item 8



above reasons.
 
h)    Where practicable, plans for training should be provided, in particular to facilitate
links between business and education in Barrow.
 
i)     Development should be directed to the areas of the site with the lowest probability
of flooding in accordance with the sequential approach set out in PPS25.
 
 
 
BP4
Conservation & Enhancement of the Natural & Built Environment
 
High quality schemes that enhance nature conservation and management, maintain and
enhance biodiversity, preserve and enhance the historic environment and develop and
respect landscape and built character will be promoted and supported. Particular
emphasis will be placed on the following:
 
1)    Proposals must preserve the setting and character of listed buildings and preserve
or enhance the character or appearance of the Barrow Island and St. Georges Square
Conservation Areas. Applications for outline consent within the conservation areas will
not be acceptable. Consent for the demolition or partial demolition of listed buildings or
of unlisted buildings that make a positive contribution to conservation areas will not be
granted other than in exceptional circumstances.
 
2)     The Action Plan Area includes parts of the South Walney and Piel Channel Flats
SSSI and a site of regional importance in the form of Salthouse Pool County Wildlife
site. The Council places a high value on the protection of these ecological features and
in considering new development will ensure that proposals are not detrimental to the
special interest of these sites.
 
3)    Enhanced public access to these areas will be sought whilst having regard to nature
conservation.
 
4)    Where important archaeological remains or historic features exist or are likely to
exist further archaeological and historic assessment will be required.
 
5)    Development proposals which are likely to have a significant effect on a European
Site (SAC/SPA) (either individually or in combination with other plans and projects)
should be subject to an Appropriate Assessment. Any development that is considered to

Page 111

Agenda Item 8



adversely affect the integrity of a European Site will not be permitted.
 
6)    The AAP area includes protected species, priority species and priority habitats.
Surveys should be carried out to establish the presence, extent and density of these
species and habitats before planning applications are determined and appropriate
measures should be taken to safeguard habitats and species before any development
commences. The first preference is to provide suitable inter-connecting habitats for
these species within the relevant sites and within the AAP area. If this is not feasible
suitable compensatory habitats should be provided outside the AAP area. Mechanisms
should be put in place to manage and monitor these habitats to ensure that their
biodiversity value is maintained.
 
 
 
BPSV1
Strategic Vision for Barrow Port Area
 
The Strategic Vision for the Barrow Port Action Plan Area is to:
 
1)    Strengthen, revive and redevelop the Area as a high quality, sustainable location for
urban living, working and leisure, maximising its waterfront location;
 
2)    Enhance the natural and built environment, infrastructure and range and quality of
facilities and attractions within the Area, reconnecting the town to its waterfront and
making it an attractive place for residents and a destination of choice for visitors and
tourists: and
 
3)    Support the ongoing operation of the port.
 
BPSV2
Spatial Strategy for Barrow Port Area Action Plan
 
The Strategic Vision for the Action Plan Area will be realised by the development of Key
Sites within the Marina Village and Barrow Waterfront Gateway Opportunity Areas and
the safeguarding of land for port-related uses. The following sites are allocated for
development:
 
a)    The Marina Village Opportunity Area:
 
1) Barrow Marina (M1, M2, M3, M4) as a focus for activity on the waterfront to include

Page 112

Agenda Item 8



clubhouse and servicing facilities and a pedestrian/cycle bridge over Buccleuch Dock
and a new link to Walney Channel (13.57 ha)
 
2) Marina Village Housing as a major new waterfront housing opportunity for the town
set in quality public realm and with associated sports and leisure facilities (26.39 ha)
 
3) Land at Cavendish Dock (CD1, CD2) including a new Wildlife Attraction for the town
with enhanced and sensitive access to the natural assets (80.05 ha)
 
4) Barrow Watersports Centre as a major new tourism and water based leisure
opportunity (2.45 ha)
 
5) Salthouse Housing as a new waterfront housing area for Barrow adjacent to the
natural assets of Cavendish Dock (7.96 ha)
 
b)    The Waterfront Gateway Opportunity Area:
 
1) Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and employment location for
Barrow, including the relocation and enhancement of existing allotments (24.47 ha)
 
2) Barrow Island Housing (BIH1, BIH2, BIH3), housing, public realm improvements and
open space to enhance the living environment of existing residents (29.94 ha)
 
c)    The Port:
 
1) Land retained for port-related use and development (BP8) (55.18 ha)
 
as shown on the Proposals Map and in accordance with the area-wide policies in
Section 4 and the site specific policies set out in Section 5 of this Area Action Plan.
 
 
 
Local Plan 2017
 
Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to
find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be
approved wherever possible.
 

Page 113

Agenda Item 8



The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking
an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider
choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and
to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and
environmental gains for the Borough.
 
Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether:
 
a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning
Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or
 
b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that
development should be restricted.
 
 
Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should
meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by:
 
a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel
purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education
facilities;
 
b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity;
 
c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities
infrastructure;
 

Page 114

Agenda Item 8



d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light,
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels;
 
e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly
privacy, security and natural light;
 
f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed
development;
 
g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of
related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other
environmental assets;
 
h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity;
 
i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible;
 
j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production;
 
k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage
systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk;
 
l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic
environment including heritage assets and their settings; and
 
m) Development must comply with Policy DS3.
 
Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they
must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local
Plan objectives by alternative means.
 
Emerging Policy DS5 - Design
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications
must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of
the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's
Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they:
 

Page 115

Agenda Item 8



 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the
adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning
Documents;
 
b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their
setting;
 
c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it;
 
d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment;
 
e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas,
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed;
 
f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well-
structured building layout;
 
g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character;
 
h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally
sourced wherever possible;
 
i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees,
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists,
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place;
 
j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion
and public safety;
 
k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can
contribute to design objectives;
 
l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and
people with disabilities;
 

Page 116

Agenda Item 8



m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale;
 
n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation
of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and
 
o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the
provision of appropriate roof pitches.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy DS6 - Landscaping
Landscaping should be viewed as an integral part of the design process and should
include soft and hard landscaping, street furniture, lighting and public art where
appropriate.
 
A Landscaping Scheme and maintenance regime will be required as part of a full
planning application. This is particularly relevant where development will have a
significant impact upon the surrounding environment or where the development
occupies a site in a prominent location. The Cumbria Landscape Character Toolkit
should be used as a baseline tool to determine the impacts of new development on the
landscape and the type of landscaping and/or mitigation to be put in place.
 
All soft landscaping, including all existing trees, shrubs and planted areas should be
shown along with details of any protective measures proposed. Details of new trees,
shrubs and planted areas in terms of species, density, size, spacing and position should
be included. Native species should be used with decorative species used only for accent
purposes in support of other design objectives. Native planting is particularly important
in areas adjacent to natural habitats e.g. watercourses.
 
Proposals must demonstrate that any soft landscaping proposed will have a positive
visual impact upon the area and is able to survive in its environment.
 
In terms of hard landscaping, materials used must be of a colour and texture appropriate
to the locally distinctive character of the area, be durable, practical for the proposed use
under a variety of weather conditions and incorporate permeable surfaces to alleviate
run off.
 
Suitable maintenance regimes for soft and hard schemes will be the subject of planning
conditions or unilateral undertakings as appropriate.

Page 117

Agenda Item 8



 
Emerging Policy GI6 - Green Links
Proposals involving or adjacent to existing hedgerows or Green Links will be supported
provided that they do not compromise the continuity or integrity of the hedgerow or
green link.
 
Where considered appropriate by the Planning Authority proposals should enhance the
contribution made by the hedgerow or green link.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy GI7 - Open Countryside
Proposals acceptable within the open countryside will be supported providing they
accord with the principles of the Green Infrastructure Strategy to make sure the form
and character of development and its landscaping complements the setting and
appearance of the surrounding area.
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy GI9 - Private Garden Boundaries
Development proposals will need to incorporate specific measures to assist the local
migration of wildlife between the side and rear garden boundaries of dwellings.
Proposals that actively promote accessibility and habitat for wildlife will be encouraged.
Proposals that would inhibit such movement will be resisted.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy H3 - Allocated Housing Sites
In order to meet the housing requirement over the Plan period, a number of specific
sites are allocated for residential development. These are listed in Table 7 and are
identified in the Proposals Maps (Appendices A-C) and in Appendix F.
 
Emerging Policy H7 - Housing Development on Windfall Sites
Applications for residential development on windfall sites (i.e. sites that are not allocated
in the Local Plan) will be permitted where they satisfy all of the following criteria:
 
a) The site is located within or adjoining an existing urban area or within a cordon village
identified in Policy H4;
 

Page 118

Agenda Item 8



b) Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively;
 
c) Buildings are well designed in terms of siting, grouping, scale, orientation, detailing,
external finishes, security and landscaping in response to the form, scale, character ,
environmental quality and appearance of the site and the surrounding area;
 
d) An acceptable standard of amenity is created for future residents of the property in
terms of sunlighting, daylighting, privacy, outlook,  noise and ventilation;
 
e) The site is served by a satisfactory access that would not impact unduly on the
highway network;
 
f) The site has been designed to promote accessibility by walking, cycling and public
transport, as opposed to the private car;
 
g) The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, drainage,
waste management, transport implications and is not at risk of flooding;
 
h) The capacity of the current and proposed infrastructure to serve the development is
adequate taking into account committed and planned housing development;
 
i) Where spare infrastructure capacity is not available, the site has the ability to provide
for the infrastructure requirements it generates, subject to criterion f);
 
j) Within rural settlements the applicant will be expected to demonstrate how the
development will enhance or maintain the vitality of the rural community where the
housing is proposed;
 
k) Where the site is located on the edge of Barrow and Dalton, the applicant will be
required to demonstrate how the development integrates within existing landscape
features and is physically linked to the settlement and does not lead to an unacceptable
intrusion into the open countryside or would result in the visual or physical coalescence
of settlements;
 
l) The proposal will not harm the historic environment, heritage assets or their setting;
 
m) There would be no unacceptable effects on the amenities and living conditions of
surrounding properties from overlooking, loss of light, the overbearing nature of the
proposal or an unacceptable increase in on-street parking; and
 

Page 119

Agenda Item 8



n) The development must comply with Policy N3 and the design principles set out in the
Development Strategy chapter should be followed.
 
The site should make effective use of previously developed land where possible.
 
Emerging Policy HC12 - Equestrian Development
Changes of use from agriculture to leisure related horse grazing and other horse related
development such as riding schools and stabling will be permitted provided that:
 
a) It is not visually intrusive or detrimental to the character of the area;
 
b) The development does not use non-traditional or otherwise visually unacceptable
buildings or fencing materials or other semi-permanent equipment;
 
c) The development will not lead to unacceptable erosion of bridleways, woodlands,
commons or any other ecologically sensitive area;
 
d) It does not involve an unacceptable loss of productive farmland, nuisance to
residents, pollution of sub soil or water courses, or conflict with vehicular or pedestrian
traffic;
 
e) Adequate access and car parking can be achieved. Permeable surfaces will be
encouraged to reduce surface water runoff;
 
f) Adequate provision is made for the storage and removal of manure; and
 
g) The building is appropriate in scale to serve the number of horses and includes space
for undercover storage.
 
In order to assess fully the impact of proposals for riding schools, the Local Planning
Authority will require, as part of the planning application, details of the areas and routes
that are intended to be used for horse riding activities. Where appropriate the Authority
will use section 106 obligations or planning conditions to ensure suitable improvements
to such routes.
 
Emerging Policy I1 - Developer Contributions
Development and infrastructure provision will be coordinated to ensure that growth is
supported by the timely provision of adequate infrastructure, facilities and services. The
Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be used to identify the timing, type and number of
infrastructure requirements to support the objectives and policies of the Plan as well as

Page 120

Agenda Item 8



the main funding mechanisms and lead agencies responsible for their delivery.
 
All development should make the most efficient use of existing infrastructure where
there is capacity. Where developments will create additional need for improvements /
provision of infrastructure, services or facilities or exacerbate an existing deficiency,
contributions will be sought to ensure that the appropriate enhancements /
improvements are made, and appropriate management arrangements are in place.
Consideration will be given to how these requirements will affect the viability of
development.
 
The types of infrastructure that developments may be required to provide contributions
towards include, but are not limited to:
 
- Utilities and waste;
 
- Flood prevention and sustainable drainage measures;
 
- Transport (highway, rail, bus and cycle / footpath network and any associated
facilities);
 
- Community Infrastructure including health, education, libraries, public realm, heritage
and geological assets and other community facilities (see 5.2.1.);
 
- Green Infrastructure (such as outdoor sports facilities, open space, parks, allotments,
play areas, enhancing and conserving biodiversity and management of environmentally
sensitive areas); and
 
- Climate change and energy initiatives through allowable solutions.
 
 
Developer contributions for the above will be informed by relevant up to date and robust
evidence where applicable.
 
Where appropriate, the Council will permit developers to provide the necessary
infrastructure themselves as part of their development proposals, rather than making
financial contributions, subject to agreement with relevant consultees.
 
 
 

Page 121

Agenda Item 8



Emerging Policy N1 - Protecting and enhancing landscape character
Land use proposals should protect and enhance where appropriate, local landscape
character, as defined by contemporary adopted local landscape character guidance,
currently the Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance and Toolkit. In addition, major
land use proposals will require an assessment of the effects of the proposed
development on landscape character and visual effects at the time of submission.
 
Where new development will impact upon the character of the landscape, such impact
will need to be minimised and priority will be given to protecting and enhancing the
landscape's distinct assets. Where there is loss or damage to the assets, the applicant
must submit a statement demonstrating that this is unavoidable e.g. the development
cannot be sited elsewhere due to operational requirements.  In cases such as these, the
unavoidable damage must be mitigated, and unavoidable loss must be compensated
for, so that there is no net loss in resources.
 
High protection will be given to the undeveloped coast in order to maintain its openness,
tranquillity, heritage and nature conservation value and to maintain the Borough's
recreation and tourism appeal.
 
High protection will also be given to the setting of the Lake District National Park in order
to maintain the valued views to and from this nationally designated area, its tranquillity
and its attractiveness to tourists.
 
Measures to enhance the character of the Borough's landscape will be supported, with
particular importance given to the following:
 
 
a)    Improved access to the landscape for recreation and tourism, including managed
access to the undeveloped coast.
 
b)    The regeneration of unsightly brownfield sites, particularly former industrial sites.
 
c)    Increase in tree and woodland cover where such planting complements the scale of
the landscape.
 
d)    Enhancement of the nature conservation value of the landscape.
 
 
 
 

Page 122

Agenda Item 8



 
 

Page 123

Agenda Item 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

21st May 2019 
 

Book 1 
INDEX 

 
 
 
 

Page Reference  Address Proposal  

2 2018/0227 Hayeswater Drive, 
Dalton-in-Furness  

Application for a non-material amendment following 
grant of planning permission 2016/0126 (erection 
of 13 dwellings) to allow the erection of a vertically 
boarded fence in place of the proposed wall and 
the replacement of an existing wall with a fence  
 

10 2019/0256 Harding Rise House, 
Barrow-in-Furness 

Removal of condition no. 5 (Main entrance 
incorporated into building frontage onto Harding 
Rise) from planning application B07/2017/0790 
(Proposed new office building to provide managed 
office space together with associated 
access road and parking) to introduce main 
entrance into the South South West elevation.  
 21 2019/0257 Harding Rise House, 

Barrow-in-Furness  
Approval of details reserved by condition(s) no. 3 
(car park layout and landscaping details), no. 4 
(landscaping scheme and planting schedule), no. 
7(surface water drainage) and no. 9 (installation of 
oil separators) for planning application 
B07/2017/0790 Proposed new office building to 
provide managed office space together with 
associated access road and parking. 

32 2019/0261 Sutherland Court, 
Barrow-in-Furness  

Application for a Minor Material Amendment (by 
variation of Condition 2) following the grant of 
planning permission 2018/0507 to omit substation 
and amend layout resulting in the provision of 1 no. 
additional dwelling(59 in total) and substitution of 
house types on Plot 53 from a 3 bed detached 
(Kilkenny) to a 3 bed semi (Tyrone) and a 2 bed 
semi (Cork) and provision  of detached garage on 
Plot 11(2018/0507:Erection of 58 residential 
dwellings, consisting of 2, 3 and 4 bedroomed 
properties with associated works)  
 

45 2019/0188 Field at Nook 
Lane/Saves Lane,  
Ireleth  

Change of use of pasture land to outdoor all 
weather arena. 
 

 

Page 124

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

BOOK 2 FOR DECISION 
 

21st May 2019 
 

 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen,  
 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Planning Manager 
 

Page 125

Agenda Item 9



B07/2019/0020 
Planning Committee  

21
st
 May 2019  

  

  
   

Application Number : B07/2019/0020 Date Valid :07/03/2019 

Address : Dalton Lane, Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria 

Case Officer : Charles Wilton 

Proposal : Application for approval of reserved matters of access, appearance, 
landscaping, layout following outline approval B07/2018/0798 (Outline planning 
application for approximately 142 dwellings with associated open space and landscaping, 
with all matters reserved) 

Ward : Hawcoat Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Oakmere Homes C/O Agent  
Agent : Smith and Love Planning 
Consultants  

Statutory Date : 06/06/2019 Recommendation : Approval 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s 
commitment to sustainable development 

2. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable 
Development Criteria 

3. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy GI1 - Green 

Infrastructure 
5. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H17 - Protection of 

Residential Privacy 
6. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy H7 - Housing 

Development on Windfall Sites 
7. Submission Draft Local Plan – December 2017 - Emerging Policy N4 - Protecting 

other wildlife features 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 44

Page 126

Agenda Item 9

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B07/2019/0020


Summary of Main Issues 

This application seeks approval of the various reserved matters following the grant of 
outline planning permission. The scheme falls within the parameters set by the outline 
scheme and accords with emerging policy insofar as they apply to the reserved matters 

Non Material Considerations 

None  

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Development advertised on site and in the local press.  

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Abbey Approach Abbey Gate Cottage, 
Abbey Heights 19, 
Abbey Road Abbey House Hotel, 
Ainslie Street 163, 
Anchor Road 16, 
Ann Street 32, 
Barnes Avenue 24, 
Beckermet 
Gardens 

15, 

Biggar Bank 
Road 

7, 

Bowness Road 19, 26, 

Breast Mill Beck 
Road 

6 Breast Mill Beck Court, 5 Breast Mill Beck Court, 9 Breast Mill Beck 
Court, 1 Breast Mill Beck Court, 3 Breast Mill Beck Court, 2 Breast Mill 
Beck Court, 7 Breast Mill Beck Court, 4 Breast Mill Beck Court, 8 Breast 
Mill Beck Court, 

Broughton Road 33, 
Burlington Close 56, 
Central Court 1, 
Chapel Street 113, 
Cleveland Drive 2, 
Coniston Road 26, 
Coptic Road 1 Parkside Farm, 
Croft Gardens 3, 
Dalton Fields 
Lane 

43, 

Dalton Lane 102, 137, 157, 159, 68, 76, Furness General Hospital, 
Dane Ghyll 1, 2, 3, The Annexe 4, 4, 5, 6, 7, 
Dunmail Raise 26, 32, 
Elterwater 
Crescent 

38, 4, 44, 46, 62, 
 

Filbert Close         
 
7 

Page 2 of 44

Page 127

Agenda Item 9



 
Glenridding 
Drive 

112, 114, 116, 130, 14, 19, 2, 89, 

Goose Green 19, 
Green Lane 15, 
Holcroft Hill 24, 
Ireleth Road 225, 
Jarrow Street 16, 
Lancaster Street 35, 
Lincoln Street 32, 
Market Street 56B, 
Mosley Street 33, 
Nelson Street 4 Trafalgar Court, 
Rakesmoor 
Lane 

61, 

Rawlinson Street 20, 
Salthouse Road 188, 
Selside Goodham Scales Cottage, 
Station Road Coniston Lodge, 
The Crescent 
Dane Ghyll Park 

1, 10, Flat 11, 11, 13, 15, 17, 19, 2, 21, 23, 25, 27, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 

The Gardens 
Dane Ghyll Park 

1, 10, 12, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 

Thornton Park 2, 
Turnstone 
Crescent 

40, 

Ulverston Road 97, 
Vengeance 
Street 

40, 

Whinlatter Drive 94, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

13 0 11 2 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Environmental Health Contamination) 
Barrow Borough Council (Environmental Health) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Cumbria County Council (Archaeology) 
Cumbria County Council (CAT 1 Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Fire and Rescue) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 

Page 3 of 44

Page 128

Agenda Item 9



Cumbria County Council (PROW) 
Heritage Trust For The North West 
Historic England (North West) 
Joint Committee of the National Amenity Society 
Natural England 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   
List of Organisation Responses 
 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 12/03/2019  

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”. 

Cumbria Constabulary (Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor) 15/03/2019  

"From the list of applications validated between 6th March and 13th March 2019, I wish to 
submit these comments in respect of B07/2019/0020. (I refer to my response in respect of 
application B07/2015/0707 on 30th December 2015). 

I have assessed this application to ascertain how it complies with Policy HC 5 of the Local 
Plan, i.e. to “contribute towards the creation of a safe and accessible environment, and the 
prevention of crime and fear of crime.” 

The contents of the Design and Access Statement (Security Principles – Page 18 are 
noted).  Generally I concur with the intentions relating to vehicle and pedestrian routes, 
definition of space and car parking. 

The dwellings are arranged to overlook the access routes and each other, without 
compromising privacy. The interlocking rear gardens are a positive feature to deter 
intrusion, protected by 1.8m hit-and-miss fencing/ 

However, the POS positioned between Units 42 and 43 does not form an inclusive element 
of the development and is not directly overlooked. Both dwellings present only gable walls 
towards this feature. Unit 42 (Hawkshead) has a first floor bedroom window in the gable. 
Unit 43 (Glenridding) has a ground floor obscured bathroom window in the gable. Without 
direct supervision, there is more likelihood that the space will be misused or suffer anti-
social activity, to the detriment of the adjacent residents. 

The footpath link between Units 48 and 49 is more readily supervised by the ground floor 
dining room of Unit 49 (Gowan). Unit 48 (Kirkstone) has only a first floor bathroom obscured 
window in the presenting gable. 

Unfortunately, the applicant has not provided any information relating to dwelling physical 
security, exterior lighting or street lighting schemes which would contribute to the overall 
security of the development. 

 

 

Page 4 of 44

Page 129

Agenda Item 9



I shall be pleased to advise on any crime prevention issues arising from this application." 

Cumbria County Council (Archaeology) 14/03/2019  

"Thank you for consulting me on the above application. 

I confirm that I have no objection to the application, but still consider that the archaeological 
work required by condition 11 on previously approved permission 19/0798 is undertaken 
and is secured in any new consent that may be granted. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any queries regarding the above." 

Highways Cumbria County Council (Highways) 01/04/2019  

"Highways 

The fundamental layout and has previously been approved and the Highways Authority is 
content that the layout meets the design guide principles as were appropriate at the time.  
The revised access (priority junction) with Dalton Road has also been previously assessed 
for compliance with visibility and capacity and we have no objection with this layout. 

There are however two areas of detail in the layout that we have some reservations with 
and these will need looking at in more detail at the S38 / S278 approval stage: 

 Sight lines (visibility) from the crossing of the access road looking either way on 
Dalton Road appears to be insufficient for pedestrians crossing to view approaching 
vehicles.  It should be Needs to be 43m in both directions to a viewing height of 
1.05m.  The 1.2m high boundary wall obstructs this view.  Changes to the position of 
the crossing and/or alterations to the boundary wall can resolve this. 

 We would prefer the adopted footways to be immediately adjacent to the road 
without an intermediate private grass verge.  The proposed arrangement increases 
maintenance costs.  This arrangement should be reviewed in the S38 approval 
process.  Maintaining the current arrangement will lead to a commuted sum being 
sought for increased maintenance. 

 We welcome the inclusion of an eastbound bus stop to serve the site but we have 
concerns over where the bus stop is shown due to potential forward visibility for 
overtaking a stationary bus at this location.  The exact position is to be agreed with 
the bus stop panel and Highways.  It does appear that a bus layby could be provided 
further towards Abbey Road." 

*See Original document for Drawings chart 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 44

Page 130

Agenda Item 9



Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 01/04/2019  

"LLFA 

The principles of the surface water drainage strategy have also been previously established 
and approved by the LLFA.  The designs provided in this application include appropriate 
details of flow routes across the site, measures to protect the site form off-site flows and 
exceedance management to satisfy the LLFA that the flood risk to the site has been 
designed out.   

The revised Surface Water strategy and maintenance schedule includes the points 
previously raised at the pre-app stage.  The strategy demonstrates that the surface water 
run-off from the site is managed and treated appropriately. 

The applicant will need to liaise with the local Highways office regarding the S106 
agreement for funding contribution or S278 to deliver the upgraded surface water road 
crossing across Abbey Road. 

We therefore can approve the details for these reserved matters." 

Historic England (North West) 15/03/2019  

"Thank you for your letter of 12 March 2019 regarding the above application for planning 
permission.  On the basis of the information available to date, we do not wish to offer any 
comments.  We suggest that you seek the views of your specialist conservation and 
archaeological advisers, as relevant. 

It is not necessary for us to be consulted on this application again, unless there are material 
changes to the proposal.  However, if you would like detailed advice from us, please 
contact us to explain your request." 

United Utilities 01/04/2019  

"Site drainage  

In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National 
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system with 
foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 
way.  

The NPPG clearly outlines the hierarchy to be investigated by the developer when 
considering a surface water drainage strategy. We would ask the developer to consider the 
following drainage options in the following order of priority:  

1. into the ground (infiltration); 
2. to a surface water body; 
3. to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system; 
4. to a combined sewer. 

 

Page 6 of 44

Page 131

Agenda Item 9



Further information regarding Developer Services and Planning, can be found on our 
website at http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx. 

United Utilities has reviewed the drainage layouts (ref: 19019_PL01_04.1.1 dated 19/03/18 
and ref: 04.1.2 dated 30/11/18) proposing surface water discharging into watercourse and 
confirm the proposals are acceptable in principle. 

The applicant can discuss the above with Developer Engineer, Josephine Wong, by email 
at wastewaterdeveloperservices@uuplc.co.uk.  
  
Please note, United Utilities are not responsible for advising on rates of discharge to the 
local watercourse system.  This is a matter for discussion with the Lead Local Flood 
Authority and / or the Environment Agency (if the watercourse is classified as main river).  

Management and Maintenance of Sustainable Drainage Systems  

Without effective management and maintenance, sustainable drainage systems can fail or 
become ineffective.  As a provider of wastewater services, we believe we have a duty to 
advise the Local Planning Authority of this potential risk to ensure the longevity of the 
surface water drainage system and the service it provides to people.  We also wish to 
minimise the risk of a sustainable drainage system having a detrimental impact on the 
public sewer network should the two systems interact. 
We therefore recommend the Local Planning Authority include a condition in their Decision 
Notice regarding a management and maintenance regime for any sustainable drainage 
system that is included as part of the proposed development.  

For schemes of 10 or more units and other major development, we recommend the Local 
Planning Authority consults with the Lead Local Flood Authority regarding the exact wording 
of any condition.  
 
You may find the below a useful example.   

Example condition  

Prior to occupation of the development a sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority and agreed in writing.  The sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan shall include as a minimum:  

a. Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, or, 
management and maintenance by a resident’s management company; and 
b. Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable 
drainage system to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout 
its lifetime.  

The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved plan. 

 

Page 7 of 44

Page 132

Agenda Item 9



Reason: To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the sustainable 
drainage system in order to manage the risk of flooding and pollution during the lifetime of 
the development. 
                 
Please note, United Utilities cannot provide comment on the design, management and 
maintenance of an asset that is not in our ownership and therefore should the suggested 
condition be included in the Decision Notice, we will not be involved in discharging this 
condition.    

Water comments 

If the applicant intends to obtain a water supply from United Utilities for the proposed 
development, we strongly recommend they engage with us at the earliest opportunity. If 
reinforcement of the water network is required to meet the demand, this could be a 
significant project and the design and construction period should be accounted for.   
  
To discuss a potential water supply or any of the water comments detailed above, the 
applicant can contact the team at DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk.  

Please note, all internal pipework must comply with current Water Supply (water fittings) 
Regulations 1999. 

General comments  

Where United Utilities exist, the level of cover to the water mains and public sewers must 
not be compromised either during or after construction. 

It is the applicant's responsibility to demonstrate the exact relationship between any United 
Utilities' assets and the proposed development.  

A number of providers offer a paid for mapping service including United Utilities. To find out 
how to purchase a sewer and water plan from United Utilities, please visit the Property 
Searches website; https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/.   

You can also view the plans for free. To make an appointment to view our sewer records at 
your local authority please contact them direct, alternatively if you wish to view the water 
and the sewer records at our Lingley Mere offices based in Warrington please ring 0370 
751 0101 to book an appointment.  

Due to the public sewer transfer in 2011, not all sewers are currently shown on the statutory 
sewer records and we do not always show private pipes on our plans. If a sewer is 
discovered during construction; please contact a Building Control Body to discuss the 
matter further. 

Supporting information - Drainage  

 

 

Page 8 of 44

Page 133

Agenda Item 9



If the applicant intends to offer wastewater assets forward for adoption by United Utilities, 
the proposed detailed design will be subject to a technical appraisal by an Adoptions 
Engineer as we need to be sure that the proposal meets the requirements of Sewers for 
adoption and United Utilities’ Asset Standards. The detailed layout should be prepared with 
consideration of what is necessary to secure a development to an adoptable standard. This 
is important as drainage design can be a key determining factor of site levels and layout. 
The proposed design should give consideration to long term operability and give United 
Utilities a cost effective proposal for the life of the assets. Therefore, should this application 
be approved and the applicant wishes to progress a Section 104 agreement, we strongly 
recommend that no construction commences until the detailed drainage design, submitted 
as part of the Section 104 agreement, has been assessed and accepted in writing by 
United Utilities. Any works carried out prior to the technical assessment being approved is 
done entirely at the developers own risk and could be subject to change.   

Further information regarding Developer Services and Planning, can be found on our 
website at http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx.  

  
Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site consists of two fields located on the corner of Dalton Lane/Abbey 
Road/Breast Mill Beck Road. They extend to approx 12.5 ha. The site has the benefit of 
outline planning permission for the erection of approx 142 dwellings by virtue of appeal 
decision letter dated 10 Oct 2017.  

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Application for approval of reserved matters of access, appearance, landscaping, layout 
following outline approval B07/2018/0798 (Outline planning application for approximately 
142 dwellings with associated open space and landscaping, with all matters reserved) 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 B07/2015/0707 Proposed Housing Development at Dalton Lane Barrow-in-Furness 
Cumbria Outline planning application for approximately 142 dwellings with associated open 
space and landscaping, with all matters reserved. Appeal allowed 10/10/2017 
 
3.2 B22/2017/0741 Land North of Dalton Lane and west of Breast Mill Beck Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria Application for consent to display 3 No. marketing signs for a residential 
development located nearby under construction for Oakmere Homes. APPCOND 
16/01/2018 

 

 

 
  

Page 9 of 44

Page 134

Agenda Item 9



4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 Outline planning permission has been granted such that the issues to be addressed are 
limited to the reserved matters of access/appearance/landscaping/layout and scale. In 
addition applications to discharge the various conditions attached to the outline will need to 
be determined as separate matters. A list of the conditions is attached as appendix A. 

Access 

4.2 Access was indicated at outline stage via a new junction onto Dalton Lane. At that time it 
was envisaged that the access would be via a mini roundabout. Condition 9 attached to the 
permission stated as follows: 

 'With the exception of an emergency access link to Breast Mill Beck Road that 
vehicular access is provided solely from Dalton Lane via a roundabout junction' 

4.3 This design was revised to a standard give way junction after consultation with the 
County Council as highway authority and condition 9 varied accordingly (2018/0574 ). It 
includes widening of Dalton Lane to provide a right turn filter lane from the direction of 
Abbey Road. 

4.4 The highway authority have been consulted on the current proposals and advise that: 

'The revised access with Dalton Road has also been previously assessed for 
compliance with visibility and capacity and we have no objection to this layout' 
[1/04/2019] 

4.5 The location of the access is in the broad location considered by the appeal inspector 
with the detailed design as per that agreed with the County Council. The County Council as 
highway authority have confirmed that they have no objection to the layout but identify 
issues re visibility. This has been addressed via amended plans. 

Appearance 

4.6 The visual impression of the development will be determined by the proposed buildings 
and roads combined with the spaces and landscaping around them. The appearance will be 
of a spacious character with open spaces at the entrance to the development (and 
elsewhere) grass verges to the main estate road, and extensive landscaping throughout the 
development. 

4.7 In terms of materials for the dwellings, a combination of brick and render is proposed 
with sandstone being proposed for the most prominent elevations. 

4.8 The scheme accords with policy DS5 of the emerging plan which requires developments 
to have a high quality of design that integrates with their surroundings. 

 

 

Page 10 of 44

Page 135

Agenda Item 9



Landscaping 

4.9 Condition 12 stated as follows: 

"Any application for the approval of reserved matters in respect of landscaping or 
layout shall be based upon the submitted landscape strategy (DWP Associates) in 
accordance with a scheme of phasing and a 5 year landscape management plan" 

4.10 The referred to landscape strategy took account of the site's relationship with its wider 
landscape context including nearby listed buildings. 

4.11 The submitted landscaping scheme includes areas of amenity space and significant 
planting around the perimeter as per the agreed strategy. In addition there is indicated 
riverside planting species to the margins of the attenuation ponds and planting within 
individual house curtilages. Planting densities, size and species have now been provided 
with an emphasis on native planting as required by the Council's bio diversity 
supplementary planning document. 

4.12 In addition the mitigation area relating to bio diversity is shown to be landscaped as 
required via the undertaking secured under section 106 of the Act. In both cases the 
scheme includes native local species in order to achieve a natural appearance. 

4.13 The scheme includes boundary planting to take account of the setting of nearby listed 
buildings. While some harm will inevitably occur to their setting this was agreed at the 
outline stage to be less than substantial and not enough to warrant refusal of the outline 
application. The indicated boundary planting is intended to mitigate the harm to the extent 
agreed at the outline stage.   

Layout 

4.14 As per condition 12 the indicated layout is based on that previously agreed (DWP 
Associates). This shows a low density of 142 detached dwellings at 11.36 dwellings per 
hectare, set within large curtilages and with significant areas of amenity land. 

4.15 The County as highway authority have been consulted on the proposed layout and 
have raised no objections as it is considered to accord with the Cumbria Development 
Design Guide for new residential developments. 

4.16 It further accords with emerging policy DS5(g) as the layout prioritises building and 
landscape form over parking and roads 

4.17 The scheme also provides pedestrian links both onto Breast Mill Beck Road and 
connecting into a nearby public right of way. A cycle lane will also be introduced onto 
Dalton Lane. Within the site itself a network of paths and green spaces are proposed. The 
scheme accords with emerging policy DS5(e) which requires schemes to provide 
permeability and ease of movement for pedestrians and cyclists and similarly the Green 
Infrastructure policy GI1 which requires a network of inter-connecting natural and man 
made green spaces. 

 

Page 11 of 44

Page 136

Agenda Item 9



Scale 

4.18 The development mix includes 14 different house types, all detached, with the majority 
being 4 bedroom accommodation. Two of the house types are 5 bedrooms, and there is a 
three bedroom bungalow 'house' type. The scale accords with the low density vision of the 
development as a whole 

Representations 

4.19 A number of issues have been raised in the representations. I have underlined the 
objection with commentary beneath each point in turn: 

Concerns re additional traffic with Dalton Lane already being a busy road 

4.20 This matter is outside the scope of the current application with outline planning 
permission for approx 142 dwellings granted with sole access from Dalton Lane. Highway 
capacity was considered during the appeal process and not found to be an issue warranting 
refusal. 

That a single access is insufficient for a development of this size 

4.21 A single access point was considered acceptable at the outline application stage. 

Loss of countryside/sense of separation between Barrow and Dalton 

4.22 The inspector considered that developing the site for housing would be harmful to the 
rural character of the area, but that this harm was outweighed by the benefits of increasing 
the number and variety of the housing supply. This was in the context of the Council being 
unable to demonstrate a 5 year supply of housing triggering the 'tilted balance' [NPPF 
paragraph 11] 

Concerns re flooding which occurs in heavy rain/will be made worse 

4.23 Sufficient information was submitted at the outline stage to demonstrate that, in 
principle, a drainage scheme to address the risk of flood was deliverable. As a 
consequence there was no objection from the County Council as Lead Local Flood 
Authority, subject to further details being agreed. These details were made subject 
of condition no 5 which requires that a scheme of surface water drainage must be agreed 
prior to development commencing. This is a separate matter to the reserved matters 
submission and is subject of a separate application to discharge the condition. The LLFA 
have however confirmed that the drainage details are acceptable. The layout also 
incorporates the drainage infrastructure, namely attenuation ponds for surface water 
storage prior to discharge to an existing culvert, and ultimately a water course.  

4.24 The layout therefore accords with emerging policy DS5(m) which requires schemes to 
integrate sustainable drainage systems. 

 

 

Page 12 of 44

Page 137

Agenda Item 9



Concern that construction traffic could use Breast Mill Beck Road 

4.25 Dalton Lane is the proposed access for construction traffic ("haul route") and which is 
secured via the conditional outline planning permission 

Loss of hedgerows 

4.26 Condition 19 of the outline permission required that those hedgerows shown as being 
lost should be replaced on a 1:1 basis, except for important hedgerows which must be 
replaced on a 2:1 basis. The condition took into account a 'Statement of Common Ground' 
which was agreed between the Council and the applicant re bio diversity matters. This was 
agreed as follows: 

i) 203m of hedgerow qualifying as important under the Hedgerow Regulations 1997 will be 
lost to development to allow the site access off Dalton Lane 

ii) 398m of species poor, internal hedgerow will be lost to development. This includes 106m 
of gappy species poor defunct hedgerow. 

4.27 It was further agreed that bio diversity interests would be sufficiently addressed in 
relation to the hedgerow loss if: 

'provided all hedgerows to be lost is replanted (601m) as well as an additional 203m 
of hedge to compensate on a 2;1 basis for the loss of the important hedgerow using a 
species rich mix of native woody species of local provenance, with no replacement 
hedgerows forming part of garden boundaries' [Statement of Common Ground on 
Biodiversity Matters'] 

4.28 The submitted landscaping schemes demonstrates that these requirements are 
exceeded 

Loss of habitat 

4.29 The development will result in some loss of habitat. While this harm is compensated to 
some extent by the mitigation area and replacement planting the residual harm was not 
considered sufficient to outweigh the benefits in the context of the tilted balance, ie an 
increased supply of housing. 

4.30 The scheme includes provision of bat and bird nesting boxes to be incorporated into the 
fabric of dwellings on identified plots. 

4.31 The mitigation area consists of the field located on the east side of Breast Mill Beck 
Road where additional tree planting is proposed to the perimeter of the field with the central 
area managed for ground nesting birds. 

 

 

Houses should be designed as carbon neutral 

Page 13 of 44

Page 138

Agenda Item 9



4.32 The houses would meet the relevant Building Regulations with respect to current 
thermal efficiency standards. There was no requirement on the outline permission to 
exceed the national standard. 

Concern re proposed location of the bus stop 

4.33 This lies outside the scope of this application and is essentially a matter to be agreed 
with the County Council as highway authority and the bus operator. 

Dwellings located next to existing properties should be limited to bungalows 

4.34 No condition was imposed with this respect. High levels of separation between existing 
and proposed dwellings are achieved, which significantly exceed the 21m distance required 
by local policy. No sun-lighting/day-lighting issues are apparent. 

Concern that boundary planting will not maintain privacy for existing residents 

4.35 The boundary planting is comprised of native woodland species which seek to deliver a 
more natural, countryside effect to the development with bio diversity benefits. This also 
accords with emerging policy N4 which states that  'Landscaping proposals should also 
include new trees and other planting of suitable species for the location to enhance the 
landscape of the site and its surroundings'. The planting will in time provide some screening 
by filtering views. It is not designed to deliver the type of visual barrier which, say a leylandii 
hedge, would achieve. 

That there should be more planting in the south west corner 

4.36 This has been raised with the applicant. An amended plan has been submitted showing 
additional planting.  

Too many dwellings are proposed 

4.37 The number proposed is the number that was granted outline planning permission. 

Loss of privacy 

4.38 A distance of 21m has historically been considered to be the acceptable minimum to 
provide privacy by distance and this continues through emerging policy H17. In many cases 
the distances proposed are frequently in excess of 35m and always exceed the stated 
minimum. There is no conflict with emerging policy H17. 

Lack of diversity of house types - should be more terraced/semi detached/flats 

4.39 The application was proposed since its inception as a low density executive style 
development. The low density of 11.4 dwellings per ha reflects this.  

No community facilities - shops, schools, doctors surgery etc 

4.40 The County Council when consulted on the outline application stated that there were 
sufficient school places within the local area to serve the development. Based upon this 

Page 14 of 44

Page 139

Agenda Item 9



there was no requirement for the applicant to fund additional school places.  

4.41 The permission as approved is for a residential scheme. There was no requirement to 
provide additional facilities such as shops due to the location and scale not warranting their 
provision. 

Submitted plan inaccurately includes a hedgerow and tree which belong to properties in 
Dane Ghyll 

4.42 The application boundary appears to run up to but not beyond the hedgerow which in 
any event is shown to be retained.  

Construction noise and disturbance 

4.43 This is the subject of an application to discharge the planning condition and does not 
fall under the scope of the current application 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 This application is limited to the reserved matters of access, appearance, landscaping, 
layout and scale. The submitted details accord with emerging local policy insofar as they 
apply to the reserved matters. 

Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Reserved Matters approval of access, appearance, landscaping, layout 
and  scale be GRANTED subject to the following conditions ( to follow as Extra 
Information) 
  
                                      
Informative 

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out 

 This development will require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

   

 

  

  

  

Page 15 of 44

Page 140

Agenda Item 9



Appeal Decision APP/W0910/W/16/3165216 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          13 

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS 

1) Details of the access, appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale 
(hereinafter called "the reserved matters") shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority before any 
development takes place and the development shall be carried out as 
approved. 

2) Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the 
local planning authority not later than 3 years from the date of this 

permission and the development must be begun not later than whichever 
is the later of the following dates: 

a) The expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission 

b) Expiration of 2 years from the final approval of reserved matters or in 
the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last 

such matter to be approved. 

3) No more than 142 dwellings shall be erected on the site. 

4) Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems with foul 

directed to the foul sewer. 

5) Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water 

drainage scheme, based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the 
National Planning Practice Guidance with evidence of an assessment of 

the site conditions (inclusive of how the scheme shall be managed after 
completion) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority.  The surface water drainage scheme must be in 

accordance with the Non Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable 
Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national 

standards.  The drainage scheme submitted for approval shall be in 
accordance with the principles set out in the Proposed Drainage Strategy 
ref: 15131-C-50 dated 12/10/2015 proposing surface water discharging 

into the watercourse with an assessment that the receiving water course 
is cabable of receiving the discharge.  The development shall be 

completed, maintained and managed in accordance with the approved 
details. 

6) No dwellings shall be occupied (unless in accordance with a scheme of 

phasing previously submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority) until  the estate road, including footways, has been 

constructed in all respects to base course level, and street lighting has 
been provided and brought into full operational use in accordance with 
details approved under condition 8 below, including any scheme of 

phasing. 

7) The carriageway, footways and footpaths shall be designed, constructed, 

drained  and lit to an adoptable standard and in this respect further 
details, including a full specification, setting out plan, lighting details, 
longitudinal and cross sections, and details of phasing shall have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior 
to the laying out of the approved estate roads.  The development shall 

then proceed in accordance with the approved details. 

8) Prior to the occupation of the 30th dwelling a programme for the 
completion of the estate roads including footways where shown shall 

Page 16 of 44

Appendix A

Page 141

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/W/16/3165216 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          14 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 

authority and the estate roads shall then be completed in accordance 
with the approved programme and the details approved under condition 8 

above and to give effect to the consultation response of the County 
Council as highway authority. 

9) Any application for the approval of reserved matters in respect of the 

means of access to the approved development, shall ensure that with the 
exception of an emergency access link to Breast Mill Beck Road that 

vehicular access is provided solely from Dalton Lane via a roundabout 
junction to be designed in substantial accordance with the DTPC ‘Access 
Layout’ drawing no. J574/Access/Fig 1 dated 28th January 2016. 

10) Details of all measures to prevent surface water discharging onto the 
highway from house drives/parking areas shall have been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the local planning authority for approval prior 
to the occupation of any part of the development.  The works shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the 

occupation of the respective dwelling and shall be permenantly 
maintained operational thereafter. 

11) No development shall commence within the site until the applicant has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been 

submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.  This written scheme shall include the following components: 

i) An archaeological evaluation; 

ii) An archaeological recording programme the scope of which will be 
dependent upon the results of the evaluation; 

iii) Where significant archaeological remains are revealed by the 
programme of archaeological work, a post-excavation assessment 

and analysis, preparation of a site archive ready for deposition at a 
store approved by the local planning authority, completion of an 
archive report, and submission of the results for publication in a 

suitable journal. 

12) Any application for the approval of reserved matters in respect of 

landscaping or layout shall be based upon the submitted Landscape 
Strategy (PDP Associates) in accordance with a scheme of phasing and a 
5 year landscape management plan. 

13) No development shall commence until the measures to protect the trees 
identified in the submitted ‘Tree Report’ [Antony Wood/Yew Tree]  have 

been carried out in accordance with BS 5837:2012 including the 
identification and fencing of root protection areas.  None of the following 

shall be carried out within any of the so defined root protection areas: 
excavations, site works, trenches, channels, pipes, services, temporary 
buildings, deposit of soil or waste, storage of construction materials, 

equipment, vehicles or fuel.  No burning of any materials shall take place 
within 20 metres of any tree. 

14) All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping submitted with respect to condition 13 above shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details including the phasing scheme 

as agreed in writing with the local planning authority.  Any trees, 

Page 17 of 44

Page 142

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/W/16/3165216 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          15 

hedgerows or plants which within a period of five years from the 

completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 

others of a similar size and species, unless the local planning authority 
gives prior written consent to any variation. 

15) No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 

contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed 
development.  A suitable methodology for testing this material should be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior 
to the soils being imported onto site.  The methodology should include 
the sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the 

analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk assessment) 
and source material information.  The analysis shall then be carried out 

as per the agreed methodology with verification of its completion 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

16) In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 

the approved development, that was not previously identified, it must be 
reported immediately to the local planning authority.  Development on 

the part of the site affected must be halted and Field Investigations shall 
be carried out.  Where required by the local planning authority, 
remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and approved 

in writing by the local planning authority.  These shall be implemented 
prior to occupation of the development. 

17) Prior to the commencement of development a scheme of ‘reasonable 
avoidance measures’ with respect to the potential impact from 
construction activities on Great Crested Newts and amphibians generally, 

shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority.  The development shall then only proceed in 

accordance with the approved Scheme. 

18) Prior to the commencement of any development a Construction Method 
Statement shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

local planning authority.  The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period and provide for: 

The parking of vehicles by site operatives; 

Loading and unloading of plant and materials; 

Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 

Wheelwash facilities; 

Measures to control emission of dust and dirt during construction; 

A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste from construction work; 

Measures to avoid pollution including silting of water courses; 

Measures to protect wildlife. 

19) Any submission of reserved matters shall include a scheme including a 
phasing plan which covers the following areas; the retention of all 

hedgerows which can reasonably be retained; measures for the 
protection of retained hedgerows during the course of development; 

replacement hedgerows for those lost on a 1:1 basis except for important 
hedgerows where the replanting shall be on a 2:1 basis and in both cases 

Page 18 of 44

Page 143

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/W/16/3165216 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          16 

shall use a species- rich mix of native woody species of local provenance 

and including berried shrubs; that no hedgerows including replacement 
hedgerows shall form part of any residential curtilage; that the scheme 

shall include planting along the western site boundary and woodland and 
hedgerow planting along the eastern side boundary including areas where 
hedgerow is not currently present; that any ancient woodland indicator 

ground flora to be affected, including native bluebell, is to be translocated 
to retained hedgerows or the bases of newly created 

woodland/replacement hedgerows; that any newly planted hedgerows or 
woodland shall be seeded with suitable locally occurring ground flora.  
The development shall only proceed in accordance with the approved 

scheme and phasing plan. 

20) Any submission of reserved matters shall include a scheme for the 

provision of a minimum of 7 bat and 7 bird boxes based upon the details 
contained within Appendix A of the SoCG on biodiversity matters 
including a scheme of phasing.  The development shall be carried out in 

accordance with the approved scheme. 

21) Prior to the occupation of any dwelling a Travel Plan shall have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The 
plan shall be based on the Interim Travel Plan [DTPC dated Aug 2015] 
and identify the measures to be taken to encourage the achievement of a 

modal shift away from the use of private motor cars and measures for its 
delivery.  The recommendations of the Travel Plan shall be implemented. 

22) A Preliminary Investigation has identified potential unacceptable risks, 
therefore a Field Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in 
accordance with established procedures (BS10175 (2011) Code of 

Practice for the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR11)), shall be 

undertaken to determine the presence and degree of contamination and 
must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land 
practitioner.  The results of the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority before any development begins. 

23) Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 

authority.  The scheme must include an appraisal of remedial options and 
proposal of the preferred option(s), all works to be undertaken, proposed 

remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification plan.  A 
verification report shall be issued in accordance with a scheme of phasing 

to be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority 
prior to the occupation of any dwelling.  The scheme must ensure that 
the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use. 

Page 19 of 44

Page 144

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


G

G         14 Jan 19               K.Hill         Layout amended to suite new junction 

2019/0020

Page 20 of 44

P
age 145

A
genda Item

 9



FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/KES/P02

DATE

03/18

REVISION

-

SCALE

1:100@A3

Elevations

PROJECT TITLE

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Keswick House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

2019/0020

Page 21 of 44

P
age 146

A
genda Item

 9



Lounge

Kitchen

Utility

Hall

Store

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

W.C.

G
A

S

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Study.

Dining

Garage

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 3

Landing

Bedroom 4

Bath'

En-suite

Master Bedroom

Dressing

Area

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

DATE

REVISION

-

SCALE

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

024/KIRK/P02

03/18
1:100@A3

Elevations

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Kirkstone House Type

2019/0020

Page 22 of 44

P
age 147

A
genda Item

 9



FRONT ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

DATE

REVISION

-

SCALE

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

024/KIRK/P02

03/18
1:100@A3

Elevations

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Kirkstone House Type

2019/0020

Page 23 of 44

P
age 148

A
genda Item

 9



BATHROOM

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 2

ST

LOUNGE

KITCHEN

DINING

GARAGE

WC

HALL

UTILITY

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

W

EN-SUITE

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/RUS/P01

DATE

03/18

REVISION

-

SCALE

1:100@A3

Plans

Rusland House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

Dalton Road, Barrow

2019/0020

Page 24 of 44

P
age 149

A
genda Item

 9



FRONT ELEVATIONSIDE ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/RUS/P02

DATE

03/18

REVISION

-

SCALE

1:100@A3

Elevations

Rusland House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

Dalton Road, Barrow

2019/0020

Page 25 of 44

P
age 150

A
genda Item

 9



Cyl

7
6

2

838

762

8

3

8

762

762

7
6

2

762

6
8

6

8
3

8

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/THIRL/P01

DATE

03/18

REVISION

SCALE

1:100@A3

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Thirlmere House Type

Plans

2019/0020

Page 26 of 44

P
age 151

A
genda Item

 9



SIDE ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/THIRL/P02

DATE

03/18

REVISION

SCALE

1:100@A3

Dalton Road, Barrow

Thirlmere House Type

Elevations

2019/0020

Page 27 of 44

P
age 152

A
genda Item

 9



Bedroom 3

Bathroom

En-suite

En-suite

Store

Landing

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Master Bedroom

Bedroom 4

Bedroom 2

Loft

Access

Kitchen

Study

Hall

WC

Utility

Family

Lounge

Garage

C/b

Dining

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/ULLS/P01

DATE

03/18

REVISION

-

SCALE

1:100@A3

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

Plans

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Ullswater House Type

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

2019/0020

Page 28 of 44

P
age 153

A
genda Item

 9



Bedroom 4

Bedroom 3

Bedroom 2

Bath'

Master

Bedroom

En-suite

First Floor Plan

Study

Kitchen

Dining

W.C.

Utility

Lounge

Hall

Garage

Ground Floor Plan

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/BOR-AG/P01

DATE

03/18

REVISION

SCALE

1:100@A3

REV

Floor Plans

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Borrowdale Attached Garage House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

-

2019/0020

Page 29 of 44

P
age 154

A
genda Item

 9



Front Elevation

Side Elevation

Side Elevation Rear Elevation

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/BOR-AG/P02

DATE

03/18

REVISION

SCALE

1:100@A3

REV

Elevations

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Borrowdale Attached Garage House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

-

2019/0020

Page 30 of 44

P
age 155

A
genda Item

 9



REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION

RWP

RWP

ROOF LAYOUT

845

5975

5
9
7
5

FLOOR PLAN

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

DG/ELV01/AS

DATE

11/16

REVISION

SCALE

1:100@A3

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

Elevations

Standard Double Garage (AS)

-

2019/0020

Page 31 of 44

P
age 156

A
genda Item

 9



1

2

3

4

5678

9

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 1

EN-SUITE

LOUNGE

KITCHEN

DINING

WC

HALL

UTILITY

BREAKFAST

FAMILY

ST

LANDING 

W1

W1W1

W1 W1 W1

W1 W1 W1

W
1

GARAGE

D1

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

BEDROOM 4

EN-SUITE

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/ENN/P01

DATE

03/18

REVISION

-

SCALE

1:100@A3

Plans

Ennerdale House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

Dalton Lane, Barrow

2019/0020

Page 32 of 44

P
age 157

A
genda Item

 9



FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/ENN/P02

DATE

03/18

REVISION

-

SCALE

1:100@A3

Elevations

Ennerdale House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

Dalton Lane, Barrow

2019/0020

Page 33 of 44

P
age 158

A
genda Item

 9



Kitchen

Family

Utility

W.C.

Lounge

Study

Dining

Hall

RWP

Bedroom 4

Bedroom 3

Bedroom 2

RWP

BOILER

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Landing

Bath'

En-suite

En-suite

C/b

Master

Bedroom

E
L
E

.
G

A
S

838

838

838

6
8

6

8
3

8

838

762

762

762

7
6

2

762

686

Cup'd

762

7
6

2

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/FAIR/P01

DATE

03/18

REVISION

SCALE

1:100@A3

Plans

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Fairfield House Type

2019/0020

Page 34 of 44

P
age 159

A
genda Item

 9



FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/FAIR/P02

DATE

03/18

REVISION

SCALE

1:100@A3

Elevations

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Fairfield House Type

2019/0020

Page 35 of 44

P
age 160

A
genda Item

 9



CYL

BEDROOM 1

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 4

BATH

ENSUITE

STUDY/

BED 5

LANDING

DRESSING

ENSUITE

GARAGE

LIVING

DINING

FAMILY

KITCHEN

UTILITY
WC

HALL

FIRST FLOOR PLANGROUND FLOOR PLAN

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/GLN/P01

DATE

03/18

REVISION

-

SCALE

1:100@A3

Plans

PROJECT TITLE

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Glenridding House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

2019/0020

Page 36 of 44

P
age 161

A
genda Item

 9



REAR ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION
SIDE ELEVATION

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/GLN/P02

DATE

03/18

REVISION

-

SCALE

1:100@A3

Elevations

PROJECT TITLE

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Glenridding House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

2019/0020

Page 37 of 44

P
age 162

A
genda Item

 9



HALL

ST.

LOUNGE

DINING

KITCHEN

FAMILY

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 4

BEDROOM 1

BATHROOM

EN-SUITE

LANDING

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

EN-SUITE

BEDROOM 2

ST

BREAKFAST

UTILITY

GARAGE

WC

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/GOW/P01

DATE

03/18

REVISION

-

SCALE

1:100@A3

Plans

Gowan House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

Dalton Road, Barrow

2019/0020

Page 38 of 44

P
age 163

A
genda Item

 9



PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/GOW/P02

DATE

03/18

REVISION

-

SCALE

1:100@A3

Elevations

Gowan House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

Dalton Road, Barrow

2019/0020

Page 39 of 44

P
age 164

A
genda Item

 9



Bedroom 3

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 4

Kitchen

Dining

Lounge

Hall

W.C.

Utility

Lin. c/b

Store c/b

Landing

Store c/b

Garage

En-suite

Bathroom

Master Bedroom

G
A

S

Cyl

Ground Floor Plan

First Floor Plan

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

DATE

REVISION

-

SCALE

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

024/GRA/P01

05/17
1:100@A3

Plans

Dalton Road, Barrow

Grasmere House Type

2019/0020

Page 40 of 44

P
age 165

A
genda Item

 9



Front Elevation

Side Elevation

Side Elevation

Rear Elevation

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

DATE

REVISION

-

SCALE

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

024/GRA/P02

05/17
1:100@A3

Elevations

Dalton Road, Barrow

Grasmere House Type

2019/0020

Page 41 of 44

P
age 166

A
genda Item

 9



Bathroom

Bedroom 2

En-Suite

Bedroom 3

Master

Bedroom

6
8

6

7
6

2

762

762

Cyl

762

Kitchen

Dining

Lounge

Study

Hall

Garage

Store

W.C.

BOILER

838

838

838

838

8
3

8

8
3

8

7
6

2

7
6

2

c'pbd

CWT

7
6

2

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/HWK/P01

DATE

03/18

REVISION

SCALE

1:100@A3

Plans

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Hawkshead House Type (AS)

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

-

2019/0020

Page 42 of 44

P
age 167

A
genda Item

 9



SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

FRONT ELEVATIONSIDE ELEVATIONSIDE ELEVATION

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/HWK/P02

DATE

03/18

REVISION

SCALE

1:100@A3

Elevations

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Hawkshead House Type (AS)

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

-

2019/0020

Page 43 of 44

P
age 168

A
genda Item

 9



FAMILY

DINING

LIVING

GARAGE

WC

HALL

KITCHEN

BEDROOM 1

DRESSING

EN SUITE

BEDROOM 2

EN SUITE

BEDROOM 5 BEDROOM 4

BEDROOM 3

BATHROOM

LANDING

UTILITY

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NUMBER

024/KES/P01

DATE

03/18

REVISION

-

SCALE

1:100@A3

Plans

PROJECT TITLE

Dalton Lane, Barrow

Keswick House Type

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

2019/0020

Page 44 of 44

P
age 169

A
genda Item

 9



Appendices of Saved and Emerging Policies
 
Note to Members
 
Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the
agenda today.
 
Saved Policies
 
The starting point when determining applications remains the Development Plan.
Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless
material considerations, including the NPPF, indicate otherwise.
 
The tilted balance under paragraph 14 of the NPPF is engaged where any of the policies
relevant to the application are out of date or where there is no 5 year housing land
supply. At present the Council can demonstrate a supply in excess of 5 years. The
officers report will indicate if any policies are out of date and how much weight they can
be given. Under the tilted balance applications should be approved unless
 
"any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies as a whole, or specific policies in the
Framework indicate development should be restricted."
 
The tilted balance is not engaged where all relevant policies are in date and there is a
sufficient supply of housing land.
 
Emerging Policies
 
As the emerging Local Plan is now under examination, the policies within it can be given
weight. The amount of weight each policy has is dependent upon the significance of
unresolved objections to the policy and how consistent it is with the NPPF.
 
Local Plan 2017
 
Emerging Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to
find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be
approved wherever possible.
 

Page 170

Agenda Item 9



The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking
an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider
choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and
to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and
environmental gains for the Borough.
 
Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether:
 
a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning
Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or
 
b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that
development should be restricted.
 
 
Emerging Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should
meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by:
 
a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel
purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education
facilities;
 
b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity;
 
c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities
infrastructure;
 

Page 171

Agenda Item 9



d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light,
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels;
 
e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly
privacy, security and natural light;
 
f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed
development;
 
g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of
related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other
environmental assets;
 
h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity;
 
i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible;
 
j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production;
 
k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage
systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk;
 
l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic
environment including heritage assets and their settings; and
 
m) Development must comply with Policy DS3.
 
Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they
must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local
Plan objectives by alternative means.
 
Emerging Policy DS5 - Design
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications
must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of
the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's
Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they:
 

Page 172

Agenda Item 9



 
a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the
adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning
Documents;
 
b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their
setting;
 
c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it;
 
d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment;
 
e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas,
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed;
 
f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well-
structured building layout;
 
g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character;
 
h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally
sourced wherever possible;
 
i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees,
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists,
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place;
 
j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion
and public safety;
 
k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can
contribute to design objectives;
 
l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and
people with disabilities;
 

Page 173

Agenda Item 9



m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale;
 
n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation
of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and
 
o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the
provision of appropriate roof pitches.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy GI1 - Green Infrastructure
The Council, through the preparation and adoption of the Green Infrastructure Strategy
SPD, Masterplans and Development Briefs will identify and promote the creation,
enhancement and protection of a Green Infrastructure Framework designed to maintain,
enhance, expand and connect a network of natural and man-made green and blue
spaces together along with the project focus necessary to secure and implement its
delivery.
 
The Council will work proactively with the community, public sector partners, voluntary
sector, developers and utility providers to:
 
 
(a)     Ensure that all new development contributes to the protection and enhancement of
the Borough's distinctive and valued landscape and settlement character implementing a
network of Green Infrastructure as the context and setting for coherent and locally
distinctive place making.
 
(b)     Utilise landscape and urban design techniques together to assimilate development
and its supporting Green Infrastructure into sustainable, attractive multi-functional
layouts.
 
(c)     Integrate sustainable movement choices at all scales that support domestic,
leisure and tourism movements around and beyond the Borough to actively encourage
improved health, fitness and well-being.
 
(d)     Protect and integrate amenity open spaces, playing fields, sports pitches and play
areas within areas of Green Infrastructure including where a need is demonstrated. 
 
(e)     Protect, support and enhance biodiversity by creating inaccessible and well-

Page 174

Agenda Item 9



connected habitat within and between neighbouring areas that allows wildlife to co-exist
undisturbed whilst improving peoples accessibility to nature;
 
(f)      Include adaptive measures to help offset climate change including sustainable
urban drainage (SUDs) management and tree planting to reduce the impact of flooding
and assist in the cooling of `urban heat islands'; and
 
(g)     Facilitate local food production in allotments, gardens and adjacent agriculture
 
 
 
 
 
Emerging Policy H17 - Protection of Residential Privacy
Proposals for extensions must demonstrate through good design that an acceptable
standard of privacy can be maintained between opposing and neighbouring properties.
Principal windows in the side elevations of habitable rooms at upper floor levels should
be avoided where the privacy of neighbouring occupiers will be compromised. Where
privacy is to be protected by distance alone, a minimum of 21 metres will be required
between the facing windows of habitable rooms of opposing homes. Exceptions may be
made for the facing windows of ground floor habitable rooms where adequate screening
exists and in cases where normal standards of separation cannot be achieved and
existing standards will not be eroded by accepting distances of less than 21 metres. In
all situations the use of obscure glazing in the principal windows of habitable rooms will
not be an acceptable measure to overcome the provisions of this policy as this is
deemed to provide a sub-standard level of accommodation.
 
Habitable areas are defined as living rooms, bedrooms, studies, dining rooms, and
kitchens with dining areas.
 
 
 
Emerging Policy H7 - Housing Development on Windfall Sites
Applications for residential development on windfall sites (i.e. sites that are not allocated
in the Local Plan) will be permitted where they satisfy all of the following criteria:
 
a) The site is located within or adjoining an existing urban area or within a cordon village
identified in Policy H4;
 
b) Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively;

Page 175

Agenda Item 9



 
c) Buildings are well designed in terms of siting, grouping, scale, orientation, detailing,
external finishes, security and landscaping in response to the form, scale, character ,
environmental quality and appearance of the site and the surrounding area;
 
d) An acceptable standard of amenity is created for future residents of the property in
terms of sunlighting, daylighting, privacy, outlook,  noise and ventilation;
 
e) The site is served by a satisfactory access that would not impact unduly on the
highway network;
 
f) The site has been designed to promote accessibility by walking, cycling and public
transport, as opposed to the private car;
 
g) The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact, drainage,
waste management, transport implications and is not at risk of flooding;
 
h) The capacity of the current and proposed infrastructure to serve the development is
adequate taking into account committed and planned housing development;
 
i) Where spare infrastructure capacity is not available, the site has the ability to provide
for the infrastructure requirements it generates, subject to criterion f);
 
j) Within rural settlements the applicant will be expected to demonstrate how the
development will enhance or maintain the vitality of the rural community where the
housing is proposed;
 
k) Where the site is located on the edge of Barrow and Dalton, the applicant will be
required to demonstrate how the development integrates within existing landscape
features and is physically linked to the settlement and does not lead to an unacceptable
intrusion into the open countryside or would result in the visual or physical coalescence
of settlements;
 
l) The proposal will not harm the historic environment, heritage assets or their setting;
 
m) There would be no unacceptable effects on the amenities and living conditions of
surrounding properties from overlooking, loss of light, the overbearing nature of the
proposal or an unacceptable increase in on-street parking; and
 
n) The development must comply with Policy N3 and the design principles set out in the

Page 176

Agenda Item 9



Development Strategy chapter should be followed.
 
The site should make effective use of previously developed land where possible.
 
Emerging Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features
New development should conserve and enhance biodiversity features, and proposals for
new development should be submitted with landscaping proposals, including a
Management Plan, which show how existing trees, riparian corridors/trees, hedgerows,
ponds and other wildlife features will be integrated into the development. Landscaping
proposals should also include new trees and other planting of suitable species for the
location to enhance the landscape of the site and its surroundings as appropriate.
 
Trees which positively contribute to the visual amenity and environmental value of that
location will be protected. New development should not result in the loss of or damage
to ancient woodland or veteran or aged trees outside woodland.
 
Where the conservation of biodiversity features cannot be achieved, the applicant must
justify their loss. Where the Council is satisfied that the loss is adequately justified,
replacement trees, hedgerows, ponds and other wildlife features will be required.
 
Proposals which include landscaping proposals, replacement of wildlife features, new
wildlife features, or which integrate existing wildlife features into the development, will be
required to demonstrate that measures will be put in place to manage these features as
appropriate, including the use of suitable legal agreements.
 
 
 
 

Page 177

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

BOOK 3 FOR DECISION 
 

21st May 2019 
 

 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen,  
 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Planning Manager 
 

Page 179

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

B07/2018/0375 
Planning Committee                                                        

21
st
 May 2019 

 

  

  

 

Application Number : B07/2018/0375 Date Valid : 15/05/2018 

Address : London Road, Lindal-in-Furness 
Case Officer: Outsourced to Cushman & 
Wakefield  

Proposal : Outline permission for the erection of 35 dwellings and associated car parking, 
landscaping and highways infrastructure with all matters reserved except access  

Ward : Lindal-in-Furness Parish : Lindal-in-Furness 

Applicant : Chandlers Country Homes Agent : Steven Abbott Associates   

Statutory Date : 10/11/2018 agreed 
extension of time until 18/04/2019 

Recommendation : Grant subject to 
conditions 

  

National Guidance 

The NPPF seeks to ensure that sustainable development is approved without delay where it 
complies with the Framework and relevant local plan policies. The 2018 NPPF places a greater 
emphasis upon housing delivery and supply, making effective use of land, alongside good 
design such as the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SuDs) to reduce over reliance 
on piped drainage infrastructure. Paragraph 59 states that in order to significantly boost the 
supply of homes it is important that a sufficient amount and variety of land should come forward.  

National guidance, and the government stance in the housing White Paper (2017), also seeks to 
ensure that Planning Authorities are receptive to changes in the housing market and should 
work with developers in a proactive and flexible way to meet perceived housing demand. 

Local Plan Policies 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

Saved Local Plan Policies 

1. Policy B3 
2. Policy B4 
3. Policy G9 
4. Policy D21 
5. Policy F4 
6. Policy F6 
7. Policy F11 
8. Policy F15 
9. Housing Chapter Alteration 2006 - Policy B3 
10. Housing Chapter Alteration 2006 - Policy B5 

Page 1 of 60

Page 180

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Emerging Draft Local Plan Policies 

1. Policy DS1 -  Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
2. Policy DS2 -  Sustainable Development Criteria 
3. Policy DS3 – Development Strategy 
4. Policy DS5 – Design 
5. Policy DS6 – Landscaping 
6. Policy C1 –   Flood Risk & Erosion 
7. Policy C3a – Water Management 
8. Policy C5 –   Promoting Renewable Energy 
9. Policy C7 –   Light Pollution 
10.  Policy H3 –  Allocation of sites for Housing Development 
11.  Policy H4 –  Development Cordons 
12.  Policy H7 –  Housing Development  
13.  Policy H9 –  Housing Density  
14.  Policy H11 –Housing Mix 
15.  Policy H14 –Affordable Housing 
16.  Policy GI4 – Green Spaces 
17.  Policy I1 –   Developer Contributions 
18.  Policy I3 –   Access to Community Facilities 
19.  Policy I6 -    Parking 

Summary of Main Issues 

The application is for outline planning permission for a development of up to 35 dwellings and 
access, with all other matters reserved for future approval. The site is not currently allocated for 
residential uses within the Saved Local Plan but the majority is proposed as a residential 
allocation in the emerging Local Plan, which is close to adoption and can be given significant 
weight. The Report on the Examination of the Barrow Local Plan was received on the 20th March 
2019, it is proposed that the Barrow Local Plan will be amended in line with the Main 
Modifications and presented to the Council in June for formal adoption.  

A small proportion of the site is also proposed as Green Space. On this basis, the key issues 
concern whether the principle of residential development on the site is acceptable and whether 
the proposed vehicular access complies with highway standards. Other matters raised by 
statutory consultees, including drainage, archaeology, impact of the loss of proposed 
greenspace (allotments) and children’s play space, can be considered in detail at reserved 
matters stage, by way of condition.   

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Development advertised on site and in the press as major development 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name               Properties 
 

London Road              No’s 4-6, 8-29, Chandlers Café 
 

Station Terrace           No’s 1-4, Spinning Croft 
Church Close              No 3 
Railway Terrace          No 45 

 

Page 2 of 60

Page 181

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

12 0 12 0 

   
The primary concerns raised in the representations relate to highways and transport matters. 
Key issues raised are as follows: 
 

 Narrowing of London Road through the construction of a footpath along the eastern side 
of the road 

 Given the sites proximity to the A590, no yellow lines are proposed on either side of 
London Road 

 Proposed difficulty of large vehicles turning onto London Road from the A590 

 Visibility splays should be provided as part of any development on site  
 
Additional comments concern the potential for flood risk, inadequate drainage, and loss of 
biodiversity on site.  

Organisations Consulted 

Statutory Consultees 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control)  
Cumbria County Council (Archaeology) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Network Rail 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Service Contamination) 
Highways England 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways)  
Cumbria County Council (Lead Local Flood Authority)  
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy)  
Cumbria County Council (PROW) 
Cumbria County Council (Transport and Spatial Planning)  
Lindal and Marton Parish Council  
   

List of Organisation Responses 
 

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 11/06/2018 

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals” 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 60

Page 182

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Cumbria County Council (Archaeology) 13/06/2018 
 
“The heritage statement that has been submitted with the application indicates the proposed 
development has the potential to disturb archaeological assets associated with mining remains 
shown on late 19th century maps lying on the edge of the development. It also suggests that, 
given the nature of the archaeological remains in the surrounding area, there is the potential for 
currently unknown remains to survive on the site. I therefore consider the construction of the 
proposed development has the potential to disturb archaeological assets of local significance. 
 
Consequently, I recommend that, in the event planning consent is granted, an archaeological 
evaluation and, where necessary, a scheme of archaeological recording be undertaken in 
advance of development. I advise that this work should be commissioned and undertaken at the 
expense of the developer and can be secured through the inclusion of a condition in any 
planning consent. I suggest the following form of words: 
 
“No development shall commence within the site until the applicant has secured the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
This written scheme will include the following components: 
 
i. An archaeological evaluation;  
ii. A recording programme of the archaeological assets impacted upon by [he permitted 
development, the scope of which will be dependent upon the results of the evaluation;  
iii. Where significant archaeological assets are revealed by the programme of archaeological 
work, a post-excavation assessment and analysis, preparation of a site archive ready for 
deposition at a store approved by the Local Planning Authority, completion of an archive report, 
and submission of the results for publication in a suitable journal. 
 
(Reasons: To afford reasonable opportunity for an examination to be made to determine the 
existence of any remains of archaeological interest within the site and for the preservation, 
examination or recording of such remains)” 
 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 13/06/2018 
 
“There are no objections to the proposed development, but it should be noted that the proposed 
development is situated within the potential inundation area for Harlock Reservoir and Poaka 
Beck Reservoir. This reservoir falls under the Water Framework Directive and has a prepared 
off-site emergency planning. Accordingly, I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the 
application being approved, advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further 
discussion of available information”. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 60

Page 183

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Network Rail 19/06/2018 
 
 “Network Rail has the following comments to make on the above proposal: 

When designing proposals, the developer and LPA are advised that any measurements must 

be taken from the operational railway / Network Rail boundary and not from the railway tracks 

themselves. From the existing railway tracks to the Network Rail boundary fence, the land will 

include critical infrastructure (e.g. cables, signals, overhead lines, communication equipment 

etc) and boundary treatments which might be adversely impacted by outside party proposals 

unless the necessary asset protection measures are undertaken. No proposal should increase 

Network Rail's liability. 

The developer/applicant must ensure that their proposal, both during construction and as a 

permanent arrangement, does not affect the safety, operation or integrity of the existing 

operational railway / Network Rail land. There must be no physical encroachment of the 

proposal onto Network Rail land, no over-sailing into Network Rail air-space and no 

encroachment of foundations onto Network Rail land and boundary treatments. Any 

construction works on site and any future maintenance works must be conducted solely within 

the applicant's land ownership. 

(1)  

In general, percolation tests have shown that infiltration is not suitable for the majority of the 

site. However soakaways are proposed for plots 22-27. Network Rail request that no 

soakaways are installed at this site due to the concentration of sub-surface water adjacent to 

the railway cutting. Concentration of sub-surface water could allow sub-surface flows towards 

the lower railway cutting, which could cause additional flows into the cutting, softening of the 

cutting, leading to failure of the slope. 

Surface water must not be allowed to flow towards the operational railway, both during 
construction or once the development has been completed. 

All surface and foul waters must drain away from the railway via a closed sealed pipe system. 

The developer must ensure that there is no surface or sub-surface flow of water towards the 
operational railway. 

Rainwater goods must not discharge in the direction of the railway or onto or over the railway 
boundary. 

(2) 

The plans show that tree planting is planned adjacent to the railway cutting. Network Rail 
Off Track RAM must be consulted regarding the planting regime to ensure that species 
which could be troublesome for the operational railway in the future, are not planted. 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 60

Page 184

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

(3) 

Proposals for the site should take into account the recommendations of, 'BS 5837:2012 Trees 
in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction', which needs to be applied to prevent 
long term damage to the health of trees on Network Rail land so that they do not become a 
risk to members of the public in the future. 

All vegetation on site should be in line with the recommended tree matrix for the reasons 
outlined in the attached document. 

(4) 

The applicant will provide at their own expense (if not already in place): 

• The fence should be maintained by the developer and that no responsibility is passed to 

Network Rail. 

• A suitable trespass proof steel palisade fence of a minimum height of 1.8m adjacent to the 

boundary with the railway/railway land 

• The fence must be wholly constructed and maintained within the applicant’s land 

ownership footprint 

• All foundations must be wholly constructed and maintained within the applicant’s land 

ownership footprint without over-sailing or encroaching onto Network Rails Boundary 

• The fence must be set back at least 1m from the railway boundary to ensure that 

Network Rail can maintain and renew its boundary treatments 

• Any and all existing Network Rail fencing and boundary treatments must not be 

damaged or removed in any way 

• Network Rail will not allow any maintenance works for proposal fencing or proposal 
boundary treatments to take place on its land   

• Any fencing over I.8m in height will require agreement from Network Rail with details of 

foundations and wind loading calculations submitted for review. 

• The fence should be maintained by the developer and that no responsibility is passed to 

Network Rail. 

• Any and all existing network Rail fencing and boundary treatments must not be 

damaged or removed in any way 

• Proposal fencing must not be placed on the boundary with the railway  

 

 

 

Page 6 of 60

Page 185

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

(5) 

The developer is to submit directly to Network Rail, a Risk Assessment and Method Statement 
(RAMS) for all works to be undertaken within 10m of the operational railway under 
Construction (Design and Management) Regulations, and this is in addition to any planning 
consent. Network Rail would need to be re-assured the works on site follow safe methods of 
working and have also taken into consideration any potential impact on Network Rail land and 
the existing operational railway infrastructure. Builder to ensure that no dust or debris is 
allowed to contaminate Network Rail land as the outside party would be liable for any clean-up 
costs. Review and agreement of the RAMS will be undertaken between Network Rail and the 
applicant/developer. The applicant /developer should submit the RAMs directly to: 

AssetProtectionLNWNorth@networkrail.co.uk 

(6) 

Any scaffolding which is to be constructed within 10 metres of the Network Rail / railway 

boundary must be erected in such a manner that at no time will any poles over-sail the 

railway and protective netting around such scaffolding must be installed. The applicant/ 

applicant's contractor must consider if they can undertake the works and associated 

scaffolding / access for working at height within the footprint of their land ownership boundary. 

The applicant is reminded that when pole(s) are erected for construction or maintenance 

works, must have at least a 3m failsafe zone between the maximum height of the pole(s) and 

the railway boundary. 

(7) 

If vibro-compaction machinery / piling machinery or piling and ground treatment works are to 
be undertaken as part of the development, details of the use of such machinery and a 
method statement must be submitted to the Network Rail Asset Protection Engineer for 
agreement 
 

 All works shall only be carried out in accordance with the method statement and the 

works will be reviewed by Network Rail. The Network Rail Asset Protection Engineer will 

need to review such works in order to determine the type of soil (e.g. sand, rock) that the 

works are being carried out upon and also to determine the level of vibration that will occur as 

a result of the piling. 

• The impact upon the railway is dependent upon the distance from the railway boundary 

of the piling equipment, the type of soil the development is being constructed upon and the 

level of vibration. Each proposal is therefore different and thence the need for Network Rail to 

review the piling details / method statement. 

Maximum allowable levels of vibration - CFA piling is preferred as this tends to give rise to less 

vibration. Excessive vibration caused by piling can damage railway structures and cause 

movement to the railway track as a result of the consolidation of track ballast. The developer 

must demonstrate that the vibration does not exceed a peak particle velocity of 5mm/s at any 

structure or with respect to the rail track. 

Page 7 of 60

Page 186

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

(8) 
Lighting close to or adjacent to the railway boundary must not impact train drivers ability to 
perceive signals and therefore all column lighting is recommended to be: 

• White LED 

• Flat bottom luminaires and Downlit throw lighting 

• Lighting to be directed away from the railway boundary 

 

(9) 

Network Rail will need to review and agree all excavation and earthworks within 10m of the 

railway boundary to determine if the works impact upon the support zone of our land and 

infrastructure as well as determining relative levels in relation to the railway. Network Rail 

would need to agree to the following: 

• Alterations to ground levels 

• De-watering works 

• Ground stabilisation works 

Network Rail would need to review and agree the methods of construction works on site to 

ensure that there is no impact upon critical railway infrastructure. No excavation works are to 

commence without agreement from Network Rail. The LPA are advised that the impact of third 

party excavation and earthworks can be different depending on the geography and soil in the 

area. The LPA and developer are also advised that support zones for railway infrastructure 

may extend beyond the railway boundary and into the proposal area; therefore consultation 

with Network Rail is requested. Any right of support must be maintained by the developer. 

(10) 

Network Rail requests that the developer ensures there is a minimum 2 metres gap between 

the buildings and structures on site and the railway boundary. Less than 2m from the railway 

boundary to the edge of structures could result in construction and future maintenance works 

being undertaken on Network Rail land. This would not be acceptable. All the works 

undertaken to facilitate the design and layout of the proposal should be undertaken wholly 

within the applicant's land ownership footprint. 

(11) 

The LPA and the developer (along with their chosen acoustic contractor) are recommended to 

engage in discussions to determine the most appropriate measures to mitigate noise and 

vibration from the existing operational railway to ensure that there will be no future issues for 

residents once they take up occupation of the dwellings. 

 

 

Page 8 of 60

Page 187

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Network Rail is aware that residents of dwellings adjacent to or in close proximity to, or near to 

the existing operational railway have in the past discovered issues upon occupation of 

dwellings with noise and vibration. It is therefore a matter for the developer and the LPA via 

mitigation measures and conditions to ensure that any existing noise and vibration, and the 

potential for any future noise and vibration are mitigated appropriately prior to construction. 

To note are: 

• The current level of railway usage may be subject to change at any time without prior 

notification including increased frequency of trains, night time train running, heavy freight 

trains, trains run at weekends [bank holidays. 

 

• Maintenance works to trains could be undertaken at night and may mean leaving the trains' 

motors running which can lead to increased levels of noise and vibration. 

• Network Rail carry out works at night on the operational railway when normal rail traffic is 

suspended and these works can be noisy and cause vibration. 

• Network Rail may need to conduct emergency works on the existing operational railway line 

which may not be notified to residents in advance due to their safety critical nature and may 

occur at any time of the day or night, during bank holidays and at weekends. 

• Works to the existing operational railway may include the presence of plant and machinery 

as well as vehicles and personnel for works. 

• The proposal should not prevent Network Rail from its statutory undertaking. Network Rail 

is a track authority. It may authorise the use of the track by train operating companies or 

independent railway operators and may be compelled to give such authorisation. Its ability 

to respond to any enquiries regarding intended future use is therefore limited. 

• The scope and duration of any Noise and Vibration Assessments may only reflect the levels 

of railway usage at the time of the survey. 

• Any assessments required as part of CDM (Construction Design Management) or local 

planning authority planning applications validations process are between the developer and 

their appointed contractor. 

• Network Rail cannot advise third parties on specific noise and vibration mitigation 

measures. Such measures will need to be agreed between the developer, their approved 

acoustic contractor and the local planning authority. 

• Design and layout of proposals should take into consideration and mitigate against existing 

usage of the operational railway and any future increase in usage of the said existing 

operational railway. 

• Noise and Vibration Assessments should take into account any railway depots, freight 

depots, light maintenance depots in the area. If a Noise and Vibration Assessment does not 

take into account, any depots in the area then the applicant will be requested to reconsider 

the findings of the report.  

 

 

Page 9 of 60

Page 188

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

    (12) 

    Where a proposal calls for the following adjacent to the boundary with the operational 
railway, running parallel to the operational railway or where the existing operational 
railway is below the height of the proposal site: 

 Hard standing areas 

 Turning circles 

 Roads, public highways to facilitate access and egress from developments  

    Network Rail would very strongly recommend the installation of suitable high kerbs or crash 
barriers (e.g. Armco Safety Barriers). 

This is to prevent vehicle incursion from the proposal area impacting upon the safe operation 
of the railway. 

(13) 

As the proposal includes works which may impact the existing operational railway and in order 

to facilitate the above, a BAPA (Basic Asset Protection Agreement) will need to be agreed 

between the developer and Network Rail. The developer will be liable for all costs incurred by 

Network Rail in facilitating this proposal, including any railway site safety costs, possession 

costs, asset protection costs / presence, site visits, review and agreement of proposal 

documents and any buried services searches. The BAPA will be in addition to any planning 

consent. 

The applicant / developer should liaise directly with Asset Protection to set up the BAPA”. 

Network Rail 26/02/2019 

"Network Rail has the following comments to make.  
 
(1) 
The applicant is proposing tree planting along the boundary with the railway. 
The landscaping adjacent to and in close proximity of the railway boundary should be in line with 
the attached tree planting matrix – for the reasons outlined. 
 
(2) 
When designing proposals, the developer and LPA are advised, that any measurements must 
be taken from the operational railway / Network Rail boundary and not from the railway tracks 
themselves. From the existing railway tracks to the Network Rail boundary fence, the land will 
include critical infrastructure (e.g. cables, signals, overhead lines, communication equipment 
etc) and boundary treatments (including support zones) which might be adversely impacted by 
outside party proposals unless the necessary asset protection measures are undertaken. No 
proposal should increase Network Rail’s liability. 

 
 
 
 

Page 10 of 60

Page 189

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

(3) 
The developer is to submit directly to Network Rail, a Risk Assessment and Method Statement 
(RAMS) for all works to be undertaken within 10m of the operational railway under Construction 
(Design and Management) Regulations, and this is in addition to any planning consent. Network 
Rail would need to be re-assured the works on site follow safe methods of working and have 
also taken into consideration any potential impact on Network Rail land and the existing 
operational railway infrastructure. Builder to ensure that no dust or debris is allowed to 
contaminate Network Rail land as the outside party would be liable for any clean-up costs. 
Review and agreement of the RAMS will be undertaken between Network Rail and the 
applicant/developer. The applicant /developer should submit the RAMs directly to: 
AssetProtectionLNWNorth@networkrail.co.uk 
 
(4) 
The applicant will provide at their own expense (if not already in place): 

 
A suitable trespass proof steel palisade fence of a minimum height of 1.8m adjacent to 
the boundary with the railway/railway land. 
 
The fence must be wholly constructed and maintained within the applicant’s land ownership 
footprint. 
 
All foundations must be wholly constructed and maintained within the applicant’s land 
ownership footprint without over-sailing or encroaching onto Network Rail’s boundary. 
 
The fence must be set back at least 1m from the railway boundary to ensure that 
Network Rail can maintain and renew its boundary treatments. 
 
Any and all existing Network Rail fencing and boundary treatments must not be 
damaged or removed in any way. 
 
Network Rail will not allow any maintenance works for proposal fencing or proposal 
boundary treatments to take place on its land. 
 
Proposal fencing must not be placed on the boundary with the railway. 
 
Any fencing over 1.8m in height will require agreement from Network Rail with details of 
foundations and wind loading calculations submitted for review. 
 
The fence should be maintained by the developer and that no responsibility is passed to 
Network Rail. 
 
(5) 
 
The developer/applicant must ensure that their proposal, both during construction and as a 
permanent arrangement, does not affect the safety, operation or integrity of the existing 
operational railway / Network Rail land. There must be no physical encroachment of the 
proposal onto Network Rail land, no over-sailing into Network Rail air-space and no 
encroachment of foundations onto Network Rail land and boundary treatments. Any construction 
works on site and any future maintenance works must be conducted solely within the applicant’s 
land ownership. 

Page 11 of 60

Page 190

Agenda Item 10

mailto:AssetProtectionLNWNorth@networkrail.co.uk


 

 

 

 
(6) 
 
Any scaffolding which is to be constructed within 10 metres of the Network Rail / railway 
boundary must be erected in such a manner that at no time will any poles over-sail the railway 
and protective netting around such scaffolding must be installed. The applicant / applicant’s 
contractor must consider if they can undertake the works and associated scaffolding / access for 
working at height within the footprint of their land ownership boundary. The applicant is 
reminded that when pole(s) are erected for construction or maintenance works, must have at 
least a 3m failsafe zone between the maximum height of the pole(s) and the railway boundary. 
(7) 
 
If vibro-compaction machinery / piling machinery or piling and ground treatment works are to be 
undertaken as part of the development, details of the use of such machinery and a method 
statement must be submitted to the Network Rail Asset Protection Engineer for agreement. 
 
All works shall only be carried out in accordance with the method statement and the 
works will be reviewed by Network Rail. The Network Rail Asset Protection Engineer will need to 
review such works in order to determine the type of soil (e.g. sand, rock) that the works are 
being carried out upon and also to determine the level of vibration that will occur as a result of 
the piling. 
 
The impact upon the railway is dependent upon the distance from the railway boundary of the 
piling equipment, the type of soil the development is being constructed upon and the level of 
vibration. Each proposal is therefore different and thence the need for Network Rail to review the 
piling details / method statement. 
 
Maximum allowable levels of vibration - CFA piling is preferred as this tends to give rise to less 
vibration. Excessive vibration caused by piling can damage railway structures and cause 
movement to the railway track as a result of the consolidation of track ballast. The developer 
must demonstrate that the vibration does not exceed a peak particle velocity of 5mm/s at any 
structure or with respect to the rail track. 
 
(8) 
 
The applicant must ensure that the proposal drainage does not increase Network Rail’s liability, 
or cause flooding pollution or soil slippage, vegetation or boundary issues on railway land. 
Therefore, the proposal drainage on site will ensure that: 
 
All surface waters and foul waters drain away from the direction of the railway boundary. 
 
Any soakaways for the proposal must be placed at least 30m from the railway boundary. 
 
Any drainage proposals for less than 30m from the railway boundary must ensure that 
surface and foul waters are carried from site in closed sealed pipe systems. 
 
Suitable drainage or other works must be provided and maintained by the developer to 
prevent surface water flows or run-off onto Network Rail’s property. 
 
 

Page 12 of 60

Page 191

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 
Proper provision must be made to accept and continue drainage discharging from Network 
Rail’s property. 
 
Drainage works must not impact upon culverts on developers land including culverts/brooks etc 
that drain under the railway. 
 
The developer must ensure that there is no surface or sub-surface flow of water towards the 
operational railway. 
 
Rainwater goods must not discharge in the direction of the railway or onto or over the railway 
boundary. 
 
(9) 
 
Network Rail will need to review and agree all excavation and earthworks within 10m of the 
railway boundary (and the embankment) to determine if the works impact upon the support zone 
of our land and infrastructure as well as determining relative levels in relation to the railway. 
Network Rail would need to agree to the following: 

 Alterations to ground levels 

 De-watering works 

 Ground stabilisation works 
 
Network Rail would need to review and agree the methods of construction works on site to 
ensure that there is no impact upon critical railway infrastructure. No excavation works are to 
commence without agreement from Network Rail. The LPA are advised that the impact of 
outside party excavation and earthworks can be different depending on the geography and soil 
in the area. 
 
The LPA and developer are also advised that support zones for railway infrastructure may 
extend beyond the railway boundary and into the proposal area. Therefore, consultation with 
Network Rail is requested. Any right of support must be maintained by the developer. 
 
(10) 
 
Network Rail requests that the developer ensures there is a minimum 3 metres gap between the 
buildings and structures on site and the railway boundary. Less than 3m from the railway 
boundary to the edge of structures could result in construction and future maintenance works 
being undertaken on Network Rail land. This would not be acceptable. All the works  undertaken 
to facilitate the design and layout of the proposal should be undertaken wholly within the 
applicant’s land ownership footprint. 

 
(11) 
 
The LPA and the developer (along with their chosen acoustic contractor) are recommended to 
engage in discussions to determine the most appropriate measures to mitigate noise and 
vibration from the existing operational railway to ensure that there will be no future issues for 
residents once they take up occupation of the dwellings. 
 
 

Page 13 of 60

Page 192

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 
Network Rail is aware that residents of dwellings adjacent to or in close proximity to, or near to 
the existing operational railway have in the past discovered issues upon occupation of dwellings 
with noise and vibration. It is therefore a matter for the developer and the LPA via mitigation 
measures and conditions to ensure that any existing noise and vibration, and the potential for 
any future noise and vibration are mitigated appropriately prior to construction. 

 
The NPPF states, “182.Where the operation of an existing business or community facility could 
have a significant adverse effect on new development (including changes of use), in its vicinity, 
the applicant (or ‘agent of change’) should be required to provide suitable mitigation before the 
development has been completed.” 
 
To note are: 
 
The current level of railway usage may be subject to change at any time without prior 
notification including increased frequency of trains, night time train running, heavy freight trains, 
trains run at weekends /bank holidays. 
 
Maintenance works to trains could be undertaken at night and may mean leaving the 
trains’ motors running which can lead to increased levels of noise and vibration. 
 
Network Rail carry out works at night on the operational railway when normal rail traffic is 
suspended and these works can be noisy and cause vibration. 
 
Network Rail may need to conduct emergency works on the existing operational railway line 
which may not be notified to residents in advance due to their safety critical nature, and may 
occur at any time of the day or night, during bank holidays and at weekends. 
 
Works to the existing operational railway may include the presence of plant and machinery as 
well as vehicles and personnel for works. 
 
The proposal should not prevent Network Rail from its statutory undertaking. Network Rail is a 
track authority. 
 
It may authorise the use of the track by train operating companies or independent railway 
operators and may be compelled to give such authorisation. Its ability to respond to any 
enquiries regarding intended future use is therefore limited. 
 
The scope and duration of any Noise and Vibration Assessments may only reflect the 
levels of railway usage at the time of the survey. 
 
Any assessments required as part of CDM (Construction Design Management) or local planning 
authority planning applications validations process are between the developer and their 
appointed contractor. 
 
Network Rail cannot advise third parties on specific noise and vibration mitigation 
measures. Such measures will need to be agreed between the developer, their approved 
acoustic contractor and the local planning authority. 
 
 

Page 14 of 60

Page 193

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Design and layout of proposals should take into consideration and mitigate against 
existing usage of the operational railway and any future increase in usage of the said existing 
operational railway. 
 
(12) 
Where a proposal calls for the following adjacent to the boundary with the operational railway, 
running parallel to the operational railway or where the existing operational railway is below the 
height of the proposal site: 

 hard standing areas 

 turning circles 

 roads, public highways to facilitate access and egress from developments  
 
Network Rail would very strongly recommend the installation of suitable high kerbs or crash 
barriers (e.g. Armco Safety Barriers). 
 
This is to prevent vehicle incursion from the proposal area impacting upon the safe operation of 
the railway. (13) 
 
As the proposal includes works which may impact the existing operational railway and in order to 
facilitate the above, a BAPA (Basic Asset Protection Agreement) will need to be agreed between 
the developer and Network Rail. The developer will be liable for all costs incurred by Network 
Rail in facilitating this proposal, including any railway site safety costs, possession costs, asset 
protection costs / presence, site visits, review and agreement of proposal documents and any 
buried services searches. The BAPA will be in addition to any planning consent. 
 
The applicant / developer should liaise directly with Asset Protection to set up the BAPA (form 
attached). AssetProtectionLNWNorth@networkrail.co.uk 
No works are to commence until agreed with Network Rail.  

 
Early engagement with Network Rail is strongly recommended. 
 
Should the above proposal be approved by the council and should there be conditions, where 
the proposal interfaces with the railway (as outlined in this response) the outside party is advised 
that a BAPA (Basic Asset Protection Agreement) must be in place, in order for Network Rail to 
review and agree the documentation and works outlined in conditions (and those areas covered 
by the discharge of conditions)." 
 
Attachment: Tree Planting / Development Questionnaire 

 

Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 
22/06/18 
 
“Thank you for the above consultation. 

I can confirm that I have reviewed the Geo-Environmental Appraisal report prepared by 
Dunelm Ref No D4812, Dated 09/04/2018 and can now comment further on the outline 
application. 

 

Page 15 of 60

Page 194

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

The slightly elevated levels of Benzo Pyrene at 4.9mg/kg at 0.10m and Dibenz anthracene at 
0.9mg/kg are not overly significant and are most probably related to an onsite fire. I seem to 
recall that a fireworks event may have taken place on this site in the past. Inorganics 
concentrations were low and are representable of background levels in the area for agricultural 
fields. 

The site is located within an area that is potentially affected by Radon and therefore mitigation 
measures will need to be incorporated in to the foundations. However, the extent of these 
measures can only be determined once the ground gas sampling regime has finished and 
been submitted to the authority for approval 

Despite the incorporation of the radon protection measures which can be regulated at a 
Building Control stage, I do not see the need to place conditions on the application at this time 
in regard to land quality. 

However, I would recommend that a Construction Management Plan is submitted before any 
works commence on site. These sites tend to give rise to large amounts of material (track out) 
onto neighbour roads and this must be mitigated”. 

Highways England 26/06/2018 

Referring to the planning application referenced above, dated 13/06/2018, planning application 
for the erection of 35 dwellings and associated car parking, landscaping and highways 
infrastructure at London Road, Lindal-in-Furness, notice is hereby given that Highways 
England’s formal recommendation is that we: 

a) Offer no objection; 

Annex A requests that Highways England would like to be consulted regarding the footpath 
that is to be constructed as part of the development, in order to ensure it meets our standards 
for design and safety.  
 

Highways England 04/07/2018 

“Referring to the planning application referenced above, dated 13/06/2018, planning 
application for the erection of 35 dwellings and associated car parking, landscaping and 
highways infrastructure at London Road, Lindal-in-Furness, notice is hereby given that 
Highways England’s formal recommendation is that we: 

recommend that planning permission not be granted for a specified period (see Annex A – 
further assessment required);  

Annex A  
  

HIGHWAYS ENGLAND (“we”) has been appointed by the Secretary of State for 
Transport as strategic highway company under the provisions of the Infrastructure 
Act 2015 and is the highway authority, traffic authority and street authority for the 
Strategic Road Network (SRN).  The SRN is a critical national asset and as such we 
work to ensure that it operates and is managed in the public interest, both in respect 
of current activities and needs as well as in providing effective stewardship of its 
long-term operation and integrity. 
 

Page 16 of 60

Page 195

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

This response represents our formal recommendations with regard B07/2018/0375 
and has been prepared by Ryan Billinge, Asset Manager for Cumbria. 
 
We would like to investigate further with the developer and Cumbria County Council 
to determine exactly what the proposals for the new footpath are.  
 
The plans provided in the application make it unclear where the land for the footpath 
will be taken from. We have concerns that should the width of London Road be 
reduced with the introduction of this new footpath, it could make it difficult for 
vehicles to pass each other safely when turning into London Road from the A590. 
This could subsequently cause a build-up of traffic on the A590. 
 
Highways England formally recommends that this application is not determined until 
at least 15 August 2018 to allow sufficient time for discussions to be held and 
agreements reached with all parties”.  
 

Highways England 06/08/2018 

“Referring to the planning application referenced above, dated 13/06/2018, planning 
application for the erection of 35 dwellings and associated car parking, landscaping and 
highways infrastructure at London Road, Lindal-in-Furness, notice is hereby given that 
Highways England’s formal recommendation is that we: 

 recommend that planning permission not be granted for a specified period (see Annex A – 
further assessment required);  

Annex A notes that Highway’s England’s main concern is that should the width of London 
Road be reduced with the introduction of the proposed new footpath, it could make difficult for 
vehicles to pass each other safely when turning into London Road from the A590. This could 
subsequently cause a build-up of traffic on the A590 and have a negative impact on the safety 
of the junction. 

We’re awaiting clarification from Cumbria County Council that the proposals for the width of 
London Road meet the required standards.  

Highways England formally recommends that this application is not determined until at least 
6th October 2018 to allow sufficient time for discussions to be held and agreements reached 
with all parties”.  

Highways England 16/08/2018 

“Our concerns with the application relate to the new footpath that is proposed on the east side of 
London Road. We do not want the road width to be minimised to below Cumbria CC standards 
as this could cause problems for vehicles turning into London Road from the A590, with negative 
impacts on safety and congestion.  

Whilst the width of London Road is obviously a concern for Cumbria CC, the knock-on effects 
could have issues for the Strategic Road Network as well hence our holding recommendation 
response. This was to allow us time to consult with Cumbria but also with our technical 
colleagues who we are also waiting to get some advice from”. 

 

Page 17 of 60

Page 196

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Highways England 21/08/2018 

“As you will see from the attached planning response notice we have recommended that 
conditions be applied to any planning consent that is granted. The main condition relates to the 
proposed footpath proposals, and we would agree with the points raised by Cumbria County 
Council around the width reduction of London Road. We would recommend that no works are 
permitted to start until a suitable design is sent to and agreed by Highways England, Cumbria 
CC and the planning authority for the footpaths. This is in the interests of ensuring the safe 
running of the A590. 

I would be grateful if you would keep me informed of any progress that is made with this 
application, particularly of any design changes to the footpath proposals”.  

Highways England 30/08/2018 

“For us the main thing is that the width remains above standard on London Road so as to not 
cause issue for vehicles passing each other when turning in from the A590 (associated safety 
concerns raised previously). If this latest plan meets these criteria, then we would be fine with it.  
 
The points raised in Shamus’ response are for the developer to resolve with the local highway 
authority. I would be grateful if you could keep me in the loop though as things progress”. 
 

Highways England 04/09/2018 

“Response following the submission of a revised highway layout. 

The proposed layout shows the width remaining above Cumbria CC standard, so we would be 
ok with it”.  

Highways England 12/03/2019 

"Please find attached response notice sent on behalf of Highways England for this planning 
application. Similar to our response to the last consultation on this proposal, we are 
recommending that any grant of planning permission be with the conditions detailed in the 
response notice. 

Feel free to contact me if you would like to discuss anything in this response further" 

Council's Reference: B07/2018/0375 

Referring to the planning application referenced above dated 26/02/2019, planning application 
for the erection of 35 dwellings and associated car parking, landscaping and highways 
infrastructure at London Road, Lindal in Furness. Notice is hereby given that Highways 
England’s formal recommendation is that we: 

b) recommend that conditions should be attached to any planning permission that may be 
granted (see Annex A – Highways England recommended Planning Conditions); 

This  represents  Highways  England  formal  recommendation  and  is  copied  to  the 
Department for Transport as per the terms of our Licence. 

Page 18 of 60

Page 197

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Should you disagree with this recommendation you should consult the Secretary of State for 
Transport, as per the Town and Country Planning (Development Affecting Trunk Roads) 
Direction 2018, via  transportplanning@dft.gsi.gov.uk. 

United Utilities (Asset Protection) 27/06/2018 

“With regard to the above development proposal, United Utilities Water Limited (‘United 
Utilities’) wishes to provide the following comments. 

Drainage Conditions 

In accordance with the NPPF and the NPPG, the site should be drained on a separate system 
with foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 
way. We request the following drainage conditions are attached to any subsequent approval to 
reflect this approach: 

Foul Water 

Condition 1 

Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems. 

Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution.  

Surface Water 

Condition 2 

Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme, based on 
the hierarchy of drainage option in the NPPG with evidence of an assessment of the site 
conditions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.  

The surface water drainage scheme must be in accordance with the Non-statutory technical 
standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement 
national standards and unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA, no surface water shall 
discharge to the public sewerage system either directly or indirectly.  

The development shall be approved in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the risk 
of flooding and pollution. This condition is imposed in light of policies within the NPPF and 
NPPG.  

Management and Maintenance of Sustainable Drainage Systems 

Without effective management and maintenance, sustainable drainage systems can fail or 
become ineffective. As a provider of wastewater services, we believe we have a duty to advise 
the LPA of this potential risk to ensure the longevity of the surface water drainage system and 
the service it provides to people. We also wish to minimise the risk of a sustainable drainage 
system having a detrimental impact on the public sewer network should the two systems 
interact. We therefore recommend the LPA include a condition in their decision notice 
regarding a management and maintenance regime for any sustainable drainage system that is 
included as part of the proposed development.  

Page 19 of 60

Page 198

Agenda Item 10

mailto:transportplanning@Dft.Gsi.Gov.Uk


 

 

 

For schemes of 10 units or more, we recommend the LPA consults with the LLFA regarding 
the exact wording of any condition.  

Water Comments 

United Utilities can readily supply water for domestic purposed, but for larger quantities for 
example, commercial / industrial we will need further information. 

If the applicant needs to obtain a water supply from UU for the proposed development, we 
strongly recommend they engage with us at the earliest opportunity.  

General Comments 

Where UU assets exist, the level of cover to the water mains and public sewers must not be 
compromised either during or after construction. It is the applicant’s responsibility to 
demonstrate the exact relationship between any UU assets and the proposed development.  

United Utilities 07/01/2019 
 
“We have carried out an assessment of your application which is based on the information 
provided; this pre development advice will be valid for 12 months. 
 
Foul Water 
 
Foul water will be allowed to drain to the public combined/ foul sewer network. Our preferred 
point of discharge would be to the 225mm diameter combined/foul sewer on London Road. 
 
Surface Water  
 
The Section 7: Proposed Surface Water Management of Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage 
Strategy, ref: P5881/18/01 Version 01 dated 9 April 2018, noted that the test results of site 
sample refs, TP2-TP3, TP6-TP11 are all above the design infiltration rate ( x10-6  m/s). Majority 
of those samples are located most of the site area and outside of the Network Rail constraints of 
20m from the embankment.  
 
https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/planning/applications/2018/PLAN_2018_0375_REPORT_4.pdf 
 
However, the drawing of the Drainage Strategy, ref: TC/P5881/18/SK03 dated 27.03.2018 did 
not demonstrate that the soakaways have been used on the site where ground conditions are 
suitable. It is unacceptable to us in principle. 
 
Therefore, surface water from this site should drain to soak away or some other form of 
infiltration system. Discharge rates and consents must be discussed and agreed with all 
interested parties. Under no circumstance should surface water discharge into public sewers 
directly or indirectly. 
 
Please submit the following for our assessment: 
 

1.  The revised drawing of drainage strategy showing neither surface water discharging 
combined network system directly nor indirectly. 

2.  The correspondence from the Lead Local Flood Authority regarding the surface water 
drainage proposal 

Page 20 of 60

Page 199

Agenda Item 10

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/A-zbC27DiEqNwgNU2qCnB?domain=webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk


 

 

 

 
Connection Application 
 

Although we may discuss and agree discharge points & rates in principle, please be aware that 
you will have to apply for a formal sewer connection. This is so that we can assess the method 
of construction, Health & Safety requirements and to ultimately inspect the connection when it is 
made. Details of the application process and the form itself can be obtained from our website by 
following the link below 
http://www.unitedutilities.com/connecting-public-sewer.aspx 
Sewer Adoption Agreement 
 

You may wish to offer the proposed new sewers for adoption. United Utilities assess adoption 
application based on Sewers adoption 6th Edition and for any pumping stations our company 
addenda document. Please refer to link below to obtain further guidance and application pack:  
http://www.unitedutilities.com/sewer-adoption.aspx 
 
Water Supply Enquiry 
 

If you have any query about water supply, please contact the water supply team at 
developerserviceswater@uuplc.co.uk 
 
Sewer Map 
 
United Utilities offer a fully supported mapping service at a modest cost for our water mains and 
sewerage assets. This is a service, which is constantly updated by our Property Searches Team 
(Tel No: 0870 7510101) and I recommend that the applicant give early consideration in project 
design as it is better value than traditional methods of data gathering. It is, however, the 
applicant's responsibility to demonstrate the exact relationship on site between any assets that 
may cross the site and any proposed development.  
 
Please be aware that on site drainage must be designed in accordance with Building 
Regulations, National Planning Policy, Planning Conditions and local flood authority guidelines, 
we would recommend that you liaise and make suitable agreements with the relevant statutory 
bodies”. 
 

United Utilities (Asset Protection) 25/04/2019 

"We have carried out an assessment of your application which is based on the information 
provided; this pre development advice will be valid for 12 months. 

Foul water 

Foul water will be allowed to drain to the public combined/ foul sewer network. 

Surface Water  

Surface water from this site should drain to soak away or some other form of infiltration system 
as stated in Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy, ref: P5881/18/01 Version 3 dated 8 
February 2019. Under no circumstance should surface water discharge into public sewer directly 
or indirectly. 

Page 21 of 60

Page 200

Agenda Item 10

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/guPYC3yVFR15QO5IQDES8?domain=unitedutilities.com
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/8u-oC4zGu7Np1qpUMFp85?domain=unitedutilities.com
mailto:developerserviceswater@uuplc.co.uk


 

 

 

Connection Application 

Although we may discuss and agree discharge points & rates in principle, please be aware that 
you will have to apply for a formal sewer connection. This is so that we can assess the method 
of construction, Health & Safety requirements and to ultimately inspect the connection when it is 
made. Details of the application process and the form itself can be obtained from our website by 
following the link below 

http://www.unitedutilities.com/connecting-public-sewer.aspx 

Sewer Adoption Agreement 

You may wish to offer the proposed new sewers for adoption. United Utilities assess adoption 
application based on Sewers adoption 6th Edition and for any pumping stations our company 
addenda document. Please refer to link below to obtain further guidance and application pack: 

http://www.unitedutilities.com/sewer-adoption.aspx 

Should you have any query regarding the SuDS adoption, please directly contact our Adoption 
Manager, Matt Watson, via email Matt.Watson@uuplc.co.uk for further assistance. 

Water Supply Enquiry 

If you have any query about water supply, please contact the water supply team at 
developerserviceswater@uuplc.co.uk 

Sewer Map 

United Utilities offer a fully supported mapping service at a modest cost for our water mains and 
sewerage assets. This is a service, which is constantly updated by our Property Searches Team 
(Tel No: 0870 7510101) and I recommend that the applicant give early consideration in project 
design as it is better value than traditional methods of data gathering. It is, however, the 
applicant's responsibility to demonstrate the exact relationship on site between any assets that 
may cross the site and any proposed development. 

Please be aware that on site drainage must be designed in accordance with Building 
Regulations, National Planning Policy, Planning Conditions and local flood authority guidelines, 
we would recommend that you liaise and make suitable agreements with the relevant statutory 
bodies". 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 04/07/2018 
 
“The junction of London Road with the A590 Trunk Road might be a cause for concern both on 
capacity and road safety grounds. Any intensification of this junction will magnify these current 
issues. It is assumed that the Highways England have been consulted on this application. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22 of 60

Page 201

Agenda Item 10

http://www.unitedutilities.com/connecting-public-sewer.aspx
http://www.unitedutilities.com/sewer-adoption.aspx
mailto:Matt.Watson@uuplc.co.uk
mailto:developerserviceswater@uuplc.co.uk


 

 

 

It appears that the proposal includes the provision of a footway on London Road within the 
highway curtilage on the east side and removal of the existing footway (between the junction 
with the A590 and No.6) on the west side. The Highway Authority objects to the removal of the 
western footway. If only one footway can be provided due to the highway width, the continuous 
footway on the western side should remain. If a continuous footway cannot be provided on the 
eastern side as well, then a suitable crossing point (dropped kerbs with the necessary visibility) 
should be provided from the site to the western footway. 
 
It is noted that London Road forms part of the NCN Route 70 which then crosses the A590 at a 
toucan crossing. As an alternative to using London Road from the railway bridge and the new 
footway proposed on the east of London Road the provision of a shared-use path through the 
site, emerging onto the A590 east of the crossing should be considered. 
 
Car parking should be in line with the level of provision described in the CDDG. On-street 
parking is limited in the vicinity so there should be adequate provision for all dwellings and 
spaces for visitors within the site. 
 
The indicative road layout including turning heads and adjacent footways should comply with the 
CDDG to the appropriate standard for the number of dwellings. Cul-de-sacs are generally 
discouraged as one-way roads. We would not be prepared to adopt the one-way road as it is 
shown and would prefer a 4.8m wide 2-way loop that allows vehicles to pass a refuse vehicle. 
Attention is drawn to the recommended limits on distances bins can be expected to be dragged 
by owners and refuse collection service. The need for reversing manoeuvres should be 
designed out.  
 
The road layout should make it clear which lengths would be private and which are to be 
adopted.  
 
The proposal includes new double yellow lines on both sides of London Road to restrict on-
street parking and protect the visibility splay where the road is often used by residents for on-
street parking (on the west side). This loss of on-street parking could create problems for 
residents in finding suitable parking places, but it is noted that there is substantial provision of 
residents parking shown in the site to mitigate this. 
 
The visibility splay from the access onto London Road should be demonstrated that it is 
compliant with the CDDG. 
 
The applicant should enter into a suitably worded legal agreement with the Highways Authority 
to fund the provision of the TRO to the value of £6,500.  
 
CCC Highways has no objection to the proposal in principle subject to the above matters being 
addressed. We would however recommend that the following conditions are included in any 
consent you might grant in due course: 
 
No development shall commence until detailed drainage drawings showing the development and 
means of access thereto have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. 
 
Any such approved means of access shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
details before the development is occupied.  
 

Page 23 of 60

Page 202

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

The Carriageway, footways, footpaths, cycleways etc shall be designed, constructed, drained 
and lit to a standard suitable for adoption and in this respect further details, including longitudinal 
/ cross sections, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval before work 
commences on site. No work shall be commenced until a full specification has been approved. 
These details shall be in accordance with the standards laid down in the current Cumbria Design 
Guide. Any works approved shall be constructed before the development is complete. 
 
Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway safety. To 
support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD5, LD7, LD8.  
 
The development shall not commence until visibility splays providing clear visibility of 60 meters 
measured 2.4 metres down the centre of the access road and the nearside channel line of the 
major road have been provided at the junction of the access road with the country highway. 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order) relating 
to permitted development, no structure, vehicle or object of any kind shall be erected, parked or 
places and no trees, bushes or other plants shall be planted or be permitted to be grown within 
the visibility splay which obstruct the visibility splays. The visibility splays shall be constructed 
before general development of the site commences so that construction traffic is safeguarded. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. To support Local Transport Plan Polices, LD7, LD8.  
 
Any dwelling herby permitted shall not be occupied until the vehicular access and turning 
requirements to serve that dwelling have been constructed in accordance with the approved 
plan and has been brought into use. The vehicular access turning provisions shall be retained 
and capable of use at all times thereafter and shall not be removed or altered without the prior 
consent of the LPA. 
 
Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of access provision when the development is brought 
into use. To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD5, LD7, LD8. 
 
Development shall not be begun until a Construction Phase Management Plan has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CMP shall include 
details of: 
 

 Pre-construction road condition established by a detailed survey for accommodation 
works within the highways boundary conducted with a Highway Authority representative; 
with all post repairs carried out to the satisfaction of the Local Highway Authority at the 
applicant’s expense; 

 Details of proposed crossings of the highway verge; 

 Retained areas for vehicle parking, manoeuvring, loading and unloading for their specific 
purpose during the development which allows vehicles visiting the site to enter and leave 
the highway in a forward gear; 

 Cleaning of site entrances and the adjacent public highway; 

 Details of proposed wheel washing facilities; 

 The sheeting of all HGVs taking spoil to/from the site to prevent spillage or deposit of any 
materials on the highway; 

 Construction vehicle routing; 

 The management of junctions to and crossings of the public highway and other public 
rights of way/footway; 

Page 24 of 60

Page 203

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 Surface water management details. 
 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 02/08/2018 
 
“I note that the applicant has submitted a Highways and Transport Statement that contains a 
different plan of the London Road layout. However, as this is an outline application the layouts 
are just indicative, I don’t believe that the additional detail affects my earlier response and that 
any details will have to be submitted in far more detail as reserved matters and can be 
addressed at that time. 

For the record, Highways are concerned over the indicative London Road carriageway and 
footway arrangement as shown. The proposed layout appears to include sub-standard 
carriageway and footway widths in an arrangement which could affect residents and road safety. 
However, we are still of the opinion that the development is acceptable in principle and we will 
address the layout concerns fully if and when the reserved matters application is made. I’m not 
sure if Highways England have any concerns though.  

I am also aware that London Road residents are concerned with the proposal and are seeking 
reassurance that the proper review is carried out”. 
 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 10/08/2018 
 
“I understand your concern, and we also treat road user safety as a priority. We will be seeking a 
road safety audit as part of the developer’s submission to demonstrate that their proposal does 
not introduce any unacceptable risks. We will also be directing the developer to mitigate any 
risks associated with the pedestrian routes and crossings. For example, a pedestrian build out at 
dropped kerb locations can provide better visibility between parked cars. 

As for the existing retaining wall, this is something that will be picked up by the planners and the 
developer will have to take the structural design and any improvement or replacement into 
account as part of their boundary works”. 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 13/08/2018 

“If I may respond to Highway England’s footpath width as well as the splays -  

A carriageway width of 6000mm is suitable for use on a bus service route as there should be no 
conflict between oncoming vehicles. If on-street parking is to be encountered, then a width of 
6750mm is required which will allow ample room for vehicles to overtake stationary vehicles at 
bus stops without creating a safety concern.  

The current highway width is 7.5m. A 2m footway would therefore reduce the carriageway width 
to 5.5m (an absolute minimum 1.2m footway, which will not allow for 2 buggies to pass, will 
reduce the carriageway to 6.3m). Although this width is acceptable for internal roads of an 
estate, it is not be acceptable for a C road in close proximity to the Trunk road network. As 
stated above the minimum width of the remaining carriageway should be 6.75m. This will mean 
that the site could not provide the new footway without impacting on the working and safety of 
the road network. We would therefore strongly recommend that the applicant revisit their 
proposal. 

Page 25 of 60

Page 204

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

You will note that we commented in our original recommendation “It is noted that London Road 
forms part of the NCN Route 70 which then crosses the A590 at a toucan crossing.  As an 
alternative to using London Road from the railway bridge and the new footway proposed on the 
east of London Road the provision of a shared-use path through the site, emerging onto the 
A590 east of the crossing should be considered.” We also stated that “If a continuous footway 
cannot be provided on the eastern side as well, then a suitable crossing point (dropped kerbs 
with the necessary visibility) should be provided from the site to the western footway.” 

The applicant should show that this can be accommodated and that the appropriate splays are 
available for pedestrians seeking to cross London Road.  

As you are aware the implementation of any waiting restrictions will be outwith the planning 
process. A condition seeking to impose such a restriction will therefore be Grampian.   

I can confirm that the splay requirement and its 60m splay can be amended (for the site access), 
I would however recommend that the applicant provide a drawing showing the maximum 
available splays available from the access.   

I trust you find this helpful”.  

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 28/08/2018 

(Following submission of a revised highways layout)  

“This seems to be a much more agreeable layout from the local Highway Authority’s position.  
Maintaining the existing road width and western footway means that fewer waiting restrictions 
are needed and I am sure this layout will allay many of the concerns the residents have as well.  
The proposed layout allows room for vehicles to overtake stationary vehicles and will operate 
very much as it does at present.  The only reservation we have is the position of the dropped 
kerb crossing points either side of the proposed junction.  These are shown against the existing 
walls where waiting pedestrians would be hidden behind and would have to step into the road to 
see if it was safe to cross.  It would be preferable if these crossing points were relocated to the 
tangent points either side of the junction mouths to increase pedestrian visibility splay. 
 
The Highways Authority have no objection in principle to the proposed layout, subject to the 
comments above, but we would need to see it in context with the overall site layout, with 
footways, linking paths through the site and crossing locations shown when this is submitted for 
planning”. 
 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 04/09/2018 

“Yes, this layout addresses the concern about the pedestrian visibility at the dropped crossing 
points”. 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 23/10/2018 

“We have no objection to the proposal in principle, and the applicant has done enough work to 
satisfy us that a suitable footway can be provided. The outstanding details and RSA will be 
required, so yes, we have recommended pre-commencement conditions as included in my 
response of 4 July 2018”. 

Page 26 of 60

Page 205

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Cumbria County Council Highways 15/03/2019 

"I note there are three new documents on line for consultation.  I have assessed the following: 

1. Stage 1 Road Safety Audit – Doc Ref: 163/RSA/1/U/02/2019  Version A. 13/02/2109 
2. Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy :P5881/18/01 Version 03. 08/02/2019 
3. Proposed Indicative Site Plan Rev A 

We await the designers response to the points raised, but I do not envisage any issues that 
cannot be addressed in the detailed design." 

Cumbria County Council Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) 04/07/2018 
 
“The site is in Flood Zone 1 and therefore is at low risk from fluvial flooding. It is also 
acknowledged that the site is at low risk from pluvial flooding and also from reservoir failure 
flooding and ground water. However, the site can still be at risk from overland exceedance flows 
from the site and surrounding land and this risk must be taken into account in the design. 
 
 
It is noted that the infiltration tests and geology report suggest that only a small part of the site 
may be suitable for an infiltration drainage solution. However, the results of all the locations, 
apart from TPI and TP4 are better than 5x10 Therefore it appears possible that more can be 
achieved with an infiltrating SUDS layout including permeable paving. The developer, in his 
surface water drainage strategy, should include an assessment of the viability of the use of 
general SUDS components for use on this site. 
 
The final discharge point seems to be a UU combined sewer. This may present a problem to UU 
and be unacceptable. Please provide evidence that UU are willing to take these flows, 
 
The full planning submission should include the documents listed in the CDDG drainage 
checklist as well as: 
 

• Overland exceedance plan with finished contours and directional arrows; 

• Drainage infrastructure maintenance and ownership schedule  
 
The LLFA has no objection to the proposal in principle, subject to the above items being 
satisfactorily addressed. We would however recommend that the following conditions are 
included in any consent you might grant in due course:  
Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme and means 
of disposal, based on sustainable drainage principles with evidence of an assessment of the site 
conditions (inclusive of how the scheme shall be managed and maintained after completion) 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The proposed 
scheme should meet the requirements of Sustainable drainage systems: non-statutory technical 
standards (March 2015). 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27 of 60

Page 206

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 
The surface water drainage scheme must be restricted to existing runoff rates and unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no surface water shall be 
discharged to the public sewerage system either directly or indirectly. If the scheme intends to 
discharge surface water to a public sewer, evidence that this proposal is acceptable to the asset 
owners must be provided; 
 
The development shall be completed, maintained and managed in accordance with the 
approved details". 
 

Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 23/10/18 
 
“The outline SW drainage design has demonstrated that there is some capacity for infiltration, 
but this is not able to deal with the whole site. In the absence of a watercourse or SW sewer, I 
believe that the applicant’s proposal to discharge at a greenfield attenuated rate to a combined 
sewer is the only option. It’s not idea but if attenuated to a suitable rate it and the UU system can 
accept the increase then it should be acceptable.  
 
We would expect to see more details and the conditions suggested are necessary”.  

Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 15/03/2019 

"I note there are three new documents on line for consultation.  I have assessed the following: 

1. Stage 1 Road Safety Audit – Doc Ref: 163/RSA/1/U/02/2019  Version A. 13/02/2109 
2. Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy: P5881/18/01 Version 03. 08/02/2019 
3. Proposed Indicative Site Plan Rev A 

In principle the proposed 100% infiltration strategy is acceptable to the LLFA.  This is the 
preferred method of disposing of surface water in the NPPF hierarchy.  However, as stated in 
the FRA, the results of the infiltration testing to date shows that some areas of the site are less 
suitable than others for a soakaway.  Therefore, as recommended, further infiltration testing in 
accordance with BRE365 should be done to support the detailed drainage design.  We will also 
need to see the supporting calculations and exceedance flow routing.  These requirements are 
covered in the previous LLFA response." 

Cumbria County Council (PROW) 04/07/2018 
 
“No recorded public rights of way would be affected by the proposed development”.  
 
 

Cumbria County Council Transport and Spatial Planning 04/07/2018 
 
“The Greystone Lane / Station Road on-carriageway cycle lane has been identified as part of 
Barrow Transport Improvements Study (BTIS), to connect Dalton station to National Cycle Route 
70. This site is lies on the Route 70 and it is considered appropriate that the developer makes a 
contribution towards this facility to promote sustainability and promote increase in activity. 

The level of contribution for the cycle lane has been calculated as £5,560. 

Page 28 of 60

Page 207

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Education 

As the application is for Outline Planning Permission and the dwelling mix is yet to be finalised a 
population-led model as outlined in the County Council's Planning Obligation Policy has been 
used. It is estimated the development will yield 12 children: 3 infant, 4 junior and 5 secondary 
pupils. 

The development is in the catchment of Lindal and Marton Primary School (0.5 miles) and 
Dowdales (2 miles). The next nearest primary schools are Our Lady of the Rosary Catholic 
Primary (1.4 miles) and Pennington CE Primary School (l .6 miles) the next nearest secondary 
school is Ulverston Victoria High (3 miles). 

Note: RC schools are faith schools and have no specific catchment area, as they take children 
from a larger undefined area. 

The methodology for calculating available spaces in schools first considers developments with 
planning approval, before assessing which schools the developments will impact and what 
spaces remain for the most recently proposed development. Currently there are two 
developments affecting the secondary schools used in this assessment. 

Primary 

There is insufficient space in the catchment school of Lindal and Marton Primary to 
accommodate the pupil yield from this development, currently there is only one place available 
and 7 required. However, there are spaces available in the next nearest primary schools of Our 
Lady of the Rosary Catholic Primary School and Pennington CE Primary Schools. Therefore, no 
education contribution will be sought for primary places. 

Secondary 

There are sufficient places available in the catchment school of Dowdales to accommodate the 
secondary pupil yield of 5 from this development. 

Therefore, no contribution will be sought for secondary education. 

School Transport 

As there are schools for primary and secondary provision with capacity with safe walking routes 
within the statutory distance no contribution will be sought”. 

Lindal and Marton Parish Council 10/07/2018 
 
“The Parish Council decline to support the application because of:- 

 the detrimental impact of the proposals insofar as they impacted upon the highway 
system, specifically at the junction of London Road and the A590. Such proposals would 
have an adverse effect on the residents of numbers 4 and 5 London Road in particular, 
and the increase in traffic generally at that junction would have serious consequences for 
all road users; 

Page 29 of 60

Page 208

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 the lack of sufficient attention to the requirements for appropriate sewerage and drainage 
systems; 

 the lack of local amenities which would lead to increased traffic movements and hinder 
the creation of a local community spirit”. 

Lindal and Marton Parish Council 06/08/2018 
 
“The Council re-iterate its objection to the proposal on the grounds that:- narrowing of London 
Road where it met the A590 would be a detrimental, and dangerous, development and would 
lead to further congestion and the potential for accidents. The statistics relating to both existing 
and predicted traffic movements were confusing, appeared to be contradictory, and needed re-
examination. Parking restrictions on London Road, together with the limited number of parking 
spaces allocated to the public house, would be an unreasonable imposition on that 
establishment. Reliance on Barrow’s District Plan and its inclusion of this particular site as 
suitable for housing development, before the Planning Inspector’s decision is known, would be 
inappropriate. Carried unanimously”. 

Lindal and Marton Parish Council 11/03/2019 

"The Clerk referred to previous discussions regarding this proposal, specifically, minute 105/18 
(a) (December 2018) when it was NOTED that the planning application scheduled for 
submission to the planning committee in November 2018 had been withdrawn by officials for 
further consideration. 

Additional information had subsequently been submitted by the applicant and this had been 
forwarded to the relevant parties for assessment (Highways England; Cumbria County Council; 
Network Rail). The details covered some relatively minor highways issues, together with a 
further assessment of surface-water problems. 

It was anticipated that the application would be submitted to the planning committee for a 
decision at the April meeting and it was AGREED that no further comment was required at this 
time from the Parish Council." 

Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy and Regeneration) 24/07/18 
 
“National Planning Policy Framework 
 
The tilted balance is engaged under Paragraph 14 of the NPPF as a number of relevant policies 
are out of date.  
 
Saved Barrow Local Plan Review 1996-2006 
 
The policies most relevant to the application, and the weight they can be given, are: 
 

 Saved Policy B3 – This is out of date and can be given limited weight (See 

APP/W0910/W/16/3165216: Breast Mill Beck, Barrow). 

 Saved Policy B4 – This accords with the NPPF and can therefore be given full weight. 

 Saved Policy G9 – This can be given full weight. 

Page 30 of 60

Page 209

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 Saved Policy D21 can be given full weight (See APP/W0910/W/17/3171362, Parkhouse 

Ct). 

 
The proposal conflicts with some of the above policies. 
 
Local Plan Submission Draft (December 2017) 
 
Much of this site is proposed as a housing allocation in the Local Plan Submission Draft. Part of 
the site includes part of an existing allotment which is identified as Green Space in the Local 
Plan Submission Draft. This part of the site falls outside of the proposed allocation. 
 
The following draft policies in the Submission Draft Local Plan are relevant to the application: 
DS1, DS2, DS3, DS5, DS6, C1, C3a, C5, C7, I1, I3, I4, I6, H1, H2, H3, H4, H7, H9, H11, H12, 
H14, HE1, HE4, N1, N2, N3, N4, GI1, GI3, GI4, GI5, GI9, HC1, HC4, HC5 and HC10. 
 
The Draft Local Plan is now under examination. The hearing sessions were held in June 2018 
and the Council is preparing a schedule of modifications for consultation. The weight which can 
be given to each policy will therefore differ depending on objections and proposed modifications. 
See the most up to date ‘Weight of Emerging Policy’ document for details. 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
 
The adopted Biodiversity and Development SPD and the Draft Green Infrastructure SPD are 
material considerations. 
 
Highways 
 
In consideration of the narrow width of London Road and the proximity to the junction to the 
A590(T), there could be potential impacts on safety at the junction of the A590(T). Other 
potential issues include the safety of pedestrians on London Road and access into Lindal 
Business Park. Advice should be taken from County Council (Highways) and Highways England 
with regard to these matters. The Cumbria Development Design Guide is a material 
consideration. 
 
It appears that a new footpath is proposed on the east side of London Road, with the footpath 
on the West side being removed. It is noted that the Local Highway Authority has objected to the 
removal of the western footway and has stated that if only one footway can be provided due to 
the highway width, the continuous footway on the western side should remain. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31 of 60

Page 210

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Surface Water Flooding 
 
Policy C3a of the Barrow Borough Local Plan Submission Draft (December 2017) sets out the 
criteria that new development must comply with to minimise its impact on the environment in 
terms of water management. In particular, criterion (b) requires new development to prioritise the 
use of sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) and ensure there is no increase in surface water. It 
sets out the surface water hierarchy, with an attenuated discharge to a public combined sewer 
being the least desirable option. It adds that applicants wishing to discharge to a public sewer 
will need to submit clear evidence demonstrating why alternative options are not available. 
Policy C3a has not received objections and therefore should be given considerable weight. The 
surface water hierarchy is also set out in the National Planning Practice Guidance, Flood Risk 
and Coastal Change, paragraph 080. 
 
The Drainage Strategy submitted as part of the planning application, at paragraph 8.2.1, states 
that the underlying strata at the site have limited capacity to sustain soakaways. The strata, 
where soakaways could be viable, are limited to a small area. It adds that with the majority of the 
site unlikely to sustain soakaways and no watercourse available within or adjacent to the site, 
surface water run-off will be discharged to the public sewer at an attenuated rate. 
 
The Lead Local Flood Authority has indicated in their response to the application that more 
effective use of SuDS could potentially be implemented on site. They suggest an infiltrating 
SuDS layout, including permeable paving. They have also stated that the final discharge point 
being a United Utilities combined sewer could present a problem to United Utilities and be 
unacceptable. United Utilities have stated in their response to the planning application that a 
condition should be attached stating that foul and surface water shall be drained on separate 
systems. It is therefore considered that the Drainage Strategy submitted with the application 
should make it more clear how surface water will be effectively managed. If there is to be 
discharge into a public sewer, clear evidence will need to be submitted demonstrating why 
alternative options are not available as part of the Drainage Strategy. 
 
Allotments 
 
The planning application proposes a car park within an existing allotment. The Local Plan 
Submission Draft identifies this area as Green Space. Policy GI4 of the Submission Draft states 
that Green Spaces within the urban area will need to be retained within the existing built up 
area. The proposal is therefore contrary to emerging policy GI4. It is also contrary to emerging 
policy GI1 which sets out the Council’s approach to creating, enhancing and protecting a Green 
Infrastructure Framework. Policies GI1 and GI4 are material considerations, although both 
policies have received objections and should be given lesser weight. 
 
Play Areas 
 
The site does not have good access to children’s play space and the planning application does 
not provide for children’s play space as part of the proposed development. Saved Policy G9 
states that new housing will be required to include, as a minimum, children’s play space in 
accordance with the standards set out in the policy. Emerging policy HC10 in the Local Plan 
Submission Draft states that residential development will be required to provide well designed 
and located children’s play space where deemed appropriate through lack of provision or other 
limiting factor such as access. Policy HC10 has not received objections and should therefore be 
given considerable weight. 

Page 32 of 60

Page 211

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 
 
Conclusion 
 
We support the principle of creating additional housing. We also support development on the 
majority of the proposed site, which is mostly identified as a housing allocation in the emerging 
Local Plan. However, there are a number of issues that need to be addressed before the 
application can be approved: 
 

 The layout and location of the highway and footpaths need to be to the satisfaction of 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) and Highways England, so as not to prejudice 

highway safety and access. The comments received from the County Council indicate 

that amendments are required to the submitted plan in this regard. 

 

 There needs to be a more thorough assessment showing how the application is in accord 

with the surface water hierarchy set out in emerging Policy C3a and the National Planning 

Practice Guidance. Attenuated discharge into the public sewer is the least preferred 

option. Evidence that other options have been considered and the reasons why they 

cannot be implemented must be clearly set out in the Drainage Strategy. The Lead Local 

Flood Authority has indicated that SuDS could be used more effectively on site to 

manage surface water. 

 

 It is desirable that the allotments are retained and that the parking proposed on the 

allotments is provided elsewhere. This would enable the proposal to conform with 

emerging policies GI1 and GI4 of the Local Plan Submission Draft. 

 

 The development should incorporate children’s play space as required in both Saved 

Policy G9 and emerging Policy HC10”. 

 

Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy and Regeneration) 11/10/18 
 
“Planning Policy Context 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
The tilted balance is engaged under Paragraph 11 of the NPPF as a number of relevant policies 
are out of date.  
 
Saved Barrow Local Plan Review 1996-2006 
 
The policies most relevant to the application, and the weight they can be given, are: 
 

 Saved Policy B3 – This is out of date and can be given limited weight (See 

APP/W0910/W/16/3165216: Breast Mill Beck, Barrow). 

 Saved Policy B4 – This accords with the NPPF and can therefore be given full weight. 

 Saved Policy G9 – This can be given full weight. 

Page 33 of 60

Page 212

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 Saved Policy D21 can be given full weight (See APP/W0910/W/17/3171362, Parkhouse 

Ct). 

 
The proposal conflicts with some of the above policies. 
 
Local Plan Submission Draft (December 2017) 
 
Much of this site is proposed as a housing allocation in the Local Plan Submission Draft. Part of 
the site includes part of an existing allotment which is identified as Green Space in the Local 
Plan Submission Draft. This part of the site falls outside of the proposed allocation. 
 
 
The following draft policies in the Submission Draft Local Plan are relevant to the application: 
DS1, DS2, DS3, DS5, DS6, C1, C3a, C5, C7, I1, I3, I4, I6, H1, H2, H3, H4, H7, H9, H11, H12, 
H14, HE1, HE4, N1, N2, N3, N4, GI1, GI3, GI4, GI5, GI9, HC1, HC4, HC5 and HC10. 
 
The Draft Local Plan is under examination, with the hearing sessions completed in June/July last 
year. Following receipt of the Inspectors report on the document and subsequent modifications 
the Plan is expected to be adopted as formal policy by full Council on 4 June, although some 
Saved policies still have some relevance until that date. The weight which can be given to each 
policy will therefore differ depending on objections and proposed modifications. The policies 
highlighted in green above have no outstanding objections or significant modifications proposed 
and can therefore be given considerable weight. The un-highlighted policies have outstanding 
objections and/or proposed significant modifications and can therefore be given limited weight at 
this stage. 
 
Housing Land Supply 
 
The Council has identified a 7.6 year housing land supply against the draft housing requirement 
in the emerging Local Plan. Further details can be found in the June 2018 Housing Land 
Statement. 
 
The supply excludes any emerging housing allocations which do not comply with saved local 
planning policy. If these were to be included the housing land supply increases to 10.7 years 
(see the June 2018 Local Plan Housing Trajectory)”. 
 
 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site has an area of 2.278ha (5.63 acres) and comprises greenfield land with 
the western proportion of the site, fronting onto London Road, being used as allotments.  The 
site is gently undulating and rises in level from the London Road (west) side to the east and 
south-east.  

Page 34 of 60

Page 213

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

1.2 The site is bound by existing greenfield land to the north, beyond which lie a series of 
residential properties approximately 50m away, the railway line runs along the south-eastern 
boundary of the site and existing terraced residential properties lie to the west of the site along 
London Road. 

1.3 London Road itself connects directly to the A590 to the north of the site. The A590 is the 
main vehicular access running through the village providing access to Barrow to the west and 
Ulverston to the east. London Road at the location of the application site has a speed limit of 
30mph, and the A590 has a speed limit of 40mph.  

1.4 The application site is not allocated within the Saved Local Plan; however, the majority is 
allocated for housing within the emerging Draft Local Plan (Policy H3).  

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 The proposal is described on the submitted application form as “outline permission for the 
erection of 35 dwellings with all matters reserved except access”. 
 
2.2 The access is proposed onto London Road. This is intended to be formed by a 5.5m wide 
carriageway, with 2m footways located either side of the new vehicular access.  

3. Relevant History 

3.1 In 2006 planning permission for a nursing home was refused at this site on the basis that no 
special need was proven to locate such a facility outside of the urban area and that there was 
insufficient information to show that highway safety would not be affected. No appeal was made.  
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 In this case, officers have worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner based 
on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing with the planning application. This 
has led to a delay in presenting the application to committee. 
The application seeks outline planning permission (with all matters reserved except for access) 
for residential development with vehicular access from London Road. 
 
4.2 A number of supporting documents have been submitted with the application including:  

 Design and Access Statement 

 Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey 

 Site Location Plan 

 Site Layout Plan  

 Site Sections 

 Detailed Cover Letter 

 Noise and Vibration Assessment  

 Flood Risk Assessment 

 Geo-Environmental Appraisal  

 Road Safety Audit  

 Revised road layouts for the London Road junction 

Page 35 of 60

Page 214

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 Revised Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy  

Principle of Development 

4.3 An indicative site layout plan in the form of an illustrative masterplan has been submitted 
which illustrates the construction of up to 35 houses. A single access point is proposed off 
London Road. Landscaping is proposed around the perimeter of the site boundary.  

4.4 The draft Green Infrastructure Strategy identified (p114 Site Design Criteria) a requirement 
for a village green format in order to respect the local rural setting. The indicative layout includes 
an area of public open space in the centre of the site, and green space to the left of the site. It is 
considered that further guidance can be provided at the Reserved Matters Stage to ensure a 
more sympathetic layout is produced.  

4.5 The site is not allocated for housing within the Saved Local Plan, but Saved Policy B3, which 
considers residential development on unallocated sites within the cordons identified under 
Saved Policy B13, can only be given limited weight following the Dalton Lane appeal. 
Applications should now be judged upon their sustainability and compliance with the NPPF. For 
the purposes of Policy B13 the site sits outside of the Lindal development cordon.  

4.6 Notwithstanding this, the majority of the site is proposed to be allocated for an indicative yield 
of 36 dwellings within the emerging Local Plan (Policy H3, Site reference REC37), with the 
remainder proposed as Green Space (Policy GI4).  The development will deliver up to 35 
houses of a variety of sizes and types, including an element of affordable and retirement living 
which will contribute towards the range of houses available in Lindal and in the wider Borough. 

4.7 The starting point for the determination of a planning application remains the Development 
Plan and National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) does not change this. However, the 
statutory presumption in favour of the development plan can be lost in one of two circumstances. 
One, where a Council is unable to demonstrate a 5-year supply of housing land, the other, 
where the policies which are the most important for determining the application are out of date. If 
either of these apply, then the tilted balance is engaged which requires that planning permission 
be granted unless:  
 

‘any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole 
(paragraph 11)’ 

4.8 In terms of current local plan policy provision; 

 Saved Policy B3 – This is out of date and can be given limited weight (See 

APP/W0910/W/16/3165216: Breast Mill Beck, Barrow). 

 Saved Policy B4 – This accords with the NPPF and can therefore be given full weight. 

 Saved Policy G9 – This can be given full weight. 

 Saved Policy D21- Can be given full weight (See APP/W0910/W/17/3171362, Parkhouse 

Ct). 

 

 
 

Page 36 of 60

Page 215

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 

4.9 In the case of this application, the tilted balance is engaged under Paragraph 11 of the NPPF 
as a number of relevant policies are out of date, despite the fact that the Council has 
demonstrated in excess of a 5-year supply of housing (7.6 years).   

4.10 The Courts have held that when applying the tilted balance, weight should also be given to 
relevant development plan policies in addition to policies in the framework. The weight to be 
given to these is subject to their consistency with the Framework. Weight can also be given to 
policies contained in the emerging plan subject to whether there are outstanding objections.  

4.11 It is therefore necessary to consider whether the adverse impacts of granting permission 
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies 
of the Framework taken as a whole. 

Allotments 

4.12 A proportion of the site proposed for development comprises existing allotments which are 
identified as Green Space in the Submission Draft Local Plan (Policy GI4). The indicative layout 
(drawing ref. L3368 Indicative Site Location Plan Rev A) proposes this existing allotment space 
to be provided as either green space or additional car parking. The Policy & Regeneration Team 
raised concerns that Policy GI4 of the Draft Local Plan requires Green Spaces within the urban 
area to be retained within the existing built up area. The proposed development is therefore 
contrary to Policy GI4. However, as the application is still in outline, it is considered that this 
conflict can be addressed through any reserved matters application which will seek to confirm 
the location and details of the green space to be provided.  

4.13 There is also concern regarding the loss of allotment space given that allotments are in high 
demand in the Borough with waiting lists for Council owned allotments being between 4-5 years 
plus. Whilst there is high demand for allotments within the Borough, the allotments here are 
within private ownership and the use can be ceased at any time.  

4.14 The outline application as it stands is contrary to Policy GI1 which sets out the Council’s 
approach to creating, enhancing and protecting a Green Infrastructure Framework. However, it 
is considered that this conflict can be addressed through provision of replacement green space 
to compensate for the loss of the allotment area as part of a reserved matters application. Ideally 
this replacement green space should have a minimum size equal to the allotments lost, 
preferably greater, and would be on site or in close proximity to the site with a suitable 
pedestrian link.  

4.15 The Council are satisfied that the illustrative layout demonstrates capacity for this to be 
achieved within the site. 

 

 

 

 

Page 37 of 60

Page 216

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Highways and Access 

4.16 Detailed approval is being sought for a new vehicular access off London Road of 5.5m wide 
and incorporating 2.4m x 27.6m and 2.4m x 33.1m visibility splays. The highway proposal also 
includes the addition of double yellow lines to be secured via a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO), 
along the eastern side of London Road, and the provision of dropped kerb crossing points on 
London Road to facilitate pedestrian crossing from the proposed residential development and 
the existing footpath which runs along the western side of London Road. 

4.17 A Transport Statement has been submitted in support of this application. This concludes that 
the existing highway network has a relatively good road safety record and that the traffic 
generated by the proposed development will not have a material impact upon the operation or 
the safety of the existing highway network.  

4.18 A Road Safety Audit has also been prepared and submitted in support of this application, to 
assess whether the proposed scheme provides adequate vehicular and pedestrian access. This 
audit was carried out on the current proposals and provides an assessment of the risks 
addressed and mitigated at the outline stage.  

4.19 The proposed development is accessible by sustainable transport modes; existing bus stops 
on Ulverston Road are sited within walking distance, approximately 200 metres away from the 
site.   

4.20 Cumbria Highways and Highways England have been consulted on the application and have 
confirmed that maintaining the existing road width and western footway is the preferred 
approach. This ensures that the road width is not minimised to below Cumbria County Council 
standards and will not cause problems for vehicles turning into London Road from the A590. The 
applicant submitted further information to sufficiently demonstrate that this could be achieved; 
both Highways Authority and Highways England have reviewed this information and are satisfied 
that the proposed road width meets both national and local requirements.  

4.21 The Highway Authority has also identified the need for a financial contribution to fund some 
improvements to the Greystone Lane / Station Road on-carriageway cycle lane and which can 
be made subject of a Section 106 obligation / statutory declaration. The level of contribution for 
the cycle lane has been calculated as £5,560. 

4.22 The developer is also required to make a financial contribution for the junction improvement 
at London Road / A590, this is to be dealt with by an appropriately worded condition.  
 
4.23 Policy E2 of the Saved Local Plan notes that highways proposed in housing developments 
must be designed and constructed to adoptable standards. The indicated access arrangement 
has been agreed by Cumbria Highways, details of the internal estate layout will be considered at 
the reserved matters stage. 

4.24 Policy I4 of the Local Plan Submission Draft refers to sustainable travel and acknowledges 
that proposals should provide direct and safe access to the existing footpath and cycle network. 
In line with this policy, the proposals have sought to maintain safe access to the existing 
footpath along London Road whilst ensuring that the new proposed access also provides safe 
access for pedestrians into and out of the site. On this basis, the application is considered to 
accord with Policy I4 of the Local Plan Submission Draft.  

Page 38 of 60

Page 217

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Drainage 

4.25 The site, given its location in Flood Zone 1, represents a very low risk of flooding from fluvial 
or tidal sources.  

4.26 As the application is in outline, a detailed drainage strategy has not yet been developed for 
the site as this would, in part, be informed by the final layout. However, due to concerns raised 
about the proposed drainage approach the applicant submitted a revised Flood Risk and 
Drainage Strategy. The Lead Local Flood Authority have reviewed this revised report and 
confirmed that the flood risk and drainage strategy based on 100% infiltration is acceptable in 
principle, as this is the preferred method of disposing surface water in the NPPF hierarchy. 
However, as stated within the FRA, the results of the infiltration testing to date show that some 
areas of the site are less suitable than others for a soakaway. It is considered that as part of any 
reserved matters application further infiltration testing in accordance with BRE365 is undertaken 
to support the final detailed drainage design. Conditions have been attached to this planning 
consent to reflect this approach.  

4.27 United Utilities state that in accordance with the NPPF and NPPG, the site should be 
drained on a separate system with foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water 
draining in the most sustainable way. United Utilities have agreed they are happy for the foul 
water to be drained to the public combined / foul sewer network. They also confirmed that 
surface water from the site should preferably be drained to a soakaway. The applicant has 
confirmed that the proposed site drainage for the 1 in 30 year event will be offered for adoption 
to United Utilities up to the soakaways, following United Utilities’ recommendation. 

4.28 The applicant has confirmed that they are happy to accept a condition requiring the 
submission of a detailed drainage strategy with any reserved matters application. Both United 
Utilities and the Lead Local Flood Authority have agreed that they are happy for this information 
to be conditioned. Should this detail be agreed as part of any reserved matters application, this 
would ensure the proposals are compliant with Policy F5 of the adopted Local Plan.  

Ground Conditions 

4.29 A Geo-Environmental Appraisal has been submitted by the applicant in support of the 
application.  This has been reviewed by the Council’s Public Protection Services Contamination 
Officer who has confirmed that the site is located within an area which is potentially affected by 
Radon and as such mitigation measures will be required within the foundations, at construction 
stage.  The Contamination Officer has noted that such radon protection measures can be 
regulated via Building Control and as such no conditions are required at outline planning 
application stage.  

Landscape / Visual Impact  

4.30 The application site is located beyond the existing development cordon of Lindal-in-Furness, 
on an area of open agricultural land with the land levels rising towards the east.  The application 
seeks outline planning permission for residential development for up to 35 dwellings, with only 
the access to be considered along with the principle of development.  The applicant has 
submitted an indicative layout for the proposed development showing how the site could be laid 
out but given that design and siting of the proposed dwellings along with landscaping are 
reserved matters, the visual appearance of the proposal is reserved at this stage.   

Page 39 of 60

Page 218

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

4.31 Notwithstanding this, as the site is currently undeveloped, any proposed housing here has 
the potential to impact on the form and character of the village and the Conservation Area, which 
is 120 metres north of the site.  The development will be visible from London Road and it is likely 
that it will be visible from Ulverston Road (A590). This is due to a combination of proximity but 
also the effect of topography as the site is gently sloped and rises from a constant level along 
the London Road (west) side boundary by approximately 8.5 metres to its high point at the east 
end of the site.  While some harm may occur to the open character of the application site this 
harm will be mainly limited to the application site and therefore is considered to have a local 
impact. Members should be aware that officers consider the initial illustrative layout to be 
somewhat urban for this location. I anticipate further pre-application discussions with the 
applicant prior to the next submission, in order to produce a layout with a more rural, less 
regularised layout. This can be achieved by avoiding rigid building lines, and standardised plot 
sizes coupled with the provision of suitable house designs that draw on local materials and 
features. 

4.32 It is anticipated that all existing boundaries will be reinforced using appropriate fencing, 
hedging and tree planting. Good landscaping will be the key to producing a high quality layout 
that fits into the location, particularly in relation to boundary treatments. Buffers and planting 
have been indicated to be included along the southern boundary of the site with the railway line, 
to include a 10m wide planted buffer as advised by Network Rail.  

4.33 It is considered that weighed in the planning balance, the development proposes limited 
local visual harm which is not considered to outweigh the various benefits of the proposal. The 
site is also proposed as a housing allocation within the emerging Local Plan which identifies that 
the Council feel that the site is an appropriate location for housing development.  

Residential Amenity 

4.34 Should outline planning permission be granted, then the exact siting, scale, design and final 
number of the dwellings would be dealt with under a Reserved Matters application. There is an 
indicative layout plan included as part of the proposal in the form of an illustrative masterplan. A 
landscape buffer is proposed along the site boundary, this is illustrated on the site layout plan. 
The site is considered physically capable of accommodating up to 35 dwellings, alongside the 
provision of green space, whilst providing adequate separation distances to the existing 
dwellings to the immediate west of the site along London Road. Therefore, it is considered that 
the site is capable of being developed so as not to have an excessive or detrimental impact on 
the privacy or amenities of the surrounding dwellings, particularly those along London Road. 

Sustainability  

4.35 The site is considered to be in a sustainable location for new housing development. The site 
is located a short drive away (2.5km) from Dalton-in-Furness town centre which provides good 
access to local amenities and services. The site is located 600m south of Lindal & Marton 
Primary School. Further education is provided within Barrow-in-Furness, located 8km south-west 
of the site, and Ulverston, 5km East. As the application is for outline planning permission, and 
the dwelling mix is yet to be finalised it is not yet confirmed how many additional school places 
the development will yield. Based on estimates, it is anticipated that the development will yield 
12 children: 3 infant, 4 junior and 5 secondary pupils.  

 

Page 40 of 60

Page 219

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

4.36 An assessment by Cumbria County Council’s spatial planning team has concluded that 
there are sufficient spaces available in the existing primary and secondary schools close to the 
site and thus no contributions will be sought for education.  

4.37 There are bus stops located along Ulverston Road, located approximately 200m north of the 
proposed site access, with regular bus services operating between Barrow-in-Furness, Dalton-
in-Furness, Ulverston and Kendal.  

4.38 Policy DS1 of the Local Plan submission draft refers to the Council’s commitment to 
sustainable development, and states that when determining planning applications, the Council 
will take a positive approach to ensure that development is sustainable.  

Children’s Play Space 

4.39 Saved Policy G9 requires new housing development, as a minimum, to include children’s 
play space and emerging Policy HC1O in the Local Plan Submission Draft states that residential 
development will be required to provide well designed and well-located children’s play space 
where deemed appropriate through lack of provision. The proposed layout does not currently 
provide for children’s play space within the site.  

4.40 It has been agreed by both the applicant and the policy team that as this application is only 
outline, all parties are happy for the play area requirement to be dealt with as the reserved 
matters stage by means of a condition. A maintenance schedule will also need to be agreed at 
the reserved matters stage.   

Archaeology 

4.41 A Heritage Statement was submitted in support of the application. This statement indicates 
the proposed development has the potential to disturb archaeological assets associated with 
mining remains. It suggests that given the nature of the archaeological remains in the 
surrounding area, there is the potential for currently unknown remains to survive on the site. 
Thus, a condition has been attached requiring a scheme of archaeological recording be 
undertaken in advance of development.  

S106 

4.42 The Highway Authority (Cumbria County Council) has confirmed that the applicant should 
enter into a suitably worded legal agreement with the Highways Authority to fund the provision of 
the TRO to the value of £6,500.  

4.43 As identified by Cumbria County Council Transport and Spatial Planning, the applicant will 
be required to make a contribution towards the Greystone Lane / Station Road on-carriageway 
cycle lane to promote sustainability and promote increase in activity. The level of contribution for 
the cycle lane has been calculated at £5,560.  

Ecology  

4.44 The application was accompanied by a Phase 1 Habitat Survey which concludes that the 
proposal would not result in harm to protected species or their habitat.  

Page 41 of 60

Page 220

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

4.45 However, Barrow’s Biodiversity and Development SPD requests that applicants should give 
consideration as to how new areas of bio-diversity can be incorporated within developments. 
Opportunities which provide a new gain in biodiversity should always be sought. A condition has 
been attached to this grant of planning consent to ensure that a landscaping scheme which 
provides a net gain in biodiversity is produced prior to the commencement of any development 
on site. Opportunities for providing a net gain should be considered prior to the submission of a 
reserved matters application when considering the layout of the development.  

4.46 Tree protection measures and detailed landscape plans would form part of any reserved 
matters application. Suitable choices of layout, location and plant species mix should aid in 
providing additional habitat creation. 

Benefits of Delivering New Houses 

4.47 The Framework, at section 5, emphasises the importance of meeting identified housing 
needs. The development will deliver 35 houses of a variety of sizes and types, including an 
element of affordable and retirement living which will contribute towards the range of houses 
available in the borough. New guidance within the Framework also recognises the importance of 
small and medium sized sites in terms of helping meet the housing requirement. It advises that 
such sites are often built out relatively quickly.  

4.48 The proposals will also provide economic benefits during the construction phase with the 
creation of jobs and demand for building supplies in the local area. Future occupiers would 
spend in the local area and support local services and facilitates including schools; the County 
Council recently confirming that surplus school places remain in the area.  

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The Council is able to demonstrate in excess of a 5-year supply of housing (7.6 years) 
however Saved Policy B3 is out of date and inconsistent with the Framework. As a consequence 
of the latter and as advised by the Council’s Policy & Regeneration section, paragraph 11 (tilted 
balance) of the Framework is engaged. It is therefore necessary to consider whether the 
adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits when assessed against the policies of the Framework taken as a whole.  
 
Principle of Development 
 
5.2 The site is proposed to be allocated for housing development within the draft Local Plan 
(Policy H3, Site Reference REC37) with an indicative yield of 36 dwellings, thus it is considered 
that the site is an appropriate location for housing development.  
 
5.3 A section of the site is also proposed to remain as Green Space, which will be equal to or 
greater than the allotment space which is proposed to be lost. The indicative layout includes an 
area of public open space in the centre of the site, and green space to the left of the site. It is 
considered that further guidance can be provided at the reserved matters stage to ensure a 
sympathetic layout is produced.  
 
 
 
 

Page 42 of 60

Page 221

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Highways 
 
5.4 Highways England and the Local Highways Authority have been consulted upon and have 
confirmed that, following various amendments and the submission of detailed drawings, they are 
now happy with the proposed road width and retention of the western footpath. The applicant 
has submitted sufficient information in support of this application to confirm that the development 
will not have a material impact on the operation or safety of the existing highway network.  
 
Other relevant matters  
 
5.5 The scheme would provide economic benefits during the construction phase with the demand 
for jobs and demand for building supplies in the local area. Future occupiers would spend 
money in the local economy and support local services and facilities including schools. Benefits 
during the construction phase are short term in nature and are afforded limited weight. The 
contribution to facilities is helpful but small and has moderate weight.  
 
5.6 However, the annual housing requirement for the Borough has not been met by developers 
since before 2003. In this context significant weight should be given to the contribution which the 
proposed development would make, especially in contributing to the offer in Lindal-in-Furness.  
 
5.7 The adverse impacts of the development in terms of the limited harm to visual amenity and 
openness and the conflict with saved policy G9 (Children’s Play Space) and emerging Policy 
GI4 (Green Space) is not considered to significantly and demonstrably outweigh the significant 
benefits of the development when assessed against the Policies in the Framework as a whole. A 
suitable layout which incorporates adequate play space and Green Space will be the subject of 
a Reserved Matters application. The Council are satisfied that the illustrative layout 
demonstrates that the site has the capacity to achieve this objective.  

 
6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that; 
 

A. Subject to the applicant completing a Section 106 obligation (or a suitably worded 
Unilateral Undertaking) to make a financial contribution of £6,500 to fund the provision of 
a Traffic Regulation Order to control on street parking, and £5,560 to contribute to the 
Greystone Lane / Station Road cycle route, then 
 

B. Outline Planning Permission be GRANTED, subject to the Standard Outline Duration 
Limit and the following conditions, 

 
1. No dwelling on the development shall be beneficially occupied until the access for the 
proposed development, as shown on Drawing ref. Proposed Highways Layout 3.9.18 has been 
constructed in accordance with the details that have been agreed beforehand in writing by the 
Planning Authority. 
  
Reason; In the interests of highway safety, and in order to support Local Transport Plan 
Policies, LD7, LD8  
 
 
 

Page 43 of 60

Page 222

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 
2. No development shall commence within the site until the applicant has secured an 

implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 

investigation which has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  

This written scheme will include the following components: 
 
a) An archaeological evaluation; 
b) A recording programme of the archaeological assets impacted upon by the permitted 
development, the scope of which will be dependent upon the results of the evaluation; 
c) Where significant archaeological assets are revealed by the programme of archaeological 
work, a post-excavation assessment and analysis, preparation of a site archive ready for 
deposition at a store approved by the Planning Authority, completion of an archive report, and 
submission of the results for publication in a suitable journal.  
 
Reasons: To afford reasonable opportunity for an examination to be made to determine the 
existence of any remains of archaeological interest within the site and for the preservation, 
examination or recording of such remains. 
 
3. No infiltration systems shall be constructed within 20m of Network Rail Property  

Reason: So as to not influence the stability of the railway cutting or affect the safety, operation 
or integrity of the existing operational railway. 
 

3. 4. All surface and foul waters must drain away from the railway via a closed sealed pipe system, 

written details of which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority 

prior to installation. The system shall be installed as approved and thereafter permanently 

retained in an operational condition unless the Planning Authority gives prior written approval to 

any variation.      

Reason: So as to ensure that drainage from the development does not influence the stability of 
the railway cutting or affect the safety, operation or integrity of the existing operational railway  
 

5. 5. No works shall be undertaken within 10m of the Network Rail boundary, until the developer 

has provided the Planning Authority with written details and agreement by, or on behalf of, 

Network Rail, of a Risk Assessment and Method Statement (RAMS)  

Reason: So as to not influence the stability of the railway cutting or affect the safety, operation 
or integrity of the existing operational railway.  
 

6. 6. No drainage from the proposed development shall run off into the trunk road drainage system, 
nor shall any such new development adversely affect any trunk road drainage.  

 
Reason: In order to protect the integrity of the Highways England asset by ensuring that any 
new development adjacent to the SRN does not negatively impact upon the asset. 
 
7. Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme outlining how Foul and surface water 

shall be drained on separate systems, including the phasing of the scheme, shall be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in 

accordance with the approved details 

Page 44 of 60

Page 223

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution  
 

8. Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme and 

means of disposal, based on sustainable drainage principles with a feasibility assessment of the 

whole range of SUDs components as per the CDDG Appendix 6 and with evidence of an 

assessment of the site conditions (inclusive of a programme of phasing of installation, and also 

how the scheme shall be managed and maintained after completion), shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The proposed scheme should meet the 

requirements of Sustainable drainage systems: non-statutory technical standards (March 2015) 

or any subsequent document replacing or re-enacting this advice. 

The surface water drainage scheme must be restricted to existing runoff rates and unless 
otherwise agreed beforehand in writing by the Planning Authority, no surface water shall be 
discharged to the public sewerage system either directly or indirectly. If the scheme intends to 
discharge surface water to a public sewer, evidence that this proposal is acceptable to the asset 
owners must be provided; The surface water strategy discharge should aim to discharge as high 
up the NPPF hierarchy of drainage options as possible, with all options explored and evidence 
provided for the proposed solution. 

 
a) Into the ground (infiltration); 
b) To a surface water body; 
c) To a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system; 
d) To a combined sewer.  

 
The developer shall, as part of the submission, provide a surface water drainage management 
and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which shall include the arrangements 
for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker and any other arrangements to 
secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. The development shall be completed, 
and thereafter maintained and managed in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the risk 
of flooding and pollution. This condition is imposed in light of policies within the NPPF and 
NPPG. 

 

9. The carriageways, foot-ways and footpaths shall be designed, drained and lit to a 

standard suitable for adoption by the Highway Authority. In this respect further written details, 

including longitudinal and cross sections, highway drainage and lighting specifications, together 

with a programme of phasing for future management and maintenance, shall be submitted to the 

Planning Authority for approval. The highways management and maintenance plan shall include 

as a minimum;  

a. The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory  
           undertaker, or management and maintenance by a Residents Management Company;  

b. Arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its ongoing maintenance 
of all elements of the highways, foot-ways, and footpaths, which will include elements 
such as ongoing inspections relating to performance and asset condition assessments, 
operation costs, regular maintenance, remedial works and irregular maintenance however 
caused, to secure the operation of the highways, foot-ways and footpaths throughout the 
lifetime of the development 

 

Page 45 of 60

Page 224

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

No development work pertaining to highways and associated infrastructure shall be commenced 
on site until a full specification, including a Road Safety Audit, has been approved in writing. 
The works shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and the scheme of 
phasing as agreed with the Planning Authority. These details shall be in accordance with the 
standards laid down in the current Cumbria Residential Design Guide.  
 
Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway safety, and 
to support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD5, LD7, LD8.  

 
10. The construction of dwellings shall not commence until visibility splays providing clear 

visibility of 28 metres to the north and 33m to the south measured 2.4 metres down the centre of 

the access road and the nearside channel line of the major road have been provided at the 

junction of the access road with the County highway. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town 

and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any 

legislation revoking and re-enacting that Order) relating to permitted development, no structure, 

vehicle or object of any kind shall be erected, parked or places and no trees, bushes or other 

plants shall be planted or be permitted to be grown within the visibility splay which obstruct the 

visibility splays. The visibility splays shall be constructed before general development of the site 

commences so that construction traffic is safeguarded. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety, and in order to support Local Transport Plan Polices, 
LD7, LD8.  
 
11. No dwelling shall be occupied until the vehicular parking, access and turning 

requirements to serve that dwelling have been constructed in accordance with the approved 

plan, including any approved phasing, and has been brought into use. The vehicular access 

turning provisions shall be retained and capable of use at all times thereafter and shall not be 

removed or altered without the prior consent of the Planning Authority.. 

Reason: To ensure a minimum standard of access provision when the development is brought 
into use. To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD5, LD7, LD8. 
 
12. Development shall not be begun until a Construction Phase Management Plan (CMP) 

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The CMP shall include 

details of: 

 Pre-construction road conditions established by a detailed survey for accommodation 
 

 works within the highways boundary conducted with a Highway Authority representative; 
with all post development repairs carried out to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority at the 
applicant’s expense; 
 

 Details of proposed crossings of the highway verge; 
 

 Retained areas for vehicle parking, manoeuvring, loading and unloading for their specific 
purpose during the development which allows vehicles visiting the site to enter and 
leave the highway in a forward gear; 
 

 Cleaning of site entrances and the adjacent public highway; 
Details of proposed wheel washing facilities; 

Page 46 of 60

Page 225

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 The sheeting of all HGVs taking spoil to/from the site to prevent spillage or deposit of any 
materials on the highway; 
 

 Construction vehicle routing; 
 

 The management of junctions to and crossings of the public highway and other public 
rights of way/footway; 

 

 Surface water management details. 
 

 Days/hours of work including deliveries. 
 
Reason: In the interests of residential amenities, pedestrian safety and the safety of users of 
adjacent highways including the A590 Trunk Road. 
 

13. 13. Prior to the commencement of development a landscaping strategy which provides an net 
gain in bio-diversity shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority  

 
Reason: To ensure compliance with the Borough of Barrow in Furness Biodiversity and 
Development SPD  
 
14. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be 
carried out by the developer in the first planting and seeding seasons following beneficial 
occupation of any part of the development, or in accordance with the phasing of the scheme as 
agreed in writing with the Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of five 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged 
or diseased, shall be replaced by the landowner in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any 
variation. 
 
Reason; In the interests of the long-term biodiversity and visual amenities of the area. 
 
15. No part of the development shall be occupied until a Landscape Management Plan, 
including the long term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance 
schedules for not less than 5 years following  implementation, for all areas of landscaping other 
than those within the curtilages of individual dwellings, shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority and the design, management objectives and maintenance of 
the landscaped areas shall thereafter be in accordance with the approved Landscape 
Management Plan.  
 

Reason:  In the interests of the long term visual amenities of the area and to support wider 
opportunities for biodiversity within the locality. 
 
16.  The roof coverings of all dwellings and outbuildings shall be of natural slate, details of which 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The development shall 
then be carried out in accordance with the approved details and thereafter retained. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development respects its setting and reflects the local character 
including the conservation area. 
 

Page 47 of 60

Page 226

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

17.  The layout submitted as part of any Reserved Matters application shall incorporate an area 
of open space, together with a programme for its future management and maintenance, which 
shall be constructed and made available for use no later than the occupation of 50% of the 
dwellings approved, and in accordance with a scheme submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority.  That area shall not thereafter be used for any purpose other than as 
open space unless the Planning Authority gives prior express consent for any variation. 

 
Reason; To ensure a minimum level of informal play provision for the development in 
accordance with Saved policy and emerging policies 
 
18. All garages and parking spaces shall be kept clear of any development, whether 
permitted or not by the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) 
Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) or 
obstructions and shall not be used for any other purpose, unless the Planning Authority gives 
prior written consent for any variation. All spaces shall accord with the latest version of the 
Cumbria Design Guide.  
 
Reason: In the interests of ensuring the provision of a suitable level of off- street parking for the 
development  
 
19. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for contamination and 
assessed for its suitability for the proposed development. A suitable methodology for testing this 
material should be submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority prior to the soils being 
imported onto site. The methodology should include the sampling frequency, testing schedules, 
criteria against which the analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk 
assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then be carried out 
as per the agreed methodology with verification of its completion submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that no contamination is accidentally brought onto the site via imported material
  
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Informative 

 Please note that this application is only in outline form and the layout drawing is 
purely indicative so all matters including layout are reserved. 

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out.   

 This development will require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 

 Highway works outside of the application site on the public highway will require prior 
approval from Cumbria CC under the Highway Act. 

 

Page 48 of 60

Page 227

Agenda Item 10



2018/0375

Page 49 of 60

P
age 228

A
genda Item

 10



2018/0375

Page 50 of 60

Page 229

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Appendices of Saved and Emerging Policies  

Note to Members 

Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the agenda 
today. 

Saved Polices 

The starting point when determining applications remains the Development Plan. 
Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material 
considerations, including the NPPF, indicate otherwise. 

The titled balance under paragraph 11 of the NPPF is engaged where any of the policies 
relevant to the application are out of date or where there is no 5-year housing land supply. 
At present the Council can demonstrate a supply in excess of 5 years. The officers report 
will indicate if any policies are out of date and how much weight they can be given. Under 
titled balance applications should be approved unless 

“any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies as a whole, or specific policies in the 
Framework indicate development should be restricted.” 

The titled balance is not engaged where all relevant policies are in date and there is a 
sufficient supply of housing land. 

Emerging Policies 

As the emerging plan is now under examination, the policies within it can be given weight. 
The amount of weight each policy has is dependent upon the significance of unresolved 
objections to the policy and how consistent it is with the NPPF.  

Saved Local Plan 2001 

POLICY B3 
 
For unallocated sites the Authority will expect a density of 30 dwellings per hectare though 
lower densities will be accepted where this is in the interest of the economic regeneration of 
the area. However, within the area covered by Central Barrow Inset and Dalton 
Conservation Area, fairly high overall net development densities (around 70 dwellings per 
hectare) will be favored on residential sites, consistent with primarily two or three-story 
development and good standards of amenity.  
 
POLICY B4 
 
Within the urban boundaries of Barrow and Dalton applications for new dwellings or 
conversions of existing buildings on suitable sites in residential areas or on the peripheries 
thereof will be permitted provided the design, siting, layout and access arrangements are 
satisfactory. This means that the development must also satisfy the criteria of Policy B2. 
This policy will also apply to land currently or last used for employment purposes or with 

Page 51 of 60

Page 230

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

planning permission for employment use where the proposal involves the provision of 
housing for which a specific need has been identified and where the location is considered 
suitable by the Authority, or such housing is mixed with employment uses, or the existing 
use is an un-neighbourly or non-conforming one by reason of excessive traffic generation, 
noise or disturbance to local amenity.  
 
POLICY G9 
 
New housing development will be required to include, as a minimum, children’s play area 
space in accordance with the standards set out below, which are hereby adopted by the 
Authority and based on the recommendations of the National Playing Field Association: 
 

 Development sites over 15 units or 0.4 hectares in size should provide a play area of 
no less than 100sqm, within 100 meters or 1 minutes safe walking distance of the 
new dwellings 

 Development sites over 50 units or 0.8 hectares in size should provide a play area of 
no less than 400sqm, with at least five types of play equipment within 500 meters or 
5 minutes safe walking distance of the new dwellings 

 Development sites of over 100 units should also provide a kick-about space for older 
children of no less than 400sqm.  

 
POLICY D21 
 
In determining all applications submitted to it the local planning authority will have regard to 
the General Design Code set out in paragraph 5.4.27 of this plan. 
 
In towns and villages, proposals shall relate to the context provided by buildings, street and 
plot patterns, building frontages, topography, established public views, landmark buildings 
and other townscape elements.  Proposals that do not respect the local context and street 
pattern or the scale, height, proportions and materials of surrounding buildings and 
development which constitutes over development of the site by virtue of scale, height or 
bulk will not be permitted, unless there is specific justification, such as interests of 
sustainability, energy efficiency or crime prevention. 
 
Development proposals in the countryside shall respect the diversity and distinctiveness of 
local landscape character.  New farm buildings will, in general, be required to be sited 
within or adjacent to an existing farm building complex or in other well screened locations 
and to be subject to a complementary design and use of materials, with, where necessary, 
a ‘planting’ scheme. 
 
POLICY F4 
 
New development will be permitted if foul sewers and sewage treatment works of adequate 
capacity and design are available or will be provided in time to serve the development. The 
proliferation of small private package sewage treatment plants and other types of discharge 
direct to watercourses within sewered areas will not be allowed. The use of septic tanks 
will, in consideration with the Environment Agency, only be considered if connection to the 
mains sewerage is not feasible and only then if ground conditions are satisfactory and the 
plot of land is of sufficient size to provide an adequate subsoil drainage system. 
 

Page 52 of 60

Page 231

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

POLICY F6 
 
Proposals for new development involving sites in excess of 0.4 ha must be accompanied by 
details of all land drainage arrangements. These must be designed so as to ensure that 
there is no deleterious effect on adjoining occupiers of land, important wildlife habitats or 
watercourses in the vicinity. 
 
POLICY F11 
 
The floor levels of all new development must be at least 7 metres above Ordnance Datum 
 
POLICY F15  
 
In the case of new housing, commercial, industrial and other development on significant 
sites, where appropriate, the Council will seek, by planning condition or planning obligation 
under Section 106 of the 1990 Act, to provide for infrastructure requirements and new 
social, recreational and community facilities, where the need for these is fairly and 
reasonably related to the development concerned. The types of facilities which may be 
required, are listed in paragraph 7.3.13 and elsewhere in this Local Plan. Provision may be 
made on site, or commuted payments may be negotiated to provide facilities elsewhere if 
their location can adequately serve the development site, or needs generated by it. 
 
Local Plan 2017 
 
Emerging Policy DS1 – Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
 
When determining planning applications, the Council will take a positive approach to ensure 
development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to find 
positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be 
approved wherever possible.  
 
The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking an 
integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the build, natural and historic 
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider choice of 
housing. This will enable the Local Plan’ Vision and Objectives to be met and to secure 
development that is simultaneously achieved economic, social and environmental gains for 
the Borough.  
 
Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without 
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of date at 
the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 

a) Any adverse impacts of granting planning permission would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefit when assessed against the policies in the NPPF 
taken as a whole; or 

b) Specific policies in the Framework indicate that development should be restricted. 
 
 

Page 53 of 60

Page 232

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Emerging Policy DS2 – Sustainable Development Criteria  
 
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development Plan 
policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals will be required 
to meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of 
development and the magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by:  

a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and 
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main 
travel purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and 
education facilities; 

b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at 
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over capacity; 

c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that 
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planning utilities 
infrastructure; 

d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light, 
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed 
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 

e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly 
privacy, security and natural light; 

f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 
development; 

g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest 
of related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and 
other environmental assets; 

h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 
i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if 

possible; 
j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 
k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures, the use 

of sustainable drainage systems where appropriate and steers development away 
from areas of flood risk; 

l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic 
environment including heritage assets and their settings 
 

Where the applicant demonstrates that one of more of the criteria cannot be met, they must 
highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of objectives by 
alternative means. 
 
Emerging Policy DS3 – Development Strategy  
 
The Council will pursue an overarching strategy of sustainable balanced growth, 
redistributing development across the Borough, to improve the residential environment of 
the central Barrow area and also allow an increased amount of development in Dalton, 
Askam and other sustainable settlements.   
 
The distribution of development is outlined in Policy H2, and Policy H3 contains a balanced 
portfolio of sites, in a range of locations throughout the Borough, both brownfield and 
greenfield in order to achieve this Strategy.  
 

Page 54 of 60

Page 233

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

This strategy seeks to promote the opportunities and strengths enjoyed by the Borough and 
achieve sustainable development that enhance its offer in terms of housing, employment, 
leisure and culture, and encourages inward investment.  
 
Emerging Policy DS5 – Design  
 
New development must be of a high-quality design, which will support the creation of 
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications must 
demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of the site 
and its context, taking into account the Council’s Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals 
must demonstrate clearly how they:  
 
Emerging Policy DS6 - Landscaping 
 
A Landscaping Scheme and maintenance regime will be required as part of a planning 
application or by condition where development will have a significant impact upon the 
surrounding environment or where the development occupies a site in a prominent location. 
The Cumbria Landscape Character Toolkit should be used as a baseline tool to determine 
the impact of new development on the landscape and the type of landscaping and/or 
mitigation to be put in place. 
 
All soft landscaping, all existing trees, shrubs and planted areas should be shown along 
with details of any protective measures proposed. Details of new trees, shrubs and planted 
areas in terms of species, density, size, spacing and position should be included. Native 
species should be used with decorative species used for only accent purposed in support of 
other design objectives. Native planting is particularly important in areas adjacent to natural 
habitats e.g. watercourses. Proposals must demonstrate that any soft landscaping 
proposed will have a positive visual impact upon the area and is able to survive in its 
environment.  
 
In terms of hard landscaping, materials used must be of a colour and texture appropriate to 
the locally distinctive character of the area, be durable, practical for the proposed use under 
a variety of weather conditions and incorporate permeable surfaces to alleviate run off.  
 
Emerging Policy C1 – Flood Risk & Erosion  
 
The Council will support natural defence measure to protect against coastal and fluvial 
flooding and erosion in the Borough. However, where the implementation of natural 
defences is not feasible or viable, the council will support new defence structures. All new 
defence measures will be subject to the following criteria: 

a) Measures are designed and incorporated to enhance biodiversity and the compliant 
with the Water Framework Directive;  

b) There will be no unacceptable harm to natural coastal processes habitats, 
geodiversity and the historic environment; 

c) Opportunities are maximised to enhance the Cumbria Coastal Way, England Coast 
Path or other public right of way, where the defences are situated on or adjacent to 
such a public right of way; and 

d) The open character of the undeveloped coast is maintained, with the existing 
landscape character of the site respected and reinforced.  

  

Page 55 of 60

Page 234

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

Emerging Policy C3a – Water Management  
 
All new development will minimise its impacts on the environment through the following 
measures: 

a) New development will achieve the minimum standards for water efficiency, as 
defined by Building Regulations. By the installation of fittings and fixed appliances, 
water recycling or other appropriate measures for the prevention of undue 
consumption of water and which recycle and conserve water resources 

b) New development will be required to prioritise the use of sustainable drainage 
systems (SUDS) and ensure there is no increase in flood risk from surface water. 
Drainage systems should be of a high design standard and will benefit biodiversity 
and contribute to improved water quality. Developers will be expected to submit a 
drainage strategy that shows how foul and surface water will be effectively managed. 
Surface water should be discharged in the following order of priority: 

i) An adequate soakaway or some other form of infiltration system 
ii) An attenuated discharge to a surface water body such as a watercourse 
iii) An attenuated discharged to a public surface water sewer, highway drain or 

another drainage system 
iv) An attenuated discharge to public combined sewer 

 
Applicants wishing to discharge to public sewer will need to submit clear evidence 
demonstrating why alternative options are not available. 
 

c) Approved development proposals will be expected to be supplemented by 
appropriate maintenance and management regimes for surface water drainage 
schemes  

 
Emerging Policy C5 – Promoting Renewable Energy  
 
New development must take into account the effects of climate change, promote the use of 
energy efficient methods and materials, and minimise its impact on the environment. 
Proposals will be encouraged to maximise the design of buildings, use of materials, their 
layout and orientation on site to be as energy efficient as possible.  
 
All new developments will be encouraged to incorporate renewable energy production 
equipment, sources of renewable energy production equipment, sources of renewable 
energy such as photovoltaics and the potential for renewable, low carbon or decentralized 
energy schemes appropriate to the scale and location of the development provided they 
accord with the requirements of Policy C6.  
 
Emerging Policy C7 – Light Pollution  
 
The Council will seek to minimise light pollution and applications which propose new 
external lighting will be expected to demonstrate that: 

a) The proposed artificial light has no adverse impact on the locality; or 
b) Measures will be taken to avoid, and where appropriate mitigate, any negative 

impacts of the effects of new lighting on local amenity resulting from the 
development; 

c) The proposal has no significant impact on a protected site or species; 

Page 56 of 60

Page 235

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

d) The proposal is not in or near a protected area of dark sky or an intrinsically dark 
landscape where it may be desirable to minimise new light sources; and 

e) The proposal has no impact on wildlife when being proposed close to sensitive 
wildlife receptors or areas.  

 
Emerging Policy H3 – Allocation of sites for Housing Development  
 
In order to meet the housing requirement over the plan period, a number of specific sites 
are allocated for residential development. 
 
Emerging Policy H4 – Development Cordons 
 
In the following villages, residential development and the conversion of existing buildings for 
residential purposes will be allowable within the residential cordon, especially if it 
contributes to the maintenance of that community.  
 
Emerging Policy H9 – Housing Density  
 
Developers can determine the most appropriate density on a site by site basis, providing 
that the scheme meets the design principles set out in this plan and is appropriate to the 
character of the location of the development in negotiation with the planning authority. 
 
Consideration should also be given to housing needs identified in the most up-to-date 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment when determining the appropriate density. This will 
allow a range of densities to be developed and applied to best suit the character and 
requirements of different parts of the borough and ensure sites come forward in a timely 
manner.  
 
Emerging Policy HC10 – Play Areas  
 
Proposals for residential development will be assessed on a site by site basis, and where 
deemed appropriate through lack of provision or other limiting factor such as access, will be 
required to provide well designed and located children’s play space, within close proximity 
to the development, that is safe and accessible for users. Areas of well designed and 
maintained landscaping will be encouraged and consideration must be given to Local Plan 
Policy H5 (crime prevention). Developers will be expected to provide a commuted sum for a 
minimum of 5 years maintenance, or contributions for off-site provision within suitable, safe 
walking distance. 
 
Where a Development Brief has been produced for a site, the brief will set out the 
requirement for play space and on windfall sites the requirement will be agreed with the 
Local Planning Authority.  
 
Emerging Policy H11 – Housing Mix  
 
In order to broaden and enhance the residential offer within the Borough development 
proposals will be expected to provide a mix of different types, tenures and sizes of housing 
to address local need and aspirations and developers will be requires to demonstrate how 
this need has been met as evidenced by: 
 

Page 57 of 60

Page 236

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

 Any relevant and up to date SHMA or Housing Need Assessment for the Borough; 
 Any other relevant and suitably evidence housing needs information; 
 The location and characteristics of the site; 
 The mix of dwelling type, tenure and size in the surrounding area; and 
 Housing market conditions and demand at the time of the application 

 
Emerging Policy H14 – Affordable Housing  
 
Delivery of affordable housing, including Rent to Buy Homes, will be supported where the 
proposal meets national and local policy. Proposals for housing development will be 
assessed according to how well they meet the identified needs and aspirations of the 
Borough’s housing market area as set out in the most up-to-date Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment and/or any more recent evidence of need. 10% of dwellings on sites of 10 
units or over must be affordable as defined by the NPPF. Tenure split must reflect that 
stated as required in the latest Strategic Housing Market Assessment where possible.  
 
A lower proportion of affordable housing, or an alternative tenure split, may be permitted 
where it can be clearly demonstrated by way of a financial appraisal that the development 
would not otherwise be financially viable. Early dialogue with the Council on this matter is 
essential. It is not acceptable to sub-divide a site and purposely deign a scheme to avoid 
making affordable housing contributions.  
 
Emerging Policy GI4 – Green Spaces  
 
Green Spaces within the urban area make an important contribution to community life, 
street scene character and biodiversity. They will need to be retained within the existing 
built up area as well as being provided for in new housing layouts. 
 
Where development is proposed adjacent to a Green Space, it will need to show how the 
form and character of existing spaces are to be maintained, incorporated or enhanced. 
 
Proposals will also need to demonstrate how new green spaces are to provide a focal 
setting for new development as part of a wider landscaping scheme that contributes to 
creating a sense of place, improved accessibility and community safety.  
 
Emerging Policy I1 – Developer Contributions 
 
Development and infrastructure provision will be coordinated to ensure that growth is 
supported by the timely provision of adequate infrastructure facilities and services. The 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be used to identify the timing, type and number of 
infrastructure requirements to support the objectives and policies of the Plan as well as the 
main funding mechanisms and lead agencies responsible for their delivery.  
 
All development should make the most efficient use of existing infrastructure where there is 
capacity. Where developments will create additional need for improvements / provision of 
infrastructure, services or facilities or exacerbate an existing deficiency, contributions will be 
sought to ensure that the appropriate enhancements / improvements are made and how 
appropriate management arrangements are in place. Consideration will be given to how 
these requirements will affect the viability of development.  
 

Page 58 of 60

Page 237

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

The types of infrastructure that developments may be required to provide contributions 
towards include, but are not limited to: 
 

- Utilities and waste 
- Flood prevention and sustainable drainage measures 
- Transport 
- Community infrastructure including health, education, libraries, public realm, heritage  

and geological assets and other community facilities  
- Green infrastructure 
- Climate change and energy initiatives  

 
Developer contributions for the above will be informed by relevant up to date and robust 
evidence where applicable. 
 
Where appropriate, the Council will permit developers to provide the necessary 
infrastructure themselves as part of their development proposals, rather than making 
financial contributions, subject to agreement with relevant consultees.  
 
Emerging Policy I3 – Access to Community Facilities  
 
Proposals for new housing development will demonstrate how the existing local community 
facilities will be suitable and accessible for the users of the proposed development.  
 
Where such facilities are not suitable and accessible, development proposals for housing 
developments should provide appropriate community facilities to fulfil the needs created by 
the proposed development, or a contribution towards the provision of such facilities where 
this is considered more applicable.  
 
Community facilities will relate directly and be fairly and reasonable related in scale and 
kind to the proposed development. 
 
In assessing whether a contribution from a particular site is appropriate the Borough 
Council will have due regard to the following considerations: 
 

a) The size of the site; 
b) The nature of the proposals and the suitability of the site for providing community 

facilities; and 
c) The economic viability of the development 

 
Emerging Policy I6 – Parking  

Proposals for new developments will be required to provide evidence to demonstrate that 
adequate parking provision has been provided in consultation with the Local Highways 
Authority and in accordance with the parking standards in the “Parking Guidelines in 
Cumbria” SPD or any update to it.  

In areas suffering from significant on-street parking problems, greater provision will be 
sought where possible, or alternative arrangements will be required. When applying parking 
standards each site should be assessed on its own merits and, if a developer can 
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the authority that their proposed parking provision is 

Page 59 of 60

Page 238

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 

sufficient, the ‘Parking Guidelines in Cumbria’ can be relaxed in favour of the demonstrated 
proposal. 

The design of on and off site parking provision will be safely accessible and appropriate to 
the street scene and character of the local area. Consideration should be given to Policy 
C3a and Policy DS6.  

 

Page 60 of 60

Page 239

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



             Part One

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:   21st May, 2019

Reporting Officer:   Executive Director   

(D)

Title: Appointment to Outside Bodies, Panels, Working 
Groups etc.

Summary and Conclusions: 

The Council on 20th May, 2019 gave delegated authority to Committees to 
make appointments to Outside Bodies, Working Groups etc. in accordance 
with the number and allocation of seats to political groups agreed at the 
meeting.  In the case of the Planning Committee this involves appointments to 
the Planning Panel.

Recommendations: 

To nominate and agree the appointments to the Planning Panel.

Report

At the Annual Council meeting on 20th May, 2019 the allocation of seats in 
respect of Forums, Panels, Working Groups etc. were agreed.

Members are requested to appoint Members to the Planning Panel in 
accordance with the notional seat allocations for 2019/20 which have been 
agreed as follows:-.

Five Seats (3 Labour: 2 Conservative).

Note:- Membership for 2018/2019 was the Chairman (Councillor M. A. 
Thomson), Vice-Chairman (Councillor C. Thomson) and Councillors Blezard, 
Husband and McLeavy.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 241

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 21st May, 2019

Reporting Officer:  Development Services Manager                                       
(Planning & Enforcement)

(D)

Title: Receipt of Appeal Decision: 
               Marsh Grange Barn, Dunnerholme

Summary and Conclusions: 

Having issued prior approval for an agricultural barn to residential conversion, 
the Council subsequently refused to issue a Lawful Development Certificate 
sought to confirm subsequent demolition works were lawful.  The applicant 
appealed the decision.

The Planning Inspector ruled that the demolition works undertaken do not fall 
within the scope of the prior approval issued and that the permitted 
development right to convert the building is now lost.

Recommendations: 

To note the report.

Report

The appeal relates to a disused barn, constructed in traditional materials of 
stone walls and slate roof, previously used for agricultural purposes.  An 
application for prior approval for conversion to a dwellinghouse and 
associated operational development was submitted in June 2017 under the 
provisions of Class Q of Part 3 of Schedule 2 of The Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as 
amended (GPDO).  Prior Approval BPAC/2017/0350 was subsequently 
granted subject to conditions.

Building work commenced subsequent to the grant of prior approval though it 
included demolition not identified within the submitted application.  This 
amounted to a loss of an estimated 347 square metres of the barn’s stone 
walls (of an original 510 square metres).  Such work was considered to 
exceed that permitted by the GPDO and the applicant/agent was informed 
and advised to stop work.  Having sought advice from a Planning Consultant, 
the applicant was of the opinion that the works carried out were within the 

Page 243

Agenda Item 12



terms of the approval and submitted a Lawful Development Certificate to 
confirm this.  The application was refused.

The Inspector commented, “The demolition works undertaken and building 
works proposed do not fall within the scope of the prior approval issued under 
Class Q of Part 3 of Schedule 2 of the GPDO. For the reasons given, and on 
the evidence now available, the Council’s refusal to grant a certificate of lawful 
use or development in respect of Marsh Grange Barn, Dunnerholme, Askam-
in-Furness was well-founded and the appeal thus fails.”

The applicant has the option of applying for express planning permission for a 
new dwelling, which will be assessed against the development plan and 
national planning policy.

Background Papers

Nil.

Page 244

Agenda Item 12



  Part One

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 21st May, 2019

Reporting Officer:  Development Services Manager                                       
(Planning)

(D)

Title: Appeal Decision for Proposed Rear Extension at        
24 Fell Croft, Dalton-in-Furness

Summary and Conclusions: 

The application was for a rear first storey extension.  Following refusal under 
Delegated powers the applicant has had their Appeal dismissed by the 
Planning Inspectorate.  The decision is attached at Appendix 1.

Recommendations: 

That the information be noted.

Report

The property has a mixed history of recent applications.  A two storey rear 
extension was refused in 2017 (2017/0528), a single storey 3.6m long 
addition submitted under the Larger Homes legislation (2017/0725) and a 
further first floor addition refused under Delegated powers 2018/0564).  It is 
the latter which formed the basis of the appeal.

Under the Larger Homes regime a Planning Authority cannot intervene in the 
layout or design of a proposal unless the neighbour objects within the 21 day 
window.  As no such response was received the Authority had to concede that 
Prior Approval for the ground floor extension was not required.

At the time of the application the ground floor extension was under 
construction.  The refused application was for a flat roofed first floor addition 
above this, which would have resulted in a structure 3.6m long and 5.6m in 
height.

The key issues around which the decision to refuse was based, were design 
principles relating to the adverse impact upon the neighbours’ amenities.  The 
size and mass of the extension would have created a tunnelled enclosure 
between the two properties.  It would also have restricted sunlight to a daily 
amount of less than two hours, impacting upon the neighbours’ living room 
window.

Page 245

Agenda Item 13



Accordingly consent was refused on the basis of the proposal being contrary 
to Saved policy B14, Emerging policy H16 and part 127 of the Framework.

The Inspector noted the relationship between the neighbour’s house and the 
extension currently being built under the Larger Homes legislation as being 
“uncomfortably close”.  Nevertheless, in terms of adding a first floor onto the 
same footprint the Inspector considered that increasing its height would create 
a high blank wall in close proximity to the kitchen window, forming a tunnel 
between the two houses that would be “visually oppressive and overbearing”

In terms of the second reason for refusal, the Inspector considered two 
aspects.  The Framework suggests flexibility in applying policies relevant to 
daylight/sunlight, and in the absence of evidence to show how the Authority 
had calculated the unacceptable loss of natural lighting he could not uphold 
this reason for refusal.  (these comments have been noted and in future we 
will include this evidence to back up any such reasons in subsequent 
applications).

The appeal was dismissed on the grounds that it was contrary to local policy 
which seeks to preclude rear extensions that would be overbearing or create 
excessive levels of enclosure.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 246

Agenda Item 13



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

l  

 

 

Appeal Decision 
 

Site visit made on 14 March 2019 

By R Jones DipTP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 02 May 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/W0910/D/18/3218464 

24 Fell Croft, Dalton-in-Furness LA15 8DD 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Miss Kelly Turner against the decision of Barrow-in-Furness 
Borough Council. 

• The application Ref B21/2018/0564, dated 29 July 2018, was refused by notice dated 
21 September 2018. 

• The development proposed is erection of a second storey rear extension consisting of a 
master bedroom. 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Preliminary Matter  

2. The revised National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) was issued in 

February 2019, which supersedes the 2018 version. As the revisions are not 
significant in respect of the matters relating to the appeal, no consultation has 

been undertaken with the main parties. I have had regard to the revised 

Framework in reaching my decision. 

Main Issue 

3. The main issue is the effect of the proposed extension on the living conditions 

of the occupiers of 22 Fell Croft, with particular regard to outlook and sunlight 

and daylight. 

Reasons 

4. The appeal property is an end of terrace house, with accommodation over 

three floors.  There is a significant change of level between the front and rear 
of the house, with the rear at lower ground floor.  There is a single-storey 

extension, which was under construction at the time of my site visit, to the rear 

of the house at lower ground floor.  This is the full width of the house 

extending around 3.6m in length from the rear elevation.  The appeal proposal 
is to extend above this to provide a master bedroom at ground floor. 

5. The neighbouring house at 22 Fell Croft (No 22) has its kitchen window on a 

single-storey element of the house which directly faces the common boundary 

with the appeal property.  The relationship between this window and the 

extension to the appeal property under construction is already uncomfortably 

Page 247

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/D/18/3218464 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

close.  Increasing the height of the extension to around 5.6m would create a 

high, blank wall in close proximity to the kitchen window and would 

significantly increase the sense of enclosure. 

6. Further, there is a window on the rear elevation of No 22 at lower ground level.  

Given its extent and scale, the proposed extension would all but enclose the 
outlook from that window and the effect would be to create a tunnel between 

the two houses.  I noted from my site visit that 20 Fell Croft has been extended 

to the rear over three-storeys.  Although it does not extend as far back as the 
appeal proposals at ground and first floor, this existing extension exacerbates 

the impact in terms of the tunnelling effect on No 22. The proposed extension 

would be visually oppressive and overbearing on the outlook of the occupiers of 

No 22. 

7. In respect of loss of daylight and sunlight, the Council refer to a calculation 
undertaken in accordance with BRE guidance ‘Site Layout Planning for Daylight 

and Sunlight’, which shows an impact on sunlight until approximately 14.45hrs.  

No detailed information is before me in terms of how this calculation has been 

undertaken. The appellant’s Sun Study shows there would be little discernible 
difference between the shadow from the proposed extension, compared to the 

existing single-storey extension on the lower ground floor window of 22 Fell 

Croft from 14.15hrs. In respect of daylight, it was clear on site that the 45 
degree line from the centre point of the lower ground floor window has already 

been breached by the single storey extension.  The Framework advises that a 

flexible approach should be taken in applying policies or guidance relating to 

daylight and sunlight.  Mindful of this, and on the evidence before me, I am not 
persuaded that the appeal proposals would result in a significant loss of 

daylight or sunlight to 22 Fell Croft. 

8. I have had regard to the fact that the neighbours at No 22 have supported the 

proposal.  However, the harm identified would be permanent and I must 

consider the amenity of both existing and future occupiers. I have also had 
regard to the other two-storey rear extensions that have been drawn to my 

attention.  The circumstances in each proposal is likely to be different, and the 

fact that a similar development has been granted permission is not a reason, 
on its own, to allow unacceptable development.  I have considered this appeal 

proposal on its own merits and concluded that it would cause harm to living 

conditions for the reasons set out above. 

9. Notwithstanding my findings on daylight and sunlight, I conclude that the 

proposed development would cause significant and demonstrable harm to the 
living conditions of 22 Fell Croft through the loss of outlook.  It would therefore 

conflict with saved Policy B14 of Borough of Barrow-in-Furness Local Plan 

Review, 1996-2006 (2001) in-so-far as it precludes extensions to the rear 
where they would result in an overbearing impact or excessive level of 

enclosure.  It would further conflict with the Framework which requires a high 

standard of amenity for existing and future users.  

Conclusion 

10. For the reasons given, I conclude the appeal should be dismissed. 

R. Jones 

INSPECTOR 

Page 248

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	8 Planning Application Book 1
	2019/0227 Hayeswater Drive
	Consultation responses 
	Officer Assessment 
	Recommendation 

	2019/0256 Harding Rise House 
	Consultation Responses 
	Officer Assessment 
	Recommendation 

	2019/0257 Harding Rise House
	Consultation Responses
	Officer Assessment
	Recommendation 

	2019/0261 Sutherland Court
	Consultation Responses
	Officer Assessment 
	Recommendation 

	2019/0188 Nook Lane/Saves Lane
	Consultation Responses 
	Officer Assessment 
	Recommendation 

	Appendices of Saved and Emerging Policies 
	Index

	9 Planning Application Book 2
	2019/0020 Dalton Lane
	Consultation Responses 
	Officer Assessment 
	Recommendation 
	Appendix A

	Appendices of Saved and Emerging Policies 

	10 Planning Application Book 3
	2018/0375 London Road 
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans
	Appendices of saved and emerging policies

	11 Appointments to Outside Bodies, Panels, Working Groups etc
	12 Receipt of Appeal Decision: Marsh Grange Barn, Dunnerholme
	13 Appeal Decision: 24 Fell Croft, Dalton-in-Furness
	Appeal Decision - 24 Fell Croft, Dalton - Appendix


